
Valley Mountain Regional Center Finance
Committee Meeting

Finance Committee: Linda Collins, Chair and Treasurer,
Margaret Heinz, Connie Uychutin, Alicia Schott, Jose Lara,

Lisa Utsey, Dena Pfeifer

Wednesday, 07/01/20, 5:30 PM

Via Zoom Video Conference

https://zoom.us/j/99881094371?pwd=OHJweDRRTWZRSGo1Q3lVZW0xak9HQT09

Meeting ID: 998 8109 4371, Password: 224636

Via Phone - 1-669-900-6833

For Spanish Translation, Dial 1-866-299-7945, Participant Code 7793177#



 

B. Review and Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of
06/03/20
Linda Collins

Action Item

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract Board Approval Report 2020-09-30.pdf
 
 
Contract Board Approval Report 2020-10-31.pdf
 
 
JBallelos CIP 20-21 5yr Contract Renewal.pdf
 
 
Linden Grove 20-21 5yr Contract Renewal.pdf
 
 
Jar-Mill's Place 20-21 5yr Contract Renewal.pdf
 
 
AMVA Corp 19-20 Amend Add Program.pdf
 
 
CVTC HCBS Grant 19-20.pdf
 
 

D. Approval of Contracts Over $250,000
Corina Ramirez

Action Item

 

1. Acceptance of Contract Status Report (CSR)
 

Action Item

 

2. Review of Purchase of Service (POS) and Operations (OPS)
Expenditures
 

 

3. Cash Flow Projection Report
 

 

Contract Status Report July 2020.pdf
 
 

POS and OPS Reports July 2020.pdf
 
 

E. Fiscal Department Update
Claudia Reed

 

A. Review and Approval of Meeting Agenda
Linda Collins

Action Item

Fin Com Minutes 06 03 20.pdf
 
 

C. Pubic Comment
Linda Collins
Three minutes per comment, 6 minutes per comment with interpreter

 

Contract Summary & Board Resolution 2020-08.pdf
 
 

Meeting Book - Valley Mountain Regional Center Finance Committee Meeting

Valley Mountain Regional Center Finance Committee Meeting Agenda

Page 4

Page 6

Page 10

Page 14

Page 41

Page 68

Page 95

Page 107

Page 138

Page 139

Page 140

Page 2 of 147



 

 

4. VMRC Monthly POS Expenditure (PEP) Summary
 

 

 

5. Acceptance of Restricted Donations
 

Action Item

Cash Projection thru end of FY.xlsx
 
 

2019 20 NEW FORMAT PEP due 10 Jun 20.xlsx
 
 

Copy of Poppelwell Fund July Report.pdf
 
 

 F. Next Meeting - Wednesday, August 5, 2020, 5:30 PM via Zoom
Video Conference
Linda Collins

Page 142

Page 143

Page 147

Page 3 of 147



 

 

Finance Committee Meeting | 1 

 

 

Finance Committee Meeting 

06/03/2020 | 05:30 PM - 06:30 PM - Pacific Time (US & Canada) 

 

Total Attendees (15) 

 

Committee Members Present:  Linda Collins, Treasurer and Committee Chair, Dena Pfeifer, Lisa 

Utsey, Alicia Schott, Connie Uychutin, Margaret Heinz 

Not Present:  Jose Lara 

 

Staff Members Present:  Doug Bonnet, Claudia Reed, Tony Anderson, Corina Ramirez, Christine 

Couch 

 

Public Present:  Rachelle Munoz (Facilitator for Lisa Utsey), Lori Smith (Facilitator for Dena Pfeifer), 

Dora Contreras, Gricelda Estrada 

 

Linda Collins, Treasurer and Committee Chair called meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 

 

A. Review and Approval of Meeting Agenda 

Linda Collins asked to amend the agenda to that Section C will be moved and presented with section F. 

Dena Pfeifer made a motions to amend the agenda as requested by Linda Collins and approve the 

Meeting Agenda. Alicia Schott seconded the motion. The Meeting Agenda is approved unanimously.   

 

B. Review and Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 05/06/20 

Dena Pfeifer made a motion to approve the Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 05/06/20. Alicia 

Schott seconded the motion. The Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 05/06/20 were approved 

unanimously. 

 

C. Fiscal Department Update from 05/06/20 Meeting 

Moved to Section F. Fiscal Department Update. 

Page 4 of 147



 

 

Finance Committee Meeting | 2 

D. Public Comment 

None. 

 

E. Approval of Contracts over $250,000 

Corina Ramirez presented the contracts. 

 

1. CBEM – Page 11. 

2. Family Therapeutic Services – Page 13. 

 

Dena Pfeifer made a motion to approve the proposed Contracts over $250,000. Alicia Schott seconded 

the motion. The proposed contracts were approved unanimously.  

 

F. Fiscal Department Update 

Claudia Reed presented the Fiscal Department Reports. 

 

1. Acceptance of Contract Status Report (CSR) – Page 15 

Dena Pfeifer made a motions to accept the presented Contract Status Report (CSR). Alicia 

Schott seconded the motion. The Contract Status Report (CSR) was approved unanimously. 

2. Review of Purchase of Service (POS) and Operations (OPS) Expenditures – Page 16-17 

3. Cash Flow Projection Report – Page 18 

4. VMRC Monthly POS Expenditure (PEP) Summary – Page 19 

5. Acceptance of Restricted Donations – Page 20 

Dena Pfeifer made a motion to accept the Restricted Donations. Alicia Schott seconded the 

motion. The Restricted Donations were accepted unanimously.  

 

G. Next Meeting – Wednesday, July 1, 2020, 5:30 PM, via Zoom Video Conference 

 

Meeting adjourned at 6:20 PM. 

Page 5 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
9/30/2020

VendorName
BLUE MOUNTAIN TRANSIT INC

VendorNumber
H15677

SrvcCode
875

VendorCategory
Transportation Companies

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$2.12 per actual mile; $12.58 per authorized bus aide per hour

NTE
$1,300,000

ResponsibleStaff
Wilma Murray

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$2.12 per actual mile; $12.58 per authorized bus aide per hour

PropNTE
$1,404,000

Action:
Auto Renew Amend

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 8.00%

VendorName
CAMELLO SUPPORTED LIVING

VendorNumber
SV0016

SrvcCode
896

VendorCategory
Supported Living Services

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$34.29/hr

NTE
$720,000

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$34.29/hr

PropNTE
$720,000

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

VendorName
GIGGLES EARLY INTERVENT.  Giggles Early Intervention 

VendorNumber
PV0526

SrvcCode
116

VendorCategory
Early Start Specialized Therapeutic Services

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$123.37/hr-Home Visits; $217.34/hr-Foothills Home Visits; $163.01/discipline-Intake Elig Evals; $190.17/Intake Elig Eval w/Family Assmt; 
$277.11 per SI Eval; $277.11 per ST Autism Eval; $0.505/mile-Home Visits

NTE
$875,522

ResponsibleStaff
Claire Lazaro

ResponsibleDept
Clinical

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$123.37/hr-Home Visits; $217.34/hr-Foothills Home Visits; $163.01/discipline-Intake Elig Evals; $190.17/Intake Elig Eval w/Family Assmt; 
$277.11 per SI Eval; $277.11 per ST Autism Eval; $0.505/mile-Home Visits

PropNTE
$875,522

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

6/23/2020 Page 1 of 4

Page 6 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
9/30/2020

VendorName
JBALLELOS CIP             CITP

VendorNumber
HV0460

SrvcCode
055

VendorCategory
Community Integration Training Program

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$83.94/cons/day

NTE
$410,553

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$83.94/cons/day

PropNTE
$536,880

Action:
New Contract

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 30.77%

VendorName
LIFEWORKS-ACS, INC.

VendorNumber
P22560

SrvcCode
773

VendorCategory
Occupational Therapy

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$412/SPM Asmt; $412/ENV Asmt; $721/SPM-ENV Asmt; $824/AAC Asmt; $412/ACA Asmt; $103/hr followup; $0.505/mile SPM & ENV 
Asmt followup

NTE
$300,000

ResponsibleStaff
Claire Lazaro

ResponsibleDept
Clinical

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$412/SPM Asmt; $412/ENV Asmt; $721/SPM-ENV Asmt; $824/AAC Asmt; $412/ACA Asmt; $103/hr followup; $0.505/mile SPM & ENV 
Asmt followup

PropNTE
$342,506

Action:
Auto Renew Amend

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 14.17%

VendorName
LINDEN GROVE ADULT RESID

VendorNumber
HV0414

SrvcCode
113

VendorCategory
Specialized Residential Facility (Habilitation)-DSS-Lice

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$15,851.31 cons/mo, inclusive of SSI

NTE
$981,792

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$15,851.31 cons/mo, inclusive of SSI

PropNTE
$981,792

Action:
New Contract

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

6/23/2020 Page 2 of 4

Page 7 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
9/30/2020

VendorName
PEDS - PROFESSIONAL EVALS

VendorNumber
PV0527

SrvcCode
116

VendorCategory
Early Start Specialized Therapeutic Services

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$125.44/hr-Home Visits eff 7/1/15; $163.01/discipline-Intake Elig Evals & indiv clinical specialist asmts; $190.17/Intake Elig Eval w/Family 
Assmt; $277.11 per SI Eval; $277.11 per ST Autism Eval; $125.44/hr for AAC assmt; $0.505/mile Home Visits

NTE
$2,765,187

ResponsibleStaff
Claire Lazaro

ResponsibleDept
Clinical

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$125.44/hr-Home Visits; $163.01/discipline-Intake Elig Evals & indiv clinical specialist asmts; $190.17/Intake Elig Eval w/Family Assmt; 
$277.11 per SI Eval; $277.11 per ST Autism Eval; $125.44 hrm NTE 7 hrs/ for AAC services; $0.505/mile Home Visits

PropNTE
$3,100,000

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 12.11%

VendorName
PSYCHIATRIC CENTERS AT

VendorNumber
PQ7264

SrvcCode
780

VendorCategory
Psychiatrist

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$250/hr

NTE
$820,500

ResponsibleStaff
Claire Lazaro

ResponsibleDept
Clinical

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$250/hr

PropNTE
$900,000

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 9.69%

VendorName
SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL &    SESS, Inc.

VendorNumber
SV0030

SrvcCode
896

VendorCategory
Supported Living Services

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$31.52 per hour; $0.32 per mile for approved out of area appts.

NTE
$500,000

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$31.52 per hour; $0.32 per mile for approved out of area appts.

PropNTE
$1,560,000

Action:
Auto Renew Amend

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 212.00%

6/23/2020 Page 3 of 4

Page 8 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
9/30/2020

VendorName
TEAMWORK SPEECH THERAPY,

VendorNumber
PV1796

SrvcCode
116

VendorCategory
Early Start Specialized Therapeutic Services

EffecDate
10/1/2019

ExpDate
9/30/2020

Rate
$123.36/hr-Home Visits; $163.02/discipline-Intake Elig Evals & Clinical Spec Asmnts; $190.17/Intake Elig Eval w/Family Asmnt; $0.505/mile-
Home Visits.

NTE
$200,000

ResponsibleStaff
Claire Lazaro

ResponsibleDept
Clinical

PropEffDate
10/1/2020

PropExpDate
9/30/2021

PropRate
$123.36/hr-Home Visits; $163.02/discipline-Intake Elig Evals & Clinical Spec Asmnts; $190.17/Intake Elig Eval w/Family Asmnt; $0.505/mile-
Home Visits.

PropNTE
$380,156

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 90.08%

6/23/2020 Page 4 of 4

Page 9 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
10/31/2020

VendorName
CALIFORNIA MENTOR FAMILY

VendorNumber
HV0089

SrvcCode
904

VendorCategory
Family Home Agency

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
Tier 0=$2,269.34; Tier 1=$2,526.56; Tier 2=$3,941.20; Tier 3=$4,845.98; Tier 4-$5,700.68

NTE
$1,945,999

ResponsibleStaff
Cindy Mix

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
Tier 0=$2,269.34; Tier 1=$2,526.56; Tier 2=$3,941.20; Tier 3=$4,845.98; Tier 4-$5,700.68

PropNTE
$2,008,104

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 3.19%

VendorName
COMMUNITY COMPASS         CAN

VendorNumber
SV0015

SrvcCode
896

VendorCategory
Supported Living Services

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$46.65 per direct service hour

NTE
$599,301

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$46.65 per direct service hour

PropNTE
$599,301

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

VendorName
COMMUNITY COMPASS         Jackson Site

VendorNumber
HV0088

SrvcCode
515

VendorCategory
Behavior Management Program

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$92.54/cons/day-DDS-set rate

NTE
$1,307,199

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$92.54/cons/day-DDS-set rate

PropNTE
$1,440,000

Action:
Auto Renew Amend

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 10.16%

6/23/2020 Page 1 of 4

Page 10 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
10/31/2020

VendorName
FUTURES EXPLORED

VendorNumber
HV0551

SrvcCode
094

VendorCategory
Creative Art Program

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$39.01 per consumer, per hour

NTE
$400,000

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$39.01 per consumer, per hour

PropNTE
$436,522

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 9.13%

VendorName
HANA HOU ALLIANCE, LLC

VendorNumber
HV0315

SrvcCode
113

VendorCategory
Specialized Residential Facility (Habilitation)-DSS-Lice

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$9,449.25/mo, inclusive of SSI; respite rate is monthly rate divided by 21.

NTE
$555,777

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$9,449.25/mo, inclusive of SSI; respite rate is monthly rate divided by 21.

PropNTE
$555,777

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

VendorName
JAR MILL'S PLACE

VendorNumber
HV0452

SrvcCode
113

VendorCategory
Specialized Residential Facility (Habilitation)-DSS-Lice

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$9,818.45 per cons per mo

NTE
$470,063

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$9,818.45 per cons per mo

PropNTE
$470,063

Action:
New Contract

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

6/23/2020 Page 2 of 4

Page 11 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
10/31/2020

VendorName
KEYHOLDERS 360, INC.

VendorNumber
SV0031

SrvcCode
896

VendorCategory
Supported Living Services

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$31.52 per hour

NTE
$641,093

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$31.52 per hour

PropNTE
$816,000

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 27.28%

VendorName
STORER TRANSPORTATION     Stockton

VendorNumber
HV0142

SrvcCode
875

VendorCategory
Transportation Companies

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$3.46 per route mile and $27.39 per hour for each bus aide + fuel sliding scale over $1.25/gal

NTE
$6,082,448

ResponsibleStaff
Wilma Murray

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$3.46 per route mile and $27.39 per hour for each bus aide + fuel sliding scale over $1.25/gal

PropNTE
$6,120,000

Action:
Auto Renew Amend

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Increase NTE$

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.62%

VendorName
STORER TRANSPORTATION     Modesto

VendorNumber
H00627

SrvcCode
875

VendorCategory
Transportation Companies

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$2.78/route mile + $27.66/hr-bus aide

NTE
$3,696,056

ResponsibleStaff
Wilma Murray

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$2.78/route mile + $27.66/hr-bus aide

PropNTE
$3,696,056

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

6/23/2020 Page 3 of 4

Page 12 of 147



Contract Board Approval Report Contracts Expiring:
10/31/2020

VendorName
VOCATIONAL COACHING &     Institute (VCDI)

VendorNumber
HV0420

SrvcCode
055

VendorCategory
Community Integration Training Program

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$84.27/cons/day; $1,000 for CIEP; $1,250 for CIE6; $1,500 for CIE12

NTE
$1,046,240

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$84.27/cons/day; $1,000 for CIEP; $1,250 for CIE6; $1,500 for CIE12

PropNTE
$1,046,240

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

VendorName
VOCATIONAL COACHING &     Institute (VCDI)

VendorNumber
HV0397

SrvcCode
515

VendorCategory
Behavior Management Program

EffecDate
11/1/2019

ExpDate
10/31/2020

Rate
$85.56/cons/day (DDS-set rate)

NTE
$291,491

ResponsibleStaff
Brian Bennett

ResponsibleDept
RD

PropEffDate
11/1/2020

PropExpDate
10/31/2021

PropRate
$85.56/cons/day (DDS-set rate)

PropNTE
$291,491

Action:
Auto Renewal

Current Contract:

Proposed Contract:
ActionReason:
Extend Contract

Increase/Decrease in NTE $: 0.00%

6/23/2020 Page 4 of 4

Page 13 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 1 of 24 
 

Valley Mountain Regional Center 
POS Independent Contractor Contract 

 

 This POS Independent Contractor Contract (“Contract”) is entered into this 1st day of October, 
2020, in the City of Stockton, County of San Joaquin, State of California, by and between Valley Mountain 
Regional Center, Inc. (“Center”) and Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC. dba JBallelos CIP (“Contractor”).  Each party 
to this Contract shall be referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”  This Contract shall 
be effective on and after the date in which both Parties sign it (“Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4648 of the California Welfare and Institutions Code (“W&I 
Code”), Center is authorized to, pursuant to Vendorization or a contract, purchase services or 
supports for its Consumers from any individual or agency which Center determines will best 
accomplish all or any part of its Consumers’ program plans; 

B. WHEREAS, Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations (“Title 17”) permits the establishment of 
service contracts for the provision of Vendored services; 

C. WHEREAS, Contractor is currently Vendored by Center to provide the Services described in Exhibit 
A for Center’s Consumers; 

D. WHEREAS, Center and Contractor desire to define the terms and conditions pursuant to which 
Contractor will provide the Services described in Exhibit A to Center’s Consumers; 

E. NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, including the promises and payments described 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Truth of Recitals and Representations. The Parties hereby acknowledge the truth of the Recitals 
set forth above, and agree that the facts recited are conclusively presumed to be true as between 
the Parties and their successors in interest pursuant to Section 622 of the California Evidence 
Code.  Contractor further affirms that all fiscal and other documentation submitted to Center in 
conjunction with the negotiation and preparation of this Contract, and Contractor’s 
Vendorization, is complete and accurate to the best of Contractor’s knowledge, supported by 
records and source documents, prepared in accordance with all instructions provided by Center 
and all applicable laws, and subject to review pursuant to any audit by Center, the State of 
California Department of Developmental Services, and/or any other agency of the State of 
California or the Federal Government, as permitted by law. 

2. Definitions.  The definitions set forth in the W&I Code and Title 17 shall apply to this Contract. 
The following terms, some of which are taken therefrom, are specifically utilized in this Contract. 

A. “Consumer” means an individual who has been determined by Center to meet the 
eligibility criteria of W&I Code Section 4512(a) and Sections 54000, 54001 and 54010 of 
Title 17, and for whom Center has accepted responsibility to provide services. 

B. “DDS” means the State of California Department of Developmental Services. 

C. “Individual Program Plan” or “IPP” means a written plan that is developed by Center’s 
Planning Team in accordance with the provisions of W&I Code Sections 4646 and 4646.5. 

D. “Individual Service Plan” or “ISP” means an individualized plan generated for each 
Consumer to detail exactly how to meet the goals set forth in the IPP. 

Page 14 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 2 of 24 
 

E. “Internal Grievance Procedure” means the written set of procedures, established 
pursuant to W&I Code Section 4705(a), a vendor uses to achieve the communication and 
resolution of Consumer dissatisfaction. 

F. “Planning Team,” also known as Interdisciplinary (ID) Team, means the group of persons 
convened in accordance with the W&I Code Section 4646 for the purpose of preparing a 
Consumer’s IPP. 

G. “Record” means any book, document, writing, whether tangible, or in an electronic 
format, evidencing operational, financial or service activities of a service provider such as 
Contractor, or Center, or pertaining to the service program and/or the provision of 
services to persons with developmental disabilities. 

H. “Service” means assistance provided and duties performed by a Vendor for a Consumer, 
as described in Exhibit A. 

I. “Service Coordinator” means the individual specified in W&I Code Section 4648(a) as the 
person with the responsibility for implementing, overseeing, and monitoring a 
Consumer’s IPP and for maintaining the Consumer’s case management or service 
coordination file. Service Coordinator is synonymous with Center case manager, 
counselor or client program coordinator. 

J. “Service Design,” also known as Program Design, means a written description of the 
service delivery capabilities and orientation developed, maintained, and implemented by 
a Vendor in compliance with the rules and regulations. 

K. “Special Incident Report” is the documentation prepared by Vendor staff or long-term 
health care facility staff detailing a special incident and provided to Center and 
appropriate law enforcement authorities. 

L. “Vendor” means an applicant which has been given a Vendor identification number and 
has completed the Vendorization process set forth in Section 54302, et seq. of Title 17. 

M. “Vendorization” means the process used to: 

1) Verify that an applicant meets all of the requirements and standards pursuant to 
Section 54320 of Title 17 prior to the provision of Services to Consumers; and, 

2) Assign Vendor identification numbers, service codes and sub-codes, for the 
purpose of identifying Vendor expenditures. 

3. Purpose of Contract.  The purpose of this Contract is to outline the obligations and duties of 
Contractor in providing the Services described in Exhibit A to Consumers and the means and 
process by which Contractor shall be compensated for said Services. 

4. Term of Contract. This Contract shall commence on the 1st day of October, 2020 
(“Commencement Date”), and shall terminate at midnight on the 30th day of September, 2021 
(“Termination Date”), unless renewed by the Parties, or terminated earlier, pursuant to the terms 
of this Contract.  Center shall not be required to compensate Contractor for Services performed 
by Contractor prior to Contractor’s receipt of a written Authorization to Purchase Services from 
Center or subsequent to termination of this Contract, and any Services performed subsequent to 
termination of this Contract shall not be construed as a renewal of this Contract. 

A. Automatic Renewal of Contract.  On the Termination Date, this Contract shall 
automatically renew for a one (1) year period (“Renewal Period”), on the same terms and 
conditions contained herein, including, but not limited to, the rate to be paid by Center 
for Contractor’s Services, unless:  (1) no later than sixty (60) days before the Termination 

Page 15 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 3 of 24 
 

Date, a Party gives written notice to the other Party of the intent to terminate the 
Contract on the Termination Date; or (2) this Contract is terminated pursuant to Section 
4(B) below.  If this Contract is automatically renewed pursuant to this Section, Center shall 
send a written confirmation to Contractor within thirty (30) days of the originally 
scheduled Termination Date.  This Contract can be renewed pursuant to this provision for 
a maximum of five (5) years from the original Commencement Date.  For automatic 
renewal to occur, the process set forth in this Section must be followed each year until 
this Contract is terminated.  Automatic renewal of this Contract for one (1) or more years 
does not guarantee renewal for any subsequent year.  If either Party desires to modify 
any of the terms of this Contract during a Renewal Period, that Party shall send a written 
request for a meeting to discuss the proposed modification(s).  Any modification to this 
Contract during the renewal process, or otherwise, shall be set forth in a written 
amendment signed by both Parties.  No oral representation by the Parties or their 
representatives shall be effective to renew this Contract. 

B. Early Termination of Contract by Center.  Center may terminate this Contract prior to the 
date set forth in this Section 4 should Center, DDS or the State of California determine 
that Contractor has failed to comply with any provision of this Contract, failed to comply 
with the written Authorization to Purchase Services, and/or failed to comply with any 
applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, those 
which govern the provision of Services to persons with developmental disabilities. Should 
Center, DDS or the State of California determine that termination of this Contract is 
appropriate, Center shall provide Contractor with a written notice of termination 
describing the reason for termination (“Center’s Notice of Termination”). This Contract 
shall be deemed terminated thirty (30) days following delivery of Center’s Notice of 
Termination (“Termination Date”).  Center’s Notice of Termination shall be deemed 
delivered on the date that it is either mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, 
or personally delivered to Contractor.  Termination may occur without notice, or with less 
than thirty (30) days’ notice, if Center determines that either:  the results of any 
evaluation of Contractor’s Service delivery warrant termination without notice or with 
notice of less than thirty (30) days, or Contractor’s Service delivery contributes to life-
threatening dangers to, or has resulted in abuse of, a Consumer. 

C. Early Termination of Contract by Contractor. Should Contractor determine that 
termination of this Contract is appropriate, Contractor shall provide Center with a notice 
of termination describing the reason for termination (“Contractor’s Notice of 
Termination”).  This Contract shall be deemed terminated thirty (30) days following 
delivery of Contractor’s Notice of Termination, unless Contractor specifies in its Notice of 
Termination that termination shall be effective at a later date (“Termination Date”). 
Contractor’s Notice of Termination shall be deemed delivered on the date that it is either 
mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, or personally delivered to Center. 

D. Termination of Contract by Either Party Without Cause.  Notwithstanding Sections 4(A), 
4(B) or 4(C) of this Contract, this Contract may be terminated by either Party without 
cause upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other Party, or as mutually agreed. 

E. No Payment for Services Performed After Termination Date.  On and after the 
Termination Date, Contractor shall not conduct any further activities under this Contract 
and Center’s obligation to pay Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall cease.  Any 
expenses incurred by Contractor following the Termination Date will not be reimbursed 
pursuant to this Contract.  If Contractor performed Services prior to the Termination Date 
that are reimbursable pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor shall deliver a 

Page 16 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 4 of 24 
 

final claim form within ten (10) business days of the Termination Date.  Center shall 
reimburse Contractor for those Services that were legitimately performed prior to the 
Termination Date. 

F. Compliance With Laws Upon Termination.  In the event of termination, Center and 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, W&I Code Sections 4502, 4646, 4646.4, 4648, 4710 and 
4741. 

5. Referral of Consumers.  Center’s case management staff may refer Consumers to Contractor, as 
it deems appropriate, through Contractor’s designee. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that 
Center is not obligated to refer any particular number of Consumers to Contractor, or any 
Consumers at all, and that this Contract is not intended to, nor shall it constitute a guarantee or 
vested right to have any particular Consumer, or any number of Consumers referred, assigned, 
transferred or sent to Contractor for Services.  Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that 
Center shall not be liable to Contractor, for any cause of action, in law or equity, including, but 
not limited to, breach of contract or breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, 
if Center does not refer, assign, transfer or send any particular Consumer, or any number of 
Consumers to Contractor for Services.  Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that it shall 
not interfere with or limit Center’s right under the W&I Code and Title 17 to secure for any 
Consumer served by Contractor, additional and/or alternative services which Center has 
determined are appropriate. 

6. Services.  Contractor shall provide Services in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
local laws or regulations, including but not limited to, Title 17 as it relates to the appropriate 
service type, in accordance with the Program Design attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit C, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, including Exhibits 
and/or documents referenced in this Contract.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of 
the Program Design and this Contract, the terms of this Contract shall govern.  The level of service 
provided by Contractor shall, at a minimum, be consistent with Contractor’s Program Design, any 
other program-related documentation relied upon by the Department as a basis for establishing 
rates of payment, and any applicable Federal, State and local laws or regulations. 

7. Contractor’s Duties. 

A. Authorization to Purchase Services Required.  Contractor may not initiate or provide any 
Services for Consumers until Center has issued a duly executed Authorization to Purchase 
Services. 

B. Special Incident Reporting Requirements. 

1) Contractor shall report any and all Special or Unusual Incidents pursuant to 
Section 54327 of Title 17, including, but not limited to: 

a) The Consumer is missing and Contractor or long-term health care facility 
has filed a missing persons report with a law enforcement agency; 

b) Reasonably suspected abuse/exploitation, including: physical, sexual, 
fiduciary, emotional/mental, or physical and/or chemical restraint; 

c) Reasonably suspected neglect, including failure to:  provide medical care 
for physical and mental health needs; prevent malnutrition or 
dehydration, protect from health and safety hazards, failure to assist in 
personal hygiene or the provision of food, clothing, or shelter, or exercise 

Page 17 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 5 of 24 
 

the degree of care that a reasonable person would exercise in the 
position of having the care and custody of a dependent adult; 

d) Serious injury or accident, including: lacerations requiring sutures or 
staples, puncture wounds requiring medical treatment beyond first aid, 
fractures, dislocations, bites that break the skin and require medical 
treatment beyond first aid, internal bleeding requiring treatment beyond 
first aid, any medication errors, medication reactions that require 
medical treatment beyond first aid, and burns that require medical 
treatment beyond first aid; 

e) Any unplanned or unscheduled hospitalization due to the following 
conditions:  respiratory illness, seizure-related, cardiac-related, internal 
infection, diabetes, including diabetes-related complications, 
wound/skin care, nutritional deficiencies, or involuntary psychiatric 
admission; 

f) The death of any Consumer, regardless of cause and regardless of when 
or where it occurred; and 

g) The victimization of a Consumer of the following crimes: robbery, 
aggravated assault, larceny, burglary, and rape/attempted rape, 
regardless of when or where such an incident occurred. 

2) Special Incident Reports shall be made to the appropriate law enforcement 
authorities and to Center, via telephone, electronic mail or facsimile, immediately 
upon discovery of the incident, and under no circumstances shall said reporting 
occur more than twenty-four (24) hours after an incident occurred, was 
discovered, or was suspected, whichever is earliest.  Notification to the assigned 
Service Coordinator, the Officer of the Day, or the After Hours Response Team, 
as identified by the Special Projects Unit of Center, shall satisfy the initial 
reporting requirement. 

3) Thereafter, within forty-eight (48) hours after the alleged incident occurred, was 
discovered, or suspected, whichever is earliest, Contractor shall provide Center 
with a written report describing the alleged incident and Contractor’s response 
thereto.  Failure to report any such incident to the appropriate law enforcement 
authorities and to Center, and/or failure to provide the required written report, 
shall constitute a distinct and separate ground for automatic termination of this 
Contract, notice of which shall be served personally or via certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to Contractor. 

4) Written reports of incidents shall include all relevant information, including, but 
not limited to: 

a) Contractor’s name, address and telephone number; 

b) Date, time and location of the incident; 

c) Name(s) and date(s) of birth, and UCI Number(s) of each Consumer 
involved in the incident and the name, address and phone number of the 
Consumer’s family member(s) or authorized representative(s); 

d) The name, address and phone number of the Consumer’s family 
member(s) or authorized representative(s) who were contacted and 
informed of the incident; 

Page 18 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 6 of 24 
 

e) Description of the incident; 

f) Description of the alleged perpetrator(s) of the incident, including, but 
not limited to, name, age, height, weight, address, phone number, 
occupation, and relationship to Consumer; 

g) Treatment provided to Consumer, if any; 

h) Identification of potential witnesses, including, but not limited to, name, 
address, telephone number and context of witnessing the incident; 

i) Identity of all law enforcement, licensing, protective services and/or 
other agencies or individuals notified of the incident, or otherwise 
involved in the incident; 

j) Action(s) taken by Contractor, law enforcement, licensing, protective 
services and/or other agencies or individuals in response to the incident; 
and 

k) Dated signature of the person creating the written report on behalf of 
Contractor. 

5) Failure to Report.  Failure to report any of the foregoing incidents to the 
appropriate law enforcement authorities and to Center, and/or failure to provide 
the required written report, shall constitute a distinct and separate ground for 
automatic termination of this Contract, notice of which shall be served personally 
or via certified mail, return receipt requested, to Contractor. 

C. Compliance with IPP.  Contractor shall follow IPP documentation requirements as set 
forth in Section 56720 of Title 17 and W&I Code Section 4648 and shall properly train all 
staff as necessary to ensure the adequacy of said documentation.  All Services rendered 
by Contractor shall be in furtherance of the IPP.  Contractor shall not render Services that 
are not called for in the IPP.  Center shall notify Contractor of annual IPP meetings at least 
five (5) days in advance of all such meetings, unless the Consumer or their legally 
authorized representative asks that the Contractor not be at the meeting. 

D. Developing ISPs.  Contractor agrees to follow “person centered planning philosophies,” 
as published by DDS, in developing ISPs for Consumers and/or to procure such training as 
is necessary to ensure adequate staff participation in person centered planning. 

E. Use of Public or Generic Resources.  Regional centers are required to use generic services 
when available.  Contractor understands and agrees that if a Consumer or Consumer’s 
authorized representative chooses not to access available generic services (e.g. IHSS, 
Medi-Cal, public school, California Children's Service), Center will not be able to pay for 
the service.  Contractor shall utilize, to the fullest extent feasible, those public resources 
which are available without additional cost to Contractor and which will enhance the 
quality of Services provided to those Consumers who can benefit from the use of such 
resources. 

F. Grievance Reports / Complaints.  Contractor shall establish, adopt and periodically review 
a written Internal Grievance Procedure under which Consumers, or their authorized 
representatives or advocates may file complaints to address their grievances and by 
which Contractor shall resolve grievances pursuant to W&I Code Section 4705. 

Page 19 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 7 of 24 
 

G. Abuse Reporting Training.  Contractor shall train all staff regarding legally mandated 
abuse reporting requirements prior to the employee’s provision of Services to Consumers 
and annually thereafter. 

H. Staff Background Checks. 

1) Contractor shall require all staff providing Services having contact with 
Consumers under this Contract to have cleared a fingerprint /background check 
that includes the Department of Justice prior to having any contact with 
Consumers, and annually thereafter, unless clearance is sought through the 
Department of Social Services or the TrustLine Registry, which includes automatic 
checks for subsequent arrests.  Contractor shall provide Center, upon request, 
with proof of the fingerprint clearance. 

2) Contractor shall require individuals to submit references from prior employers 
and/or volunteer organizations.  Contractor shall verify the accuracy of these 
references and document the verification in the employee/volunteer personnel 
file. 

3) Contractor, within the scope of and direction of Contractor’s agency exclusively, 
agrees to develop, retain, and implement employment policies and programs to 
encourage and promote Contractor’s employee fitness during performance of 
service delivery tasks connected with the intended beneficiaries (Center’s 
consumers) within Contractor’s program design, California Code of Regulations 
Title 17 and Title 22 and Direct Support Professional requirements satisfying the 
principal purpose of “agreement” between Center and Contractor. 

8. Payment for Services.  The Parties fully understand and agree that payment under this Contract 
is dependent upon available Federal and/or State funding.  Contractor expressly acknowledges 
that the State and/or Federal Government may, from time to time during the Term of this 
Contract, require changes to the rate of payment that Center pays Contractor.  Accordingly, 
Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that adjustments to the rate of payment described 
herein may be made by Center.  Center will notify Contractor, in writing, of any such adjustments 
to the rate of payment and of the effective date of any adjustment.  Contractor expressly 
understands and agrees that Contractor shall have no right to object to any such adjustments and 
that any such adjustments shall not give rise to any cause of action, in law or equity, against 
Center.  In the event that Center is not allocated any funds for the Services referenced in this 
Contract, this Contract shall be null and void and of no further force and effect, in which event, 
Center shall have no obligation to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor, or to furnish any other 
consideration under this Contract, and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform pursuant to 
this Contract.  Payment to Contractor shall only be made according to the following terms: 

A. Reliance on Authorization to Purchase Services. All payments shall be made in accordance 
with the Authorization to Purchase Services provided to Contractor by Center.  Payments 
shall not be made based upon oral authorization to provide services. 

B. Rate of Payment. 

1) The rate paid to Contactor by Center shall be cost effective to the State of 
California. 

2) Contractor shall not charge Center a rate for Services to Consumers that is more 
than Contractor would charge, or is charging, for any other purchase of the same 
or substantially similar service. 

Page 20 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 8 of 24 
 

3) Center shall pay Contractor at the rate described in Exhibit B which shall 
constitute the total amount of compensation for Contractor’s performance of this 
Contract. 

4) Contractor also understands and agrees that the maximum amount described in 
Exhibit B is the highest total amount which can be paid by Center to Contractor 
under this Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties.  
Contractor further understands and agrees that if the maximum amount 
described in Exhibit B is exceeded, this Contract is not valid unless and until it is 
approved by Center’s Governing Board.  Nothing in this Contract shall be deemed 
to guarantee that Contractor will receive the maximum amount of compensation 
provided for in Exhibit B, or any compensation at all, as Center cannot guarantee 
the amount of Services that Contractor will be asked to provide for Consumers. 

C. Payment in Arrears.  Center shall pay Contractor in arrears for Services provided in the 
previous calendar month. 

1) Claim Form. Contractor shall bill Center, on a monthly basis, for Services provided 
in the previous month by submitting to Center a completed and signed claim form 
in the format provided by Center, or electronically.  Contractors who submit their 
claim forms electronically shall retain all supporting and required source 
documentation.  All other contractors shall submit all supporting and required 
source documentation with their claim forms.  The supporting and required 
source documentation shall include, at a minimum, the information required by 
Section 50604(d) of Title 17. 

2) Certification.  For each claim form submitted, Contractor shall certify under 
penalty of perjury: 

a) All services for which Contractor is seeking payment have been provided 
to Center consumers by Contractor; and 

b) All information submitted to Center along with the claim form is accurate 
and complete. 

3) Time for Submittal of Claim Form.  Claim forms, and supporting and required 
source documentation, if applicable, shall be submitted to Center on or before 
the tenth (10th) day of each month.  Contractor understands that at the very 
latest, Contractor must submit a claim for reimbursement for all Services 
performed within ninety (90) days of the actual date of service.  On each claim 
form, Contractor shall certify that all Services for which Contractor seeks 
reimbursement were performed within ninety (90) days of submittal of the claim 
form.  Contractor further understands and agrees that it shall not be paid by 
Center for any Services that were performed more than ninety (90) days before 
submittal of a claim form for the Services. 

D. Date for Payment by Center.  On or before the twenty-fifth (25th) of each month, Center 
shall pay Contractor according to the information provided in each claim form. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Center shall have no obligation to pay Contractor: if 
Contractor fails to provide supporting and required source documentation for each claim 
form submitted to Center on or before the 10th of the month, or fails to make such 
information available in the case of electronic billing; if Center disputes any item 
submitted by Contractor in conjunction with a claim form; or if the claim form is 

Page 21 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 9 of 24 
 

inconsistent with the Authorization to Purchase Services provided to Contractor by 
Center. 

E. Limitations on Payment. 

1) Center’s obligation to pay for Transportation Services under this Contract arises 
only when Contractor has provided the Transportation Services fully and 
satisfactorily in accordance with the terms of this Contract. 

2) Payments by Center to Contractor shall not be used to supplant the budget of any 
agency which has a legal responsibility to serve all members of the general public 
and is receiving public funds for providing those Services.  Nor shall payments by 
Center to Contractor be used to supplement the rate of payment Contractor is 
receiving from any agency for Services provided to a Consumer. 

3) No more than fifteen percent (15%) of Center funds shall be spent by Contractor 
on Administrative Costs.  Funds spent on direct Services (costs immediately 
associated with Services to Consumers being offered by Contractor) shall not 
include any Administrative Costs.  Administrative Costs, include, but are not 
limited to: 

a) Salaries, wages and employee benefits for managerial personnel whose 
primary purpose is administrative management of the entity, including, 
but not limited to, directors and chief executive officers; 

b) Salaries, wages and benefits of employees who perform administrative 
functions, including, but not limited to, payroll management, personnel 
functions, accounting, budgeting, and facility management; 

c) Facility and occupancy costs, directly associated with administrative 
functions; 

d) Maintenance and repair; 

e) Data processing and computer support services; 

f) Contract and procurement activities, except those provided by a direct 
service employee; 

g) Training directly associated with administrative functions; 

h) Travel directly associated with administrative functions; 

i) Licenses directly associated with administrative functions; 

j) Taxes; 

k) Interest; 

l) Property insurance; 

m) Personal liability insurance directly associated with administrative 
functions; 

n) Depreciation; and 

o) General expenses, including, but not limited to, communication costs and 
supplies directly associated with administrative functions. 

F. Payment in full.  In accordance with Section 54326(a)(12) of Title 17, Contractor shall 
accept payment by Center as payment in full for all materials, supplies, or Services 

Page 22 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 10 of 24 
 

provided by Contractor to Consumers.  Contractor shall not bill Center, the Consumer, 
Consumer’s parents, guardians, family, conservator, authorized representative, or any 
other person or agency, for a supplemental amount, regardless of the actual cost of 
providing the materials, supplies, or Services. 

G. Additional Requirements for Federal Funds.  If Federal Government funds are involved, 
Contractor shall comply with all Federal rules, including, but not limited to, the applicable 
sections of the Code of Federal Regulations. 

9. Record Preparation and Retention Obligation. 

A. Record Retention Requirement.  Contractor shall prepare and retain all service and 
program financial, accounting, administrative and Consumer-related information, 
including, but not limited to, complete service records, records related to Contractor’s 
rates, and all books, records, documents and other evidence related to and/or affecting 
performance of this Contract, the Services provided by Contractor, the billing or invoicing 
by Contractor, and Contractor’s income and expenses (“Contractor’s Records”), in 
accordance with Title 17, including, but not limited to, Section 50604(d) and (e), as 
applicable, (“Record Retention Requirement”). 

B. Record Retention Period.  The Record Retention Requirement shall apply for a period of 
no less than five (5) years following the date of the final payment for the State fiscal year 
in which Services were rendered by Contractor, provided however, that if an audit is in 
process, or an appeal of an audit is pending at the end of said timeframe, Contractor’s 
records shall be retained until all audit exceptions have been resolved (“Record Retention 
Period”).  Contractor shall retain all such records for the Record Retention Period in a 
separate and distinct location from any of Contractor’s records for non-Center 
Consumers. 

C. Additional Requirements for Financial Records.  Contractor shall maintain all financial 
records by consistently using a single method of accounting.  Financial records shall clearly 
reflect the nature and amounts of all costs and income.  All transactions for each month 
shall be entered into the financial records within thirty (30) days after the end of that 
month. 

10. Access to Contractor Records and Facilities. 

A. Access by Authorized Agencies.  Throughout the Term of this Contract, and during the 
Record Retention Period, Contractor shall permit DDS, Center and any other authorized 
agency representative of the California Department of Health Services and the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services when Federal Government funds are 
involved in the payment for Services (collectively, “Authorized Agencies”), access to all of 
Contractor’s Records, and any facilities belonging to, or used by Contractor pertaining to 
Services provided to persons with developmental disabilities (“Contractor’s Facilities”). 

B. Scope of Right of Access.  All of Contractor’s Records and Facilities shall be made 
immediately available to the Authorized Agencies for audit, review, examination, excerpt, 
reproduction, and/or making transcripts. 

C. Time for Access.  While the Authorized Agencies will endeavor to give twenty-four (24) 
hours’ notice prior to exercising their right of access, the rights of access described in this 
Section 10 shall not be limited by a requirement of prior notice.  Access without prior 
notice shall, however, be limited to situations where the Authorized Agency determines 
that the purpose of the access would be thwarted if advance notice were given (i.e. in 
cases of suspected fraud, imminent destruction of records or similar circumstances).  

Page 23 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 11 of 24 
 

Contractor shall permit the Authorized Agencies to access Contractor’s Records and 
Facilities at any time during Contractor’s normal business hours. 

11. Audits by Center.  Center may audit Contractor’s Records pursuant to Title 17, including, but not 
limited to, Section 50606, et seq.  Should the results of any audit by the Center or any other 
Authorized Agency result in a finding that any or all of the payments made by Center to Contractor 
were in error or were otherwise improper or disallowed based upon the terms of this Contract, 
Center’s contract with DDS, or as a result of any applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation, 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Title 17 relating to repayment and appeal of audit 
findings and/or recommendations.  Should Contractor elect to appeal any audit findings and/or 
recommendations, Contractor shall utilize and be bound by Sections 50700 et seq. of Title 17.  
Contractor shall accept financial liability for any audit findings and/or recommendations disclosed 
by an audit and promptly repay amounts owed unless the audit findings are appealed and 
liquidation is stayed pursuant to Section 50705 of Title 17. 

12. Audit or Review by Independent Accounting Firm.  Contractor shall contract with an independent 
accounting firm for an audit or review of Contractor’s financial statements, subject to the 
following: 

A. When the amount received by Contractor from Center and/or any other regional center, 
during each state fiscal year, is more than or equal to Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000), but less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), Contractor shall obtain an 
independent review report of its financial statements for the fiscal year that includes the 
last day of the most recent state fiscal year.  Consistent with Subchapter 21 (commencing 
with Section 58800) of Title 17, this requirement shall also apply to work activity program 
providers receiving less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000). 

B. When the amount received by Contractor from Center and/or any other regional center, 
during each state fiscal year, is equal to or more than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), 
Contractor shall obtain an independent audit of its financial statements for the fiscal year 
that includes the last day of the most recent state fiscal year. 

C. Independent review of financial statements must be performed by an independent 
accounting firm and shall cover, at a minimum, all of the following: 

1) An inquiry into Contractor’s accounting principles and practices and methods 
used in applying them; 

2) An inquiry into Contractor’s procedures for recording, classifying, and 
summarizing transactions and accumulating information; 

3) Analytical procedures designed to identify relationships or items that appear to 
be unusual; 

4) An inquiry about budgetary actions taken at meetings of the board of directors 
or other comparable meetings; 

5) An inquiry about whether the financial statements have been properly prepared 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and whether any 
events subsequent to the date of the financial statements would have a material 
effect on the statements under review; and 

6) Working papers prepared in connection with a review of financial statements 
describing items covered as well as any unusual items, including their disposition. 

D. Independent review report shall cover, at a minimum, all of the following: 

Page 24 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 12 of 24 
 

1) Certification that the review was performed in accordance with standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; 

2) Certification that the statements are the representations of management; 

3) Certification that the review consisted of inquiries and analytical procedures that 
are lesser in scope than those of an audit; and 

4) Certification that the accountant is not aware of any material modifications that 
need to be made to the statements for them to be in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

E. Contractor shall provide copies of the independent audit or independent review report 
and accompanying management letters to Center within thirty (30) days after completion 
of the audit or review.  Center shall review and require resolution by Contractor of issues 
identified in the report that have an impact on Center services.  Center shall take 
appropriate action, up to termination of vendorization, for lack of adequate resolution of 
issues.  Center shall notify DDS of all qualified opinion reports, or reports noting significant 
issues that directly or indirectly impact Center services, within thirty (30) days after 
receipt, which notification shall include a plan for resolution of the issues. 

F. The requirements of this Section 12 do not apply to payments made using usual and 
customary rates, as defined by Title 17 for services provided by regional centers, or to 
State and local government agencies, the University of California, or California State 
University. 

13. Disclosure of Survey Results.  Contractor shall provide Center with information obtained from 
surveys, questionnaires or other Consumer satisfaction tools relevant to Center’s Consumers 
within thirty (30) days of receiving the same.  Contractor shall meet with Center, upon request, to 
discuss the results of said surveys, questionnaires or other Consumer satisfaction tools, and shall 
work cooperatively with Center to address any identified areas of deficiency. 

14. Notices.  Any and all notices or other correspondence required to be sent to the Parties shall be 
deemed delivered when personally delivered or mailed via certified mail, return receipt 
requested, as follows: 

Center: Executive Director 
Valley Mountain Regional Center 
P.O. Box 692290 
Stockton, CA  95269-2290 

Contractor:  Johnny S. Ballelos 
Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
3537 W Benjamin Holt #5 
Stockton, CA 95219 
 

15. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws 
and regulations in providing Services, expressly including, but not limited to, Titles 17 and 22 of 
the California Code of Regulations, and the California Welfare and Institutions Code.  Contractor 
expressly acknowledges the applicability of the foregoing, and affirms that it and its employees, 
agents and everyone acting on Contractor’s behalf, have read and agree to abide by the same.  
Contractor shall comply with the Service Provider Accountability Regulations as set forth in 
Sections 50601 through 50612 of Title 17.  Although this Contract cites to particular laws and 
regulations, Contractor’s obligation to comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and 

Page 25 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 13 of 24 
 

regulations is not limited to the specific provisions cited herein.  Nothing in this Contract shall be 
construed as excusing compliance with any existing or future laws or regulations. 

16. Consumer Privacy & Confidentiality.  The Parties shall abide by all applicable Federal, State and 
local laws and regulations concerning privacy and confidentiality of Consumer records, including, 
but not limited to, W&I Code Section 4514. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 
agree to adhere to their responsibilities as “business associates” under the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), as amended, and regulations promulgated 
there under, including, but not limited to, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable 
Health Information at Section 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 160 and 164 (“Privacy 
Regulations”).  Accordingly, the Parties shall use Consumer health information only as needed to 
complete their responsibilities under this Contract and shall not use or disclose Consumer health 
information for any other purpose.  Further, the Parties shall implement and maintain adequate 
administrative, technical and physical safeguards to prevent improper use or disclosure of such 
Consumer health information. 

17. Compliance with Center Policy.  Contractor agrees to comply with all Center policies and 
procedures as they pertain to Contractor’s provision of Services to Center’s Consumers, the 
administration of payments to Contractor, contracts, financial matters, record keeping and 
retention, and audits.  All such policies and procedures are available for review by Contractor at 
Center’s office. 

18. Non-Discrimination. 

A. Provision of Services.  Contractor shall not discriminate in the provision of Services on the 
basis of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age or condition of physical or 
mental disability, or any other protected class.  Contractor shall comply with Title VII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d), as amended, rules and regulations 
promulgated pursuant thereto, and all Federal, State and local laws and regulations 
governing discrimination. 

B. Employment.  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment, and shall take action to ensure that employees and applicants are treated 
equally without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age or 
condition of physical or mental disability, or any other protected class. 

19. Effect of Legal History.  People (including individuals, partnerships, group associations, 
corporations, institutions, or entities, and the officers, directors, owners, managing employees or 
agents thereof) with the following legal histories, within the previous ten (10) years, shall be 
ineligible to be a Contractor or Contractor’s employee: 

A. People convicted of the following crimes: 

1) Any felony or misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse in any government program; 

2) Any felony or misdemeanor related to neglect or abuse of an elder or dependent 
adult or child; or  

3) Any felony or misdemeanor in connection with interference with, or obstruction 
of, any investigation into health care related fraud or abuse. 

B. People found liable for fraud or abuse in any civil proceeding. 

C. People that have entered into a settlement in lieu of conviction for fraud or abuse in any 
governmental program. 

Page 26 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 14 of 24 
 

20. Contractor Licensing.  Contractor affirms that it has obtained, and will maintain in good standing, 
all licenses and certificates required by all applicable Federal, State and local laws for the Services 
Contractor is providing.  Contractor shall disclose, in writing, any past, present or pending 
revocation, denial or adverse action against any of Contractor’s licenses or certificates within 
fifteen (15) days of receiving notice of such action. 

21. Contractor’s Affirmation Regarding Program-Related Documents.  Contractor affirms that all 
fiscal and Services program-related documentation that has been provided to Center, and that 
will be provided to Center in the future is, and will be complete, accurate, supported by records 
and source documentation, prepared in accordance with Center’s instruction, and available for 
inspection and audit by Center and DDS.  Contractor affirms its understanding that payments 
made by Center to Contractor pursuant to this Contract will come from Federal and/or State 
funds, and any falsification or concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under Federal 
and/or State laws. 

22. Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, Center, DDS and the 
State of California, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, 
expenses, damages, injuries, liability and causes of action, of any nature whatsoever (collectively, 
“Claims”), that in any way accrues or results to Contractor, Center, DDS or the State of California 
and/or any of their employees, agents, attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, 
materialmen, laborers or any other person, firm or entity that may be injured or damaged by any 
act, omission or negligence of Contractor and/or any of its employees, officers, directors, agents, 
or any person acting on Contractor’s behalf in the performance of this Contract.  This 
indemnification provision extends to include any and all costs or expenses, including, but not 
limited to, attorney’s fees and expert fees incurred by Center, DDS and the State of California as 
the result of any such Claims, and shall survive termination of this Contract. Contractor’s 
obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as described herein shall apply regardless of 
whether Contractor has acted negligently or intentionally. 

23. Insurance.  Contractor shall procure and maintain, at its own expense, throughout the term of 
this Contract, a policy of personal liability insurance in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000), under which Contractor shall name Center as an additional insured.  The “additional 
insured” portion of Contractor’s insurance policy shall include the following language: “Such 
insurance as is afforded by the endorsement of the additional insured shall apply as primary 
insurance.  Any other insurance maintained by Valley Mountain Regional Center, or its officers or 
employees, shall be in excess only, and shall not contribute to the insurance afforded by this 
endorsement.”  Contractor shall require its insurance company(ies) to notify Center of any 
renewal and/or cancellation of the insurance policy required by this Contract.  Copies of 
Contractor’s insurance policies and the required endorsements shall be provided to Center within 
five (5) calendar days after the insurance is obtained and after all renewals or cancellations of any 
policy.  Failure by Contractor to maintain the insurance policy required by this Contract shall 
constitute grounds for immediate termination of this Contract. 

24. No Agency or Employment Relationship.  Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create 
any type of agency or employment relationship between Center and Contractor.  Contractor, its 
employees, agents, attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, materialmen, laborers and any 
other person acting on Contractor’s behalf shall act in an independent capacity, as an independent 
contractor, and not as an officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California.  
Contractor, and all persons acting on Contractor’s behalf, shall not hold themselves out as, nor 
claim to be, an officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California as a result of 
this Contract, and shall not make any application, claim or demand for any right or privilege 
applicable to any officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California, including, 

Page 27 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 15 of 24 
 

but not limited to, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, worker’s compensation 
insurance, or retirement benefits. 

25. No Assignments.  This Contract, and the rights, duties and obligations described herein shall not 
be assigned.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor shall be permitted to factor or assign its 
accounts receivable from Center, if, and only if, such factoring or assignment is required in order 
to obtain equipment financing, and if, and only if, such factoring or assignment is not otherwise 
prohibited by law.  Any such factoring or assignment shall not be effective unless approved by 
Center, in writing, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

26. No Subcontracts.  The Services for which Contractor is Vendored shall not be subcontracted to 
any other person or entity, except pursuant to prior written consent of Center, and any such 
subcontracting shall be in accordance with Title 17. 

27. Breach or Default by Contractor.  In the event of Contractor’s breach or default under this 
Contract, Center shall be permitted to either give Contractor notice of the breach or default and 
a reasonable opportunity to remedy the same, or terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 4(B) 
hereof.  This Section 27 shall not prevent Contractor from pursuing any legal or appeal process 
set forth in Title 17, in which event this Contract shall remain in force until the legal or appeal 
process is completed.  If Contractor suffers any strike, walk-out or work stoppage by its 
employees, and as a result of such condition, is unable to continue to provide Services required 
herein for a period of fifteen (15) days, Center shall be entitled to procure the Services that 
Contractor is unable to provide from another vendor, and Contractor shall not be compensated 
for any such substituted service.  In such case, Center may, in its sole discretion, terminate this 
Contract and obtain a replacement for the Services for its Consumers. 

28. Excuse of Performance.  Neither Party shall be deemed in default of any of the provisions of this 
Contract in the event that the Party’s failure to perform is the result of an earthquake, flood or 
other act of God, fire, riot insurrection, commandeering of vehicles, material, equipment or 
facilities by the government, strike, labor dispute or work stoppage, or similar cause beyond the 
Party’s control, which renders performance impossible, when evidence thereof is presented to 
the other Party. 

29. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in relation to each and every provision of this 
Contract. 

30. Materiality of Each Provision.  Each and every provision, term and condition of this Contract is 
considered material to this Contract. 

31. Integration.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between the Parties, and replaces any 
prior representations, agreements or understandings, oral or written, that may have existed 
between the Parties.  The Parties agree that any modification or supplementation of this Contract 
shall be in writing, signed by the Parties’ respective representatives, and must refer specifically to 
this Contract and the provision(s) modified or supplemented.  No other modifications or 
supplements will be valid.  The execution of any modification or supplementation of this Contract 
shall comply with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. 

32. Governing Law.  This Contract, and any other documents to which it refers, shall in all respects be 
interpreted, enforced and governed by the laws of the State of California and the United States 
of America.  This Contract is specifically subject to restrictions, limitations and conditions enacted 
by the California Legislature, contained in the Annual Budget Act, and/or any contract between 
Center and DDS, and this Contract shall be modified by the Parties to the extent necessary to 
ensure compliance with the same. 

Page 28 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 16 of 24 
 

33. Mutual Drafting. This Contract shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and 
not strictly for or against any of the Parties.  The Parties acknowledge that this Contract 
documents a negotiated agreement and it shall not be construed or interpreted in favor of either 
Party due to the fact that one of the Party’s attorneys drafted this Contract. 

34. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is deemed invalid or unenforceable pursuant to the 
provisions set forth in Section 36, the unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remaining 
provisions of this Contract and the remaining provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

35. Section Headings.  Section headings used in this Contract are for convenience only, are not part 
of the Contract, and shall not affect any of the terms hereof. 

36. Resolution of Disputes.  Any and all disputes, controversies or claims arising out of or relating to 
this Contract shall be resolved pursuant to the grievance procedures set forth in Title 17, if 
applicable.  If the grievance procedures set forth in Title 17 do not apply to a dispute, or after 
exhausting the applicable grievance procedures set forth in Title 17, all remaining disputes, 
controversies or claims shall be settled by a mutually agreed upon arbitrator in accordance with 
the rules of the American Arbitration Association.  The arbitrator’s decision may be entered as a 
judgment in any court having jurisdiction or may be appealed to the Superior Court of California 
in and for the County of San Joaquin within thirty (30) days of issuance. 

37. Attorney’s Fees and Costs.  In the event of an appeal of an audit finding, hearing before the Office 
of Administrative Hearings, arbitration, or should either Party bring an action in law or equity, in 
which a Party incurs attorney’s fees to enforce the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party 
thereto may recover reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs incurred in connection therewith, 
including, but not limited to, fees for reasonably necessary expert witnesses. 

38. Exclusive Benefit.  This Contract, and each and every provision hereof, is for the exclusive benefit 
of the Parties hereof and not for the benefit of any third party. 

39. Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

40. Delivery by Facsimile or Electronic Mail.  Duly executed signatures to this Contract may be 
delivered by facsimile or electronic mail, and signature pages delivered by such method shall be 
deemed equivalent to and of the same force and effect as original signature pages. 

41. Successors and Assigns.  This Contract is binding on the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

42. Execution of Contract.  By signing this Contract, the Parties confirm that they have read this 
Contract, understand its contents, agree to its terms, have consulted with their respective 
attorneys, and are voluntarily entering into this Contract. The Parties warrant that the person 
signing on behalf of each Party is an authorized representative of that Party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 17 of 24 
 

Accepted and agreed to: 
Valley Mountain Regional Center 

 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________  

By: Anthony (Tony) Anderson 
Its: Executive Director 

 
 

Contractor 
Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC. dba JBallelos CIP 

 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________  

By: Johnny S. Ballelos 
Its: CEO 

 
 

Page 30 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 18 of 24 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SERVICES – HV0460 

Community Integration Training Program 
 
1. Contractor is vendored by Center pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 to provide “Community 

Integration Training Program – Service Code: 055. Service Description: A regional center shall 
classify a vendor as a Community Integration Training Program provider if the vendor provides 
community integration training that includes, but is not limited to, assistance with acquisition, 
retention, or improvement in self-help, socialization and adaptive skills which take place in a 
non-residential setting, separate from the home or facility in which the consumer resides. 
Services shall normally be furnished 6 or more hours per day on a regularly scheduled basis, for 
1 or more days per week unless provided as an adjunct to other day activities included in a 
consumer’s IPP.” 

2. Summary of Adult Day Services. In accordance with the all applicable federal and state laws and 
regulations, Contractor shall establish and provide services in accordance with the Title 17, 
Chapter 3, Sub Chapter 5 et seq., pertaining to Non-Residential Services, this Service Contract 
and Contractor’s approved Program Design. 

3. Additional Definitions: 

A. “Center-Based Environment” means within a day care facility or on the grounds of such 
a facility. 

B. “Community Integration Training Program” means a program that provides services to 
consumers on a daily or hourly basis to enable them to be present, to participate, and to 
interact in natural environments. 

C. “Direct Care Staff” means staff that personally provide hands-on training provided by 
the vendor in accordance with the requirements of consumers’ Individual Program Plan 
and the provisions of Title 17, Section 56722 of California Code of Regulations, and who 
are involved in program preparation functions in accordance with the provisions of Title 
17, Section 54302(a)(23). 

D. “Generic Agency” means any agency which has a legal responsibility to serve all 
members of the general public and which is receiving public funds for providing such 
services. 

E. “Natural Environments” means places and social contexts commonly used by individuals 
without disabilities. 

F. “Person Centered Planning” means an approach to determining, planning for, and 
working toward the preferred future of a person with developmental disabilities and her 
or his family. 

4. Specific Consumer Services. 

A. Contractor agrees to provide services in accordance with Contractor’s Program Design 
attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference. 

B. Contractor agrees to adhere to the Zero Tolerance Policy for Consumer Abuse or Neglect 
attached hereto as Exhibit D 

C. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor does not obtain by this Contract a guarantee 
and/or a vested right to have any particular consumer(s) and/or any number of 
consumers assigned, transferred or sent to Contractor under this Contract other than 

Page 31 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 19 of 24 
 

the number(s) specified in Section 1 of this Contract. Further, Contractor shall not limit 
and/or interfere with Center’s right under Title 17 regulations to secure for any 
consumer served by Contractor additional and/or alternative services which the 
consumer’s Planning Team has determined as needed. 

D. Center’s case management staff shall initiate referral of consumers to Contractor’s 
program of services through the Program Director or designated staff person. No 
services may be initiated by Contractor until it has received a duly executed 
Authorization to Purchase Services from Center or a signed letter from a Center 
manager authorizing the purchase of services. 

E. Contractor is to provide appropriate personnel and equipment to perform the services 
contracted for herein. 

1) Contractor will maintain an overall average staff-to-consumer ratio of no less 
than 1 direct-care staff to 3 consumers during the duration of program hours. 

2) CONTRACTOR agrees to operate its adult day program services no less than 6 
hours per program day unless otherwise specified in the Contractor’s program 
design (Exhibit C). 

3) Contractor agrees to follow IPP documentation requirements as stated in Title 
17, California Code of Regulations, Section 56720 and to provide such training to 
its staff as needed to assure adequacy of documentation. 

4) Contractor agrees to follow person centered planning philosophies as published 
by DDS for consumers receiving services, and to provide and/or procure such 
training as needed to ensure adequate staff participation in person centered 
planning. 

5) Contractor agrees to notify consumers, service coordinators, care providers, and 
other significant persons of annual review staffings in advance. Center agrees to 
notify Contractor of annual or IPP meetings in advance. 

F. Contractor agrees to maintain all equipment, facilities, grounds, supplies, buildings, or 
out buildings in safe condition. 

1) Any loss, damage or injury to persons or property which arises from the 
negligent maintenance or omission of the Contractor shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Contractor. Center shall in no way be held responsible for 
the inspection, maintenance, care, or selection of equipment, facilities, grounds, 
supplies, buildings, or out buildings. 

2) Contractor agrees that physical spaces owned, leased or otherwise controlled by 
Contractor, and utilized for facility-based instruction, shall be air-conditioned. 
Use of non-air-conditioned environments by the Contractor shall require prior 
written approval from Center. Use of generic or public facilities or automobiles 
outside the control of Contractor shall be exempt from this section. 

3) Contractor agrees that physical spaces owned, leased, or otherwise controlled 
by Contractor, and utilized for facility-based instruction, shall have adequate 
heating for the winter months. Use of generic or public facilities or automobiles 
outside the control of Contractor shall be exempt from this section. 

Page 32 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 20 of 24 
 

4) Contractor certifies that any center-based site used for these services is licensed 
in accordance with Title 22, Section 82000 of California Code of Regulations, if 
applicable. 

G. Contractor certifies that all direct care staff providing services under this Contract hold 
necessary certification and/or licenses required by Title 17, California Code of 
Regulations and/or Title 22, California Code of Regulations or other pertinent State or 
Federal regulations. 

1) Contractor agrees that all direct care staff providing services under this Contract 
shall be currently certified to provide first aid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation, 
and any other emergency services required by law or regulation. 

2) Contractor shall provide to all direct care staff providing services under this 
Contract a minimum of five (5) hours per year in-service training on the needs of 
developmentally disabled persons relevant to the accepted program design 
(Exhibit C). Center may assist in such in-service training if requested to do so by 
Contractor. Contractor shall provide to Center proof of in-service training upon 
request. 

H. Contractor agrees that all staff or volunteers having contact with consumers under this 
Contract will have cleared a fingerprint/background check that includes the Department 
of Justice prior to employment and contact with consumers. The Contractor will: 

1) Contractor shall require all staff providing Services having contact with 
Consumers under this Contract to have cleared a fingerprint /background check 
that includes the Department of Justice prior to having any contact with 
Consumers, and annually thereafter, unless clearance is sought through the 
Department of Social Services or the TrustLine Registry, which includes automatic 
checks for subsequent arrests.  Contractor shall provide Center, upon request, 
with proof of the fingerprint clearance. 

2) Contractor shall require individuals to submit references from prior employers 
and/or volunteer organizations.  Contractor shall verify the accuracy of these 
references and document the verification in the employee/volunteer personnel 
file. 

3) Contractor, within the scope of and direction of Contractor’s agency exclusively, 
agrees to develop, retain, and implement employment policies and programs to 
encourage and promote Contractor’s employee fitness during performance of 
service delivery tasks connected with the intended beneficiaries (Center’s 
consumers) within Contractor’s program design, California Code of Regulations 
Title 17 and Title 22 and Direct Support Professional requirements satisfying the 
principal purpose of “agreement” between Center and Contractor. 

I. Contractor shall submit to Center a Program Self-Evaluation of its effectiveness in 
relation to Title 17 Regulations, the Program Design, Service Contract and the 
consumer’s IPP at least ninety (90) days prior to expiration of this Contract. Center may 
verify the report by review of Contractor’s service records upon request. The annual 
review shall include: 

1) Aggregate data on the different types of Consumers needs encountered during 
service delivery; 

2) Outcomes in relation to the expectations identified in the Program Design; 

Page 33 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 21 of 24 
 

3) Outcomes in relation to the Consumer’s IPP; 

4) Percentage of staff who have current CPR and First Aid certifications; 

5) Percentage of staff who have current criminal records clearance; 

6) Percentage of staff who have completed staff orientation during the first two (2) 
weeks of employment; 

7) Percentage of staff who have received mandated abuse reporting for adults 
during the last year; 

8) Percentage of staff who have received five (5) hours of in-service training during 
the last year, including topics, trainer and date and time of training; 

9) Percentage of Special Incident Reports that were submitted within the required 
timeframes; 

10) Percentage of Semi-Annual Reports submitted within ten (10) working days 
after the end of each half-year; 

11) Goals for the next twelve (12) months based on the program evaluation 
findings. 

J. Contractor shall notify Consumers, Service Coordinators, care providers and all other 
people significant in the care of Consumers of annual staffing reviews at least thirty (30) 
days in advance of all such reviews. 

K. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the hiring, 
retention, training, licensure and certification of Direct Care Staff and personnel. 

L. Contractor shall inform Center of any investigation of Contractor or its staff, and any 
subsequent actions in which substance abuse or misuse or any crime against a person is 
alleged. 

5. Record Maintenance Requirements. 

A. Service providers shall maintain financial records which consistently use a single method 
of accounting. These financial records shall clearly reflect the nature and amounts of all 
costs and all income. All transactions for each month shall be entered into the financial 
records within 30 days after the end of that month and shall be available for the 
following purposes: 

1) To ensure that staffing schedules in conformance with staffing level 
requirements, if any, are supported by payroll records and source documents. 

2) To ensure that revenue and cost information are available to support 
administrative overhead. 

B. Contractor shall maintain complete service records to support all billing/invoicing for 
each regional center consumer in the program. 

C. Service records used to support Contractor’s billing/invoicing shall include, but not be 
limited to: 

1) Information identifying each regional center consumer including the Unique 
Consumer Identifier and consumer name; 

2) Documentation for each consumer reflecting the dates for program entrance 
and exit, if applicable, as authorized by a regional center. 

Page 34 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 22 of 24 
 

3) A record of services provided to each consumer including the dates of service, 
place where service was provided, the start and end times of service provided to 
the consumer, and the daily or hourly units of service provided. 

D. All Contractor’s records shall be supported by source documentation. Nothing specified 
in this section shall be construed as superseding other record maintenance 
requirements set forth in statute or regulation. 

 

  

Page 35 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 23 of 24 
 

EXHIBIT B 
RATE OF PAYMENT – HV0460 

Community Integration Training Program 
 
1. Center shall pay Contractor at the following rate: 

A. $83.94 per consumer per day of actual attendance. 

B. This rate shall constitute the total amount of compensation for Contractor’s 
performance of this Contract. 

2. $536,880 is the maximum amount which can be paid by Center to Contractor under this 
Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

3. Contractor attests that fiscal and program related documentation is complete, accurate to the 
best of Contractor’s knowledge, supported by records and source documentation, prepared in 
accordance with instructions provided by the Department and subject to audit. 

4. Both parties to this Contract have come to a full understanding and agreement of a specified 
method used to accumulate data contained in the Contractor’s documentation. Contractor 
attests that it utilizes said specified methods. 

5. Center has informed Contractor of the applicable and correct median rate for the services to be 
provided under this Contract. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 24 of 24 
 

EXHIBIT C 
PROGRAM DESIGN 

 
 

Page 37 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 24 of 24 
 

EXHIBIT D 
Zero Tolerance Policy for Consumer Abuse or Neglect 

 
 

1.0 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

 
Valley Mountain Regional Center (VMRC) has no tolerance for consumer abuse or neglect. Research 
studies document that individuals with developmental disabilities have a significantly higher risk of 
becoming the victims of abuse, neglect, or exploitation as compared to the non- disabled population. 
In an effort to ensure the health, safety, and security of VMRC consumers, our agency is committed to 
a “Zero Tolerance” standard for consumer abuse and neglect. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS 

 
Abuse includes, but is not limited to, physical abuse, neglect, financial abuse, abandonment, isolation, 
abduction, or other treatment which results in physical harm, pain or emotional/mental suffering, or 
deprivation, by a person providing care and supervision, of goods and services which are necessary 
to avoid physical harm or emotional/mental suffering further defined as follows: 

 
 Physical Abuse: Any act which results in non-accidental injury. The use or attempt to use 
force on the person of another, unreasonable physical constraint, prolonged or continual deprivation 
of food and water, chemical restraint, or psychotropic medication without medical authorization used 
for punishment. 

 Sexual Abuse: Any non-consenting sexual act or behavior. 

 Financial Abuse:  The illegal or unethical exploitation and/or use of a consumer’s funds, 
property, or other assets. 

 Neglect: The negligent failure of a person(s) having care or custody of a consumer to 

exercise a reasonable degree of care including, but not limited to, a failure to assist in personal 

hygiene and the provision of food, clothing, and shelter, or failure to provide medical care or protect 

the client from health and safety hazards including a medical diagnosis of failure to thrive. 

 Abandonment: The desertion of a consumer by someone who is a caregiver or has 

custody of the consumer under circumstances in which a reasonable person would continue to 

provide care and custody. 

 Abduction: The removal, without the consent of the consumer/conservator, of a 

consumer/conservatee to another state. 

 Isolation:  The intentional preventing of a consumer from receiving mail, telephone calls or 
visitors when contrary to the expressed wishes of the consumer. 

 Emotional Abuse/Mental Suffering: Fear, agitation, confusion, severe depression or other 

forms of emotional distress that is brought about by deprivation, threats, 
harassment, or other forms of intimidating behavior. 

 
3.0  PRINCIPALS, GUIDELINES 
VMRC and all of their service providers shall ensure employees are fully informed of VMRC’s Zero 
Tolerance Policy on Consumer Abuse and Neglect. 

 

Employees are to be fully informed of the policy upon hire and annually thereafter. Each 

employee must be knowledgeable of 

Page 38 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 24 of 24 
 

 
1) their responsibility to protect consumers from abuse and neglect, and 
2) the signs of abuse and neglect, and 
3) the process for reporting suspected abuse or neglect, and 
4) the consequences of failing to follow the law and enforcing this policy. 

 
“Reasonable suspicion” is the standard for reporting abuse and neglect.  All VMRC staff who are 
mandated reporters pursuant to the California Penal Code, and all employees of service providers and 
long-term care facilities who are mandated reporters will strictly comply with the reporting laws at all 
times.   A mandated reporter must (unless exempt under law) report all consumer abuse to the 
applicable governmental authorities immediately or as soon as practicable after his or her discovery or 
reasonable belief that consumer abuse has occurred. 

 
Consumer abuse committed by VMRC employees or employees of service providers or long- term 
care facilities will not be tolerated. All such abuse or allegations of such abuse will be thoroughly 
investigated.  Any VMRC employee found to have engaged in abuse against a consumer will be subject 
to severe discipline, up to and including termination. Any abuse found to have been committed by a 
service provider or long-term care facility employee will be referred  to  the  appropriate  authorities  and  
the  service  provider  may  also  be  subject  to sanctions up to and including devendorization which 
equates to removal from the list of those authorized to provide services for any and all regional center 
consumers. 

 

REPORTING PROCEDURES 

 
Suspected abuse must be reported immediately by calling the appropriate 24-hour hotline and 
followed by a written report within 2 days of receiving the information concerning the incident. 

 

If you suspect that a child is being abused, contact Child Protective Services: 
 

 San Joaquin County (209)468-1333 

 Stanislaus County (800)558-3665 

 Amador County (209)223-6550 or (209)223-1075 (After Hours) 

 Calaveras County (209)754-6452 or (209)754-6500 (After Hours) 

 Tuolumne County (209)533-5717 or (209)533-4357 (After Hours) 

 

If you suspect that an adult is being abused, contact Adult Protective Services: 
 

 San Joaquin County (209)468-2202 or (888)800-4800 

 Stanislaus County (800)336-4316 

 Amador County (209)223-6550 or (209)223-1075 (After Hours) 

 Calaveras County (209)754-6452 or (209)754-6500 (After Hours) 

 Tuolumne County (209)768-7753 or (209)533-HELP (4357) (After Hours) 

 
Ombudsman’s Offices: 
 

 San Joaquin (209)468-3785 

 Stanislaus (209)529-3784 

Page 39 of 147



Contractor: Johnny S. Ballelos, LLC 
Vendor No: HV0460 

Page: 24 of 24 
 

 Amador (209)532-7632 

 Calaveras (209)532-7632 

 Tuolumne (209)532-7632 

 
 
 

 

Page 40 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 1 of 27 
 

Valley Mountain Regional Center 
POS Independent Contractor Contract 

 
 This POS Independent Contractor Contract (“Contract”) is entered into this 1st day of October, 
2020, in the City of Stockton, County of San Joaquin, State of California, by and between Valley Mountain 
Regional Center, Inc. (“Center”) and Linden Grove, LLC (“Contractor”).  Each party to this Contract shall be 
referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”  This Contract shall be effective on and 
after the date in which both Parties sign it (“Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4648 of the California Welfare and Institutions Code (“W&I 
Code”), Center is authorized to, pursuant to Vendorization or a contract, purchase services or 
supports for its Consumers from any individual or agency which Center determines will best 
accomplish all or any part of its Consumers’ program plans; 

B. WHEREAS, Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations (“Title 17”) permits the establishment of 
service contracts for the provision of Vendored services; 

C. WHEREAS, Contractor is currently Vendored by Center to provide the Services described in Exhibit 
A for Center’s Consumers; 

D. WHEREAS, Center and Contractor desire to define the terms and conditions pursuant to which 
Contractor will provide the Services described in Exhibit A to Center’s Consumers; 

E. NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, including the promises and payments described 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Truth of Recitals and Representations. The Parties hereby acknowledge the truth of the Recitals 
set forth above, and agree that the facts recited are conclusively presumed to be true as between 
the Parties and their successors in interest pursuant to Section 622 of the California Evidence 
Code.  Contractor further affirms that all fiscal and other documentation submitted to Center in 
conjunction with the negotiation and preparation of this Contract, and Contractor’s 
Vendorization, is complete and accurate to the best of Contractor’s knowledge, supported by 
records and source documents, prepared in accordance with all instructions provided by Center 
and all applicable laws, and subject to review pursuant to any audit by Center, the State of 
California Department of Developmental Services, and/or any other agency of the State of 
California or the Federal Government, as permitted by law. 

2. Definitions.  The definitions set forth in the W&I Code and Title 17 shall apply to this Contract. 
The following terms, some of which are taken therefrom, are specifically utilized in this Contract. 

A. “Consumer” means an individual who has been determined by Center to meet the 
eligibility criteria of W&I Code Section 4512(a) and Sections 54000, 54001 and 54010 of 
Title 17, and for whom Center has accepted responsibility to provide services. 

B. “DDS” means the State of California Department of Developmental Services. 

C. “Individual Program Plan” or “IPP” means a written plan that is developed by Center’s 
Planning Team in accordance with the provisions of W&I Code Sections 4646 and 4646.5. 

Page 41 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 2 of 27 
 

D. “Individual Service Plan” or “ISP” means an individualized plan generated for each 
Consumer to detail exactly how to meet the goals set forth in the IPP. 

E. “Internal Grievance Procedure” means the written set of procedures, established 
pursuant to W&I Code Section 4705(a), a vendor uses to achieve the communication and 
resolution of Consumer dissatisfaction. 

F. “Planning Team,” also known as Interdisciplinary (ID) Team, means the group of persons 
convened in accordance with the W&I Code Section 4646 for the purpose of preparing a 
Consumer’s IPP. 

G. “Record” means any book, document, writing, whether tangible, or in an electronic 
format, evidencing operational, financial or service activities of a service provider such as 
Contractor, or Center, or pertaining to the service program and/or the provision of 
services to persons with developmental disabilities. 

H. “Service” means assistance provided and duties performed by a Vendor for a Consumer, 
as described in Exhibit A. 

I. “Service Coordinator” means the individual specified in W&I Code Section 4648(a) as the 
person with the responsibility for implementing, overseeing, and monitoring a 
Consumer’s IPP and for maintaining the Consumer’s case management or service 
coordination file. Service Coordinator is synonymous with Center case manager, 
counselor or client program coordinator. 

J. “Service Design,” also known as Program Design, means a written description of the 
service delivery capabilities and orientation developed, maintained, and implemented by 
a Vendor in compliance with the rules and regulations. 

K. “Special Incident Report” is the documentation prepared by Vendor staff or long-term 
health care facility staff detailing a special incident and provided to Center and 
appropriate law enforcement authorities. 

L. “Vendor” means an applicant which has been given a Vendor identification number and 
has completed the Vendorization process set forth in Section 54302, et seq. of Title 17. 

M. “Vendorization” means the process used to: 

1) Verify that an applicant meets all of the requirements and standards pursuant to 
Section 54320 of Title 17 prior to the provision of Services to Consumers; and, 

2) Assign Vendor identification numbers, service codes and sub-codes, for the 
purpose of identifying Vendor expenditures. 

3. Purpose of Contract.  The purpose of this Contract is to outline the obligations and duties of 
Contractor in providing the Services described in Exhibit A to Consumers and the means and 
process by which Contractor shall be compensated for said Services. 

4. Term of Contract. This Contract shall commence on the 1st day of October, 2020 
(“Commencement Date”), and shall terminate at midnight on the 30th day of September, 2021 
(“Termination Date”), unless renewed by the Parties, or terminated earlier, pursuant to the terms 
of this Contract.  Center shall not be required to compensate Contractor for Services performed 
by Contractor prior to Contractor’s receipt of a written Authorization to Purchase Services from 

Page 42 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 3 of 27 
 

Center or subsequent to termination of this Contract, and any Services performed subsequent to 
termination of this Contract shall not be construed as a renewal of this Contract. 

A. Automatic Renewal of Contract.  On the Termination Date, this Contract shall 
automatically renew for a one (1) year period (“Renewal Period”), on the same terms and 
conditions contained herein, including, but not limited to, the rate to be paid by Center 
for Contractor’s Services, unless:  (1) no later than sixty (60) days before the Termination 
Date, a Party gives written notice to the other Party of the intent to terminate the 
Contract on the Termination Date; or (2) this Contract is terminated pursuant to Section 
4(B) below.  If this Contract is automatically renewed pursuant to this Section, Center shall 
send a written confirmation to Contractor within thirty (30) days of the originally 
scheduled Termination Date.  This Contract can be renewed pursuant to this provision for 
a maximum of five (5) years from the original Commencement Date.  For automatic 
renewal to occur, the process set forth in this Section must be followed each year until 
this Contract is terminated.  Automatic renewal of this Contract for one (1) or more years 
does not guarantee renewal for any subsequent year.  If either Party desires to modify 
any of the terms of this Contract during a Renewal Period, that Party shall send a written 
request for a meeting to discuss the proposed modification(s).  Any modification to this 
Contract during the renewal process, or otherwise, shall be set forth in a written 
amendment signed by both Parties.  No oral representation by the Parties or their 
representatives shall be effective to renew this Contract. 

B. Early Termination of Contract by Center.  Center may terminate this Contract prior to the 
date set forth in this Section 4 should Center, DDS or the State of California determine 
that Contractor has failed to comply with any provision of this Contract, failed to comply 
with the written Authorization to Purchase Services, and/or failed to comply with any 
applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, those 
which govern the provision of Services to persons with developmental disabilities. Should 
Center, DDS or the State of California determine that termination of this Contract is 
appropriate, Center shall provide Contractor with a written notice of termination 
describing the reason for termination (“Center’s Notice of Termination”). This Contract 
shall be deemed terminated thirty (30) days following delivery of Center’s Notice of 
Termination (“Termination Date”).  Center’s Notice of Termination shall be deemed 
delivered on the date that it is either mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, 
or personally delivered to Contractor.  Termination may occur without notice, or with less 
than thirty (30) days’ notice, if Center determines that either:  the results of any 
evaluation of Contractor’s Service delivery warrant termination without notice or with 
notice of less than thirty (30) days, or Contractor’s Service delivery contributes to life-
threatening dangers to, or has resulted in abuse of, a Consumer. 

C. Early Termination of Contract by Contractor. Should Contractor determine that 
termination of this Contract is appropriate, Contractor shall provide Center with a notice 
of termination describing the reason for termination (“Contractor’s Notice of 
Termination”).  This Contract shall be deemed terminated thirty (30) days following 
delivery of Contractor’s Notice of Termination, unless Contractor specifies in its Notice of 
Termination that termination shall be effective at a later date (“Termination Date”). 
Contractor’s Notice of Termination shall be deemed delivered on the date that it is either 
mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, or personally delivered to Center. 

Page 43 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 4 of 27 
 

D. Termination of Contract by Either Party Without Cause.  Notwithstanding Sections 4(A), 
4(B) or 4(C) of this Contract, this Contract may be terminated by either Party without 
cause upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other Party, or as mutually agreed. 

E. No Payment for Services Performed After Termination Date.  On and after the 
Termination Date, Contractor shall not conduct any further activities under this Contract 
and Center’s obligation to pay Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall cease.  Any 
expenses incurred by Contractor following the Termination Date will not be reimbursed 
pursuant to this Contract.  If Contractor performed Services prior to the Termination Date 
that are reimbursable pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor shall deliver a 
final claim form within ten (10) business days of the Termination Date.  Center shall 
reimburse Contractor for those Services that were legitimately performed prior to the 
Termination Date. 

F. Compliance With Laws Upon Termination.  In the event of termination, Center and 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, W&I Code Sections 4502, 4646, 4646.4, 4648, 4710 and 
4741. 

5. Referral of Consumers.  Center’s case management staff may refer Consumers to Contractor, as 
it deems appropriate, through Contractor’s designee. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that 
Center is not obligated to refer any particular number of Consumers to Contractor, or any 
Consumers at all, and that this Contract is not intended to, nor shall it constitute a guarantee or 
vested right to have any particular Consumer, or any number of Consumers referred, assigned, 
transferred or sent to Contractor for Services.  Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that 
Center shall not be liable to Contractor, for any cause of action, in law or equity, including, but 
not limited to, breach of contract or breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, 
if Center does not refer, assign, transfer or send any particular Consumer, or any number of 
Consumers to Contractor for Services.  Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that it shall 
not interfere with or limit Center’s right under the W&I Code and Title 17 to secure for any 
Consumer served by Contractor, additional and/or alternative services which Center has 
determined are appropriate. 

6. Services.  Contractor shall provide Services in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
local laws or regulations, including but not limited to, Title 17 as it relates to the appropriate 
service type, in accordance with the Program Design attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit C, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, including Exhibits 
and/or documents referenced in this Contract.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of 
the Program Design and this Contract, the terms of this Contract shall govern.  The level of service 
provided by Contractor shall, at a minimum, be consistent with Contractor’s Program Design, any 
other program-related documentation relied upon by the Department as a basis for establishing 
rates of payment, and any applicable Federal, State and local laws or regulations. 

7. Contractor’s Duties. 

A. Authorization to Purchase Services Required.  Contractor may not initiate or provide any 
Services for Consumers until Center has issued a duly executed Authorization to Purchase 
Services. 

Page 44 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 5 of 27 
 

B. Special Incident Reporting Requirements. 

1) Contractor shall report any and all Special or Unusual Incidents pursuant to 
Section 54327 of Title 17, including, but not limited to: 

a) The Consumer is missing and Contractor or long-term health care facility 
has filed a missing persons report with a law enforcement agency; 

b) Reasonably suspected abuse/exploitation, including: physical, sexual, 
fiduciary, emotional/mental, or physical and/or chemical restraint; 

c) Reasonably suspected neglect, including failure to:  provide medical care 
for physical and mental health needs; prevent malnutrition or 
dehydration, protect from health and safety hazards, failure to assist in 
personal hygiene or the provision of food, clothing, or shelter, or exercise 
the degree of care that a reasonable person would exercise in the 
position of having the care and custody of a dependent adult; 

d) Serious injury or accident, including: lacerations requiring sutures or 
staples, puncture wounds requiring medical treatment beyond first aid, 
fractures, dislocations, bites that break the skin and require medical 
treatment beyond first aid, internal bleeding requiring treatment beyond 
first aid, any medication errors, medication reactions that require 
medical treatment beyond first aid, and burns that require medical 
treatment beyond first aid; 

e) Any unplanned or unscheduled hospitalization due to the following 
conditions:  respiratory illness, seizure-related, cardiac-related, internal 
infection, diabetes, including diabetes-related complications, 
wound/skin care, nutritional deficiencies, or involuntary psychiatric 
admission; 

f) The death of any Consumer, regardless of cause and regardless of when 
or where it occurred; and 

g) The victimization of a Consumer of the following crimes: robbery, 
aggravated assault, larceny, burglary, and rape/attempted rape, 
regardless of when or where such an incident occurred. 

2) Special Incident Reports shall be made to the appropriate law enforcement 
authorities and to Center, via telephone, electronic mail or facsimile, immediately 
upon discovery of the incident, and under no circumstances shall said reporting 
occur more than twenty-four (24) hours after an incident occurred, was 
discovered, or was suspected, whichever is earliest.  Notification to the assigned 
Service Coordinator, the Officer of the Day, or the After Hours Response Team, 
as identified by the Special Projects Unit of Center, shall satisfy the initial 
reporting requirement. 

3) Thereafter, within forty-eight (48) hours after the alleged incident occurred, was 
discovered, or suspected, whichever is earliest, Contractor shall provide Center 
with a written report describing the alleged incident and Contractor’s response 
thereto.  Failure to report any such incident to the appropriate law enforcement 

Page 45 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 6 of 27 
 

authorities and to Center, and/or failure to provide the required written report, 
shall constitute a distinct and separate ground for automatic termination of this 
Contract, notice of which shall be served personally or via certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to Contractor. 

4) Written reports of incidents shall include all relevant information, including, but 
not limited to: 

a) Contractor’s name, address and telephone number; 

b) Date, time and location of the incident; 

c) Name(s) and date(s) of birth, and UCI Number(s) of each Consumer 
involved in the incident and the name, address and phone number of the 
Consumer’s family member(s) or authorized representative(s); 

d) The name, address and phone number of the Consumer’s family 
member(s) or authorized representative(s) who were contacted and 
informed of the incident; 

e) Description of the incident; 

f) Description of the alleged perpetrator(s) of the incident, including, but 
not limited to, name, age, height, weight, address, phone number, 
occupation, and relationship to Consumer; 

g) Treatment provided to Consumer, if any; 

h) Identification of potential witnesses, including, but not limited to, name, 
address, telephone number and context of witnessing the incident; 

i) Identity of all law enforcement, licensing, protective services and/or 
other agencies or individuals notified of the incident, or otherwise 
involved in the incident; 

j) Action(s) taken by Contractor, law enforcement, licensing, protective 
services and/or other agencies or individuals in response to the incident; 
and 

k) Dated signature of the person creating the written report on behalf of 
Contractor. 

5) Failure to Report.  Failure to report any of the foregoing incidents to the 
appropriate law enforcement authorities and to Center, and/or failure to provide 
the required written report, shall constitute a distinct and separate ground for 
automatic termination of this Contract, notice of which shall be served personally 
or via certified mail, return receipt requested, to Contractor. 

C. Compliance with IPP.  Contractor shall follow IPP documentation requirements as set 
forth in Section 56720 of Title 17 and W&I Code Section 4648 and shall properly train all 
staff as necessary to ensure the adequacy of said documentation.  All Services rendered 
by Contractor shall be in furtherance of the IPP.  Contractor shall not render Services that 
are not called for in the IPP.  Center shall notify Contractor of annual IPP meetings at least 
five (5) days in advance of all such meetings, unless the Consumer or their legally 
authorized representative asks that the Contractor not be at the meeting. 

Page 46 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 7 of 27 
 

D. Developing ISPs.  Contractor agrees to follow “person centered planning philosophies,” 
as published by DDS, in developing ISPs for Consumers and/or to procure such training as 
is necessary to ensure adequate staff participation in person centered planning. 

E. Use of Public or Generic Resources.  Regional centers are required to use generic services 
when available.  Contractor understands and agrees that if a Consumer or Consumer’s 
authorized representative chooses not to access available generic services (e.g. IHSS, 
Medi-Cal, public school, California Children's Service), Center will not be able to pay for 
the service.  Contractor shall utilize, to the fullest extent feasible, those public resources 
which are available without additional cost to Contractor and which will enhance the 
quality of Services provided to those Consumers who can benefit from the use of such 
resources. 

F. Grievance Reports / Complaints.  Contractor shall establish, adopt and periodically review 
a written Internal Grievance Procedure under which Consumers, or their authorized 
representatives or advocates may file complaints to address their grievances and by 
which Contractor shall resolve grievances pursuant to W&I Code Section 4705. 

G. Abuse Reporting Training.  Contractor shall train all staff regarding legally mandated 
abuse reporting requirements prior to the employee’s provision of Services to Consumers 
and annually thereafter. 

H. Staff Background Checks. 

1) Contractor shall require all staff providing Services having contact with 
Consumers under this Contract to have cleared a fingerprint /background check 
that includes the Department of Justice prior to having any contact with 
Consumers, and annually thereafter, unless clearance is sought through the 
Department of Social Services or the TrustLine Registry, which includes automatic 
checks for subsequent arrests.  Contractor shall provide Center, upon request, 
with proof of the fingerprint clearance. 

2) Contractor shall require individuals to submit references from prior employers 
and/or volunteer organizations.  Contractor shall verify the accuracy of these 
references and document the verification in the employee/volunteer personnel 
file. 

3) Contractor, within the scope of and direction of Contractor’s agency exclusively, 
agrees to develop, retain, and implement employment policies and programs to 
encourage and promote Contractor’s employee fitness during performance of 
service delivery tasks connected with the intended beneficiaries (Center’s 
consumers) within Contractor’s program design, California Code of Regulations 
Title 17 and Title 22 and Direct Support Professional requirements satisfying the 
principal purpose of “agreement” between Center and Contractor. 

8. Payment for Services.  The Parties fully understand and agree that payment under this Contract 
is dependent upon available Federal and/or State funding.  Contractor expressly acknowledges 
that the State and/or Federal Government may, from time to time during the Term of this 
Contract, require changes to the rate of payment that Center pays Contractor.  Accordingly, 
Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that adjustments to the rate of payment described 
herein may be made by Center.  Center will notify Contractor, in writing, of any such adjustments 

Page 47 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 8 of 27 
 

to the rate of payment and of the effective date of any adjustment.  Contractor expressly 
understands and agrees that Contractor shall have no right to object to any such adjustments and 
that any such adjustments shall not give rise to any cause of action, in law or equity, against 
Center.  In the event that Center is not allocated any funds for the Services referenced in this 
Contract, this Contract shall be null and void and of no further force and effect, in which event, 
Center shall have no obligation to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor, or to furnish any other 
consideration under this Contract, and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform pursuant to 
this Contract.  Payment to Contractor shall only be made according to the following terms: 

A. Reliance on Authorization to Purchase Services. All payments shall be made in accordance 
with the Authorization to Purchase Services provided to Contractor by Center.  Payments 
shall not be made based upon oral authorization to provide services. 

B. Rate of Payment. 

1) The rate paid to Contactor by Center shall be cost effective to the State of 
California. 

2) Contractor shall not charge Center a rate for Services to Consumers that is more 
than Contractor would charge, or is charging, for any other purchase of the same 
or substantially similar service. 

3) Center shall pay Contractor at the rate described in Exhibit B which shall 
constitute the total amount of compensation for Contractor’s performance of this 
Contract. 

4) Contractor also understands and agrees that the maximum amount described in 
Exhibit B is the highest total amount which can be paid by Center to Contractor 
under this Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties.  
Contractor further understands and agrees that if the maximum amount 
described in Exhibit B is exceeded, this Contract is not valid unless and until it is 
approved by Center’s Governing Board.  Nothing in this Contract shall be deemed 
to guarantee that Contractor will receive the maximum amount of compensation 
provided for in Exhibit B, or any compensation at all, as Center cannot guarantee 
the amount of Services that Contractor will be asked to provide for Consumers. 

C. Payment in Arrears.  Center shall pay Contractor in arrears for Services provided in the 
previous calendar month. 

1) Claim Form. Contractor shall bill Center, on a monthly basis, for Services provided 
in the previous month by submitting to Center a completed and signed claim form 
in the format provided by Center, or electronically.  Contractors who submit their 
claim forms electronically shall retain all supporting and required source 
documentation.  All other contractors shall submit all supporting and required 
source documentation with their claim forms.  The supporting and required 
source documentation shall include, at a minimum, the information required by 
Section 50604(d) of Title 17. 

2) Certification.  For each claim form submitted, Contractor shall certify under 
penalty of perjury: 

Page 48 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 9 of 27 
 

a) All services for which Contractor is seeking payment have been provided 
to Center consumers by Contractor; and 

b) All information submitted to Center along with the claim form is accurate 
and complete. 

3) Time for Submittal of Claim Form.  Claim forms, and supporting and required 
source documentation, if applicable, shall be submitted to Center on or before 
the tenth (10th) day of each month.  Contractor understands that at the very 
latest, Contractor must submit a claim for reimbursement for all Services 
performed within ninety (90) days of the actual date of service.  On each claim 
form, Contractor shall certify that all Services for which Contractor seeks 
reimbursement were performed within ninety (90) days of submittal of the claim 
form.  Contractor further understands and agrees that it shall not be paid by 
Center for any Services that were performed more than ninety (90) days before 
submittal of a claim form for the Services. 

D. Date for Payment by Center.  On or before the twenty-fifth (25th) of each month, Center 
shall pay Contractor according to the information provided in each claim form. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Center shall have no obligation to pay Contractor: if 
Contractor fails to provide supporting and required source documentation for each claim 
form submitted to Center on or before the 10th of the month, or fails to make such 
information available in the case of electronic billing; if Center disputes any item 
submitted by Contractor in conjunction with a claim form; or if the claim form is 
inconsistent with the Authorization to Purchase Services provided to Contractor by 
Center. 

E. Limitations on Payment. 

1) Center’s obligation to pay for Services under this Contract arises only when 
Contractor has provided the Services fully and satisfactorily in accordance with 
the terms of this Contract. 

2) Payments by Center to Contractor shall not be used to supplant the budget of any 
agency which has a legal responsibility to serve all members of the general public 
and is receiving public funds for providing those Services.  Nor shall payments by 
Center to Contractor be used to supplement the rate of payment Contractor is 
receiving from any agency for Services provided to a Consumer. 

3) No more than fifteen percent (15%) of Center funds shall be spent by Contractor 
on Administrative Costs.  Funds spent on direct Services (costs immediately 
associated with Services to Consumers being offered by Contractor) shall not 
include any Administrative Costs.  Administrative Costs, include, but are not 
limited to: 

a) Salaries, wages and employee benefits for managerial personnel whose 
primary purpose is administrative management of the entity, including, 
but not limited to, directors and chief executive officers; 

b) Salaries, wages and benefits of employees who perform administrative 
functions, including, but not limited to, payroll management, personnel 
functions, accounting, budgeting, and facility management; 

Page 49 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 10 of 27 
 

c) Facility and occupancy costs, directly associated with administrative 
functions; 

d) Maintenance and repair; 

e) Data processing and computer support services; 

f) Contract and procurement activities, except those provided by a direct 
service employee; 

g) Training directly associated with administrative functions; 

h) Travel directly associated with administrative functions; 

i) Licenses directly associated with administrative functions; 

j) Taxes; 

k) Interest; 

l) Property insurance; 

m) Personal liability insurance directly associated with administrative 
functions; 

n) Depreciation; and 

o) General expenses, including, but not limited to, communication costs and 
supplies directly associated with administrative functions. 

F. Payment in full.  In accordance with Section 54326(a)(12) of Title 17, Contractor shall 
accept payment by Center as payment in full for all materials, supplies, or Services 
provided by Contractor to Consumers.  Contractor shall not bill Center, the Consumer, 
Consumer’s parents, guardians, family, conservator, authorized representative, or any 
other person or agency, for a supplemental amount, regardless of the actual cost of 
providing the materials, supplies, or Services. 

G. Additional Requirements for Federal Funds.  If Federal Government funds are involved, 
Contractor shall comply with all Federal rules, including, but not limited to, the applicable 
sections of the Code of Federal Regulations. 

9. Record Preparation and Retention Obligation. 

A. Record Retention Requirement.  Contractor shall prepare and retain all service and 
program financial, accounting, administrative and Consumer-related information, 
including, but not limited to, complete service records, records related to Contractor’s 
rates, and all books, records, documents and other evidence related to and/or affecting 
performance of this Contract, the Services provided by Contractor, the billing or invoicing 
by Contractor, and Contractor’s income and expenses (“Contractor’s Records”), in 
accordance with Title 17, including, but not limited to, Section 50604(d) and (e), as 
applicable, (“Record Retention Requirement”). 

B. Record Retention Period.  The Record Retention Requirement shall apply for a period of 
no less than five (5) years following the date of the final payment for the State fiscal year 
in which Services were rendered by Contractor, provided however, that if an audit is in 
process, or an appeal of an audit is pending at the end of said timeframe, Contractor’s 

Page 50 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 11 of 27 
 

records shall be retained until all audit exceptions have been resolved (“Record Retention 
Period”).  Contractor shall retain all such records for the Record Retention Period in a 
separate and distinct location from any of Contractor’s records for non-Center 
Consumers. 

C. Additional Requirements for Financial Records.  Contractor shall maintain all financial 
records by consistently using a single method of accounting.  Financial records shall clearly 
reflect the nature and amounts of all costs and income.  All transactions for each month 
shall be entered into the financial records within thirty (30) days after the end of that 
month. 

10. Access to Contractor Records and Facilities. 

A. Access by Authorized Agencies.  Throughout the Term of this Contract, and during the 
Record Retention Period, Contractor shall permit DDS, Center and any other authorized 
agency representative of the California Department of Health Services and the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services when Federal Government funds are 
involved in the payment for Services (collectively, “Authorized Agencies”), access to all of 
Contractor’s Records, and any facilities belonging to, or used by Contractor pertaining to 
Services provided to persons with developmental disabilities (“Contractor’s Facilities”). 

B. Scope of Right of Access.  All of Contractor’s Records and Facilities shall be made 
immediately available to the Authorized Agencies for audit, review, examination, excerpt, 
reproduction, and/or making transcripts. 

C. Time for Access.  While the Authorized Agencies will endeavor to give twenty-four (24) 
hours’ notice prior to exercising their right of access, the rights of access described in this 
Section 10 shall not be limited by a requirement of prior notice.  Access without prior 
notice shall, however, be limited to situations where the Authorized Agency determines 
that the purpose of the access would be thwarted if advance notice were given (i.e. in 
cases of suspected fraud, imminent destruction of records or similar circumstances).  
Contractor shall permit the Authorized Agencies to access Contractor’s Records and 
Facilities at any time during Contractor’s normal business hours. 

11. Audits by Center.  Center may audit Contractor’s Records pursuant to Title 17, including, but not 
limited to, Section 50606, et seq.  Should the results of any audit by the Center or any other 
Authorized Agency result in a finding that any or all of the payments made by Center to Contractor 
were in error or were otherwise improper or disallowed based upon the terms of this Contract, 
Center’s contract with DDS, or as a result of any applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation, 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Title 17 relating to repayment and appeal of audit 
findings and/or recommendations.  Should Contractor elect to appeal any audit findings and/or 
recommendations, Contractor shall utilize and be bound by Sections 50700 et seq. of Title 17.  
Contractor shall accept financial liability for any audit findings and/or recommendations disclosed 
by an audit and promptly repay amounts owed unless the audit findings are appealed and 
liquidation is stayed pursuant to Section 50705 of Title 17. 

12. Audit or Review by Independent Accounting Firm.  Contractor shall contract with an independent 
accounting firm for an audit or review of Contractor’s financial statements, subject to the 
following: 

Page 51 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 12 of 27 
 

A. When the amount received by Contractor from Center and/or any other regional center, 
during each state fiscal year, is more than or equal to Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000), but less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), Contractor shall obtain an 
independent review report of its financial statements for the fiscal year that includes the 
last day of the most recent state fiscal year.  Consistent with Subchapter 21 (commencing 
with Section 58800) of Title 17, this requirement shall also apply to work activity program 
providers receiving less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000). 

B. When the amount received by Contractor from Center and/or any other regional center, 
during each state fiscal year, is equal to or more than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), 
Contractor shall obtain an independent audit of its financial statements for the fiscal year 
that includes the last day of the most recent state fiscal year. 

C. Independent review of financial statements must be performed by an independent 
accounting firm and shall cover, at a minimum, all of the following: 

1) An inquiry into Contractor’s accounting principles and practices and methods 
used in applying them; 

2) An inquiry into Contractor’s procedures for recording, classifying, and 
summarizing transactions and accumulating information; 

3) Analytical procedures designed to identify relationships or items that appear to 
be unusual; 

4) An inquiry about budgetary actions taken at meetings of the board of directors 
or other comparable meetings; 

5) An inquiry about whether the financial statements have been properly prepared 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and whether any 
events subsequent to the date of the financial statements would have a material 
effect on the statements under review; and 

6) Working papers prepared in connection with a review of financial statements 
describing items covered as well as any unusual items, including their disposition. 

D. Independent review report shall cover, at a minimum, all of the following: 

1) Certification that the review was performed in accordance with standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; 

2) Certification that the statements are the representations of management; 

3) Certification that the review consisted of inquiries and analytical procedures that 
are lesser in scope than those of an audit; and 

4) Certification that the accountant is not aware of any material modifications that 
need to be made to the statements for them to be in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

E. Contractor shall provide copies of the independent audit or independent review report 
and accompanying management letters to Center within thirty (30) days after completion 
of the audit or review.  Center shall review and require resolution by Contractor of issues 
identified in the report that have an impact on Center services.  Center shall take 
appropriate action, up to termination of vendorization, for lack of adequate resolution of 

Page 52 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 13 of 27 
 

issues.  Center shall notify DDS of all qualified opinion reports, or reports noting significant 
issues that directly or indirectly impact Center services, within thirty (30) days after 
receipt, which notification shall include a plan for resolution of the issues. 

F. The requirements of this Section 12 do not apply to payments made using usual and 
customary rates, as defined by Title 17 for services provided by regional centers, or to 
State and local government agencies, the University of California, or California State 
University. 

13. Disclosure of Survey Results.  Contractor shall provide Center with information obtained from 
surveys, questionnaires or other Consumer satisfaction tools relevant to Center’s Consumers 
within thirty (30) days of receiving the same.  Contractor shall meet with Center, upon request, to 
discuss the results of said surveys, questionnaires or other Consumer satisfaction tools, and shall 
work cooperatively with Center to address any identified areas of deficiency. 

14. Notices.  Any and all notices or other correspondence required to be sent to the Parties shall be 
deemed delivered when personally delivered or mailed via certified mail, return receipt 
requested, as follows: 

Center: Executive Director 
Valley Mountain Regional Center 
P.O. Box 692290 
Stockton, CA  95269-2290 

Contractor: Steve Cambell 
Linden Grove, LLC 
10429 Carnegie Court 
Stockton, CA  95209 

15. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws 
and regulations in providing Services, expressly including, but not limited to, Titles 17 and 22 of 
the California Code of Regulations, and the California Welfare and Institutions Code.  Contractor 
expressly acknowledges the applicability of the foregoing, and affirms that it and its employees, 
agents and everyone acting on Contractor’s behalf, have read and agree to abide by the same.  
Contractor shall comply with the Service Provider Accountability Regulations as set forth in 
Sections 50601 through 50612 of Title 17.  Although this Contract cites to particular laws and 
regulations, Contractor’s obligation to comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and 
regulations is not limited to the specific provisions cited herein.  Nothing in this Contract shall be 
construed as excusing compliance with any existing or future laws or regulations. 

16. Consumer Privacy & Confidentiality.  The Parties shall abide by all applicable Federal, State and 
local laws and regulations concerning privacy and confidentiality of Consumer records, including, 
but not limited to, W&I Code Section 4514. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 
agree to adhere to their responsibilities as “business associates” under the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), as amended, and regulations promulgated 
there under, including, but not limited to, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable 
Health Information at Section 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 160 and 164 (“Privacy 
Regulations”).  Accordingly, the Parties shall use Consumer health information only as needed to 
complete their responsibilities under this Contract and shall not use or disclose Consumer health 
information for any other purpose.  Further, the Parties shall implement and maintain adequate 

Page 53 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 14 of 27 
 

administrative, technical and physical safeguards to prevent improper use or disclosure of such 
Consumer health information. 

17. Compliance with Center Policy.  Contractor agrees to comply with all Center policies and 
procedures as they pertain to Contractor’s provision of Services to Center’s Consumers, the 
administration of payments to Contractor, contracts, financial matters, record keeping and 
retention, and audits.  All such policies and procedures are available for review by Contractor at 
Center’s office. 

18. Non-Discrimination. 

A. Provision of Services.  Contractor shall not discriminate in the provision of Services on the 
basis of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age or condition of physical or 
mental disability, or any other protected class.  Contractor shall comply with Title VII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d), as amended, rules and regulations 
promulgated pursuant thereto, and all Federal, State and local laws and regulations 
governing discrimination. 

B. Employment.  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment, and shall take action to ensure that employees and applicants are treated 
equally without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age or 
condition of physical or mental disability, or any other protected class. 

19. Effect of Legal History.  People (including individuals, partnerships, group associations, 
corporations, institutions, or entities, and the officers, directors, owners, managing employees or 
agents thereof) with the following legal histories, within the previous ten (10) years, shall be 
ineligible to be a Contractor or Contractor’s employee: 

A. People convicted of the following crimes: 

1) Any felony or misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse in any government program; 

2) Any felony or misdemeanor related to neglect or abuse of an elder or dependent 
adult or child; or  

3) Any felony or misdemeanor in connection with interference with, or obstruction 
of, any investigation into health care related fraud or abuse. 

B. People found liable for fraud or abuse in any civil proceeding. 

C. People that have entered into a settlement in lieu of conviction for fraud or abuse in any 
governmental program. 

20. Contractor Licensing.  Contractor affirms that it has obtained, and will maintain in good standing, 
all licenses and certificates required by all applicable Federal, State and local laws for the Services 
Contractor is providing.  Contractor shall disclose, in writing, any past, present or pending 
revocation, denial or adverse action against any of Contractor’s licenses or certificates within 
fifteen (15) days of receiving notice of such action. 

21. Contractor’s Affirmation Regarding Program-Related Documents.  Contractor affirms that all 
fiscal and Services program-related documentation that has been provided to Center, and that 
will be provided to Center in the future is, and will be complete, accurate, supported by records 
and source documentation, prepared in accordance with Center’s instruction, and available for 
inspection and audit by Center and DDS.  Contractor affirms its understanding that payments 

Page 54 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 15 of 27 
 

made by Center to Contractor pursuant to this Contract will come from Federal and/or State 
funds, and any falsification or concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under Federal 
and/or State laws. 

22. Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, Center, DDS and the 
State of California, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, 
expenses, damages, injuries, liability and causes of action, of any nature whatsoever (collectively, 
“Claims”), that in any way accrues or results to Contractor, Center, DDS or the State of California 
and/or any of their employees, agents, attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, 
materialmen, laborers or any other person, firm or entity that may be injured or damaged by any 
act, omission or negligence of Contractor and/or any of its employees, officers, directors, agents, 
or any person acting on Contractor’s behalf in the performance of this Contract.  This 
indemnification provision extends to include any and all costs or expenses, including, but not 
limited to, attorney’s fees and expert fees incurred by Center, DDS and the State of California as 
the result of any such Claims, and shall survive termination of this Contract. Contractor’s 
obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as described herein shall apply regardless of 
whether Contractor has acted negligently or intentionally. 

23. Insurance.  Contractor shall procure and maintain, at its own expense, throughout the term of 
this Contract, a policy of personal liability insurance in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000), under which Contractor shall name Center as an additional insured.  The “additional 
insured” portion of Contractor’s insurance policy shall include the following language: “Such 
insurance as is afforded by the endorsement of the additional insured shall apply as primary 
insurance.  Any other insurance maintained by Valley Mountain Regional Center, or its officers or 
employees, shall be in excess only, and shall not contribute to the insurance afforded by this 
endorsement.”  Contractor shall require its insurance company(ies) to notify Center of any 
renewal and/or cancellation of the insurance policy required by this Contract.  Copies of 
Contractor’s insurance policies and the required endorsements shall be provided to Center within 
five (5) calendar days after the insurance is obtained and after all renewals or cancellations of any 
policy.  Failure by Contractor to maintain the insurance policy required by this Contract shall 
constitute grounds for immediate termination of this Contract. 

24. No Agency or Employment Relationship.  Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create 
any type of agency or employment relationship between Center and Contractor.  Contractor, its 
employees, agents, attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, materialmen, laborers and any 
other person acting on Contractor’s behalf shall act in an independent capacity, as an independent 
contractor, and not as an officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California.  
Contractor, and all persons acting on Contractor’s behalf, shall not hold themselves out as, nor 
claim to be, an officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California as a result of 
this Contract, and shall not make any application, claim or demand for any right or privilege 
applicable to any officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California, including, 
but not limited to, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, worker’s compensation 
insurance, or retirement benefits. 

25. No Assignments.  This Contract, and the rights, duties and obligations described herein shall not 
be assigned.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor shall be permitted to factor or assign its 
accounts receivable from Center, if, and only if, such factoring or assignment is required in order 
to obtain equipment financing, and if, and only if, such factoring or assignment is not otherwise 

Page 55 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 16 of 27 
 

prohibited by law.  Any such factoring or assignment shall not be effective unless approved by 
Center, in writing, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

26. No Subcontracts.  The Services for which Contractor is Vendored shall not be subcontracted to 
any other person or entity, except pursuant to prior written consent of Center, and any such 
subcontracting shall be in accordance with Title 17. 

27. Breach or Default by Contractor.  In the event of Contractor’s breach or default under this 
Contract, Center shall be permitted to either give Contractor notice of the breach or default and 
a reasonable opportunity to remedy the same, or terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 4(B) 
hereof.  This Section 27 shall not prevent Contractor from pursuing any legal or appeal process 
set forth in Title 17, in which event this Contract shall remain in force until the legal or appeal 
process is completed.  If Contractor suffers any strike, walk-out or work stoppage by its 
employees, and as a result of such condition, is unable to continue to provide Services required 
herein for a period of fifteen (15) days, Center shall be entitled to procure the Services that 
Contractor is unable to provide from another vendor, and Contractor shall not be compensated 
for any such substituted service.  In such case, Center may, in its sole discretion, terminate this 
Contract and obtain a replacement for the Services for its Consumers. 

28. Excuse of Performance.  Neither Party shall be deemed in default of any of the provisions of this 
Contract in the event that the Party’s failure to perform is the result of an earthquake, flood or 
other act of God, fire, riot insurrection, commandeering of vehicles, material, equipment or 
facilities by the government, strike, labor dispute or work stoppage, or similar cause beyond the 
Party’s control, which renders performance impossible, when evidence thereof is presented to 
the other Party. 

29. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in relation to each and every provision of this 
Contract. 

30. Materiality of Each Provision.  Each and every provision, term and condition of this Contract is 
considered material to this Contract. 

31. Integration.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between the Parties, and replaces any 
prior representations, agreements or understandings, oral or written, that may have existed 
between the Parties.  The Parties agree that any modification or supplementation of this Contract 
shall be in writing, signed by the Parties’ respective representatives, and must refer specifically to 
this Contract and the provision(s) modified or supplemented.  No other modifications or 
supplements will be valid.  The execution of any modification or supplementation of this Contract 
shall comply with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. 

32. Governing Law.  This Contract, and any other documents to which it refers, shall in all respects be 
interpreted, enforced and governed by the laws of the State of California and the United States 
of America.  This Contract is specifically subject to restrictions, limitations and conditions enacted 
by the California Legislature, contained in the Annual Budget Act, and/or any contract between 
Center and DDS, and this Contract shall be modified by the Parties to the extent necessary to 
ensure compliance with the same. 

33. Mutual Drafting. This Contract shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and 
not strictly for or against any of the Parties.  The Parties acknowledge that this Contract 
documents a negotiated agreement and it shall not be construed or interpreted in favor of either 
Party due to the fact that one of the Party’s attorneys drafted this Contract. 

Page 56 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 17 of 27 
 

34. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is deemed invalid or unenforceable pursuant to the 
provisions set forth in Section 36, the unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remaining 
provisions of this Contract and the remaining provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

35. Section Headings.  Section headings used in this Contract are for convenience only, are not part 
of the Contract, and shall not affect any of the terms hereof. 

36. Resolution of Disputes.  Any and all disputes, controversies or claims arising out of or relating to 
this Contract shall be resolved pursuant to the grievance procedures set forth in Title 17, if 
applicable.  If the grievance procedures set forth in Title 17 do not apply to a dispute, or after 
exhausting the applicable grievance procedures set forth in Title 17, all remaining disputes, 
controversies or claims shall be settled by a mutually agreed upon arbitrator in accordance with 
the rules of the American Arbitration Association.  The arbitrator’s decision may be entered as a 
judgment in any court having jurisdiction or may be appealed to the Superior Court of California 
in and for the County of San Joaquin within thirty (30) days of issuance. 

37. Attorney’s Fees and Costs.  In the event of an appeal of an audit finding, hearing before the Office 
of Administrative Hearings, arbitration, or should either Party bring an action in law or equity, in 
which a Party incurs attorney’s fees to enforce the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party 
thereto may recover reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs incurred in connection therewith, 
including, but not limited to, fees for reasonably necessary expert witnesses. 

38. Exclusive Benefit.  This Contract, and each and every provision hereof, is for the exclusive benefit 
of the Parties hereof and not for the benefit of any third party. 

39. Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

40. Delivery by Facsimile or Electronic Mail.  Duly executed signatures to this Contract may be 
delivered by facsimile or electronic mail, and signature pages delivered by such method shall be 
deemed equivalent to and of the same force and effect as original signature pages. 

41. Successors and Assigns.  This Contract is binding on the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

42. Execution of Contract.  By signing this Contract, the Parties confirm that they have read this 
Contract, understand its contents, agree to its terms, have consulted with their respective 
attorneys, and are voluntarily entering into this Contract. The Parties warrant that the person 
signing on behalf of each Party is an authorized representative of that Party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 18 of 27 
 

Accepted and agreed to: 
Valley Mountain Regional Center 

 
 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________  

By: Anthony (Tony) Anderson 
Its: Executive Director 

 
 

Contractor 
Linden Grove, LLC 

 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________  

By: Steve Campbell 
Its: Licensee, Owner 

 
 
 
  
 
  

Page 58 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 19 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SERVICES – HV0414 

 
1. Contractor is vendored by Center pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 as an Adult ARF Step-Down 

Residential Facility - Service Code 113. 

“A regional center shall classify a vendor as a ARF Step-Down Facility/Bed provider if the vendor 
provides temporary 24-hour residential treatment setting for persons who pose an immediate 
health and safety danger to self or others.” 

2. Additional Definitions. 

A. “Direct Care Staff” means staff that personally provide hands-on training provided by 
the vendor in accordance with the requirements of consumers’ Individual Program Plan 
and the provisions of Title 17, Section 56722 of California Code of Regulations, and who 
are involved in program preparation functions in accordance with the provisions of Title 
17, Section 54302(a)(23). 

B. “Generic Agency” means any agency which has a legal responsibility to serve all 
members of the general public and which is receiving public funds for providing such 
services. 

C. “Natural Environments” means places and social contexts commonly used by individuals 
without disabilities. 

D. “Person Centered Planning” means an approach to determining, planning for, and 
working toward the preferred future of a person with developmental disabilities and her 
or his family. 

3. Specific Consumer Services. 

A. Contractor agrees to provide the ARF Step-Down CPP Residential Services in a facility 
located at 21373 Eastern Heights Road, Linden, CA 95236. 

B. Linden Grove, LLC will be vendored for a total of five (5) beds; three private rooms and 
one shared room. 

C. Linden Grove, LLC is an ARF Step Down Facility for developmentally disabled adults at 
risk of institutional placement and provides intensive non-aversive behavioral and 
mental health supports. 

D. Contractor agrees that all doors used to enter/exit its licensed facility shall be equipped 
with alarms that signal movement in and out of the facility, and further that such alarms 
shall be operational at all times. 

E. Contractor agrees to provide services in accordance with Contractor’s Program Design 
attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference. 

F. Refusal to accept a referral is limited to individuals who are judged to be beyond the 
scope of the “target population” contained in the approved program design (Exhibit C). 

G. Contractor agrees to adhere to the Zero Tolerance Policy for Consumer Abuse or Neglect 
attached hereto as Exhibit D 

Page 59 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 20 of 27 
 

H. Contractor hereby warrants that all work will be performed in accordance with accepted 
professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of applicable federal, 
state, and local laws. 

I. Contractor agrees that this facility shall be operated in accordance with Title 17, Division 
2 of the California Code of Regulations concerning services for persons with 
developmental disabilities, Title 22, Division 6 of the California Code of Regulations 
concerning licensure of community care facilities, and Center’s “Best Practice in 
Licensed Residential Services.” 

J. Contractor agrees that its Administrator shall be in the facility providing supervision of 
direct care staff and the program of services no less than 20 hours per week as required 
by Center’s Best Practice in Licensed Residential Services. 

K. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor does not obtain by this Contract a guarantee 
and/or a vested right to have any particular consumer(s) and/or any number of 
consumers assigned, transferred or sent to Contractor under this Contract other than 
the number(s) specified in Section 1 of this Contract. Further, Contractor shall not limit 
and/or interfere with Center’s right under Title 17 regulations to secure for any 
consumer served by Contractor additional and/or alternative services which the 
consumer’s Planning Team has determined as needed. 

L. Contractor is to provide appropriate personnel and equipment to perform the services 
contracted for herein. 

1) Contractor agrees to follow IPP documentation requirements as stated in Title 
17, California Code of Regulations, Sections 56022 and 56026, and to provide 
such training to its staff as needed to assure adequacy of documentation. 

2) Contractor agrees to follow person centered planning philosophies as published 
by DDS for consumers receiving services, and to provide and/or procure such 
training as needed to ensure adequate staff participation in person centered 
planning. 

3) Contractor agrees to notify consumers, service coordinators, care providers, and 
other significant persons of annual review staffings in advance. Center agrees to 
notify Contractor of annual or IPP meetings in advance. 

4) Contractor agrees that it shall submit written quarterly reports to the Center’s 
case management staff for individual consumers reflecting progress toward the 
agreed upon Individual Program Plan/Individual Family Service Plan (IPP/IFSP) 
objectives. 

4. Authorization to Purchase Services Required. 

A. Contractor may not initiate any Services for Consumers until it has received a duly 
executed Authorization to Purchase Services from Center. Center will not be responsible 
for any services performed without written authorization. 

B. Program Managers and the After-Hours Response team are the only Center staff who are 
designated to give verbal authorization for services or to provide additional services 
beyond the authorized hours. 

Page 60 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 21 of 27 
 

C. Verbal authorization must be followed up within 15 days from the initiation of the 
requested services by a formal letter of request by the Contractor in order to receive a 
duly executed Authorization to Purchase Services from the Center. 

D. Contractor must maintain separate records to support direct service billing for each 
consumer served and indirect or administrative billing performed during the course of 
providing services. 

5. Contractor Staff. 

A. Contractor hereby warrants that all work will be performed in accordance with accepted 
professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of applicable federal, 
state, and local laws. 

B. Contractor shall contract directly with its staff and shall provide all staff necessary to 
perform the Services for each Consumer to whom Contractor has agreed to provide 
services. 

C. Contractor’s staff shall be employees of Contractor. Contractor shall be solely responsible 
for procuring liability insurance for all staff, for payment of any and all applicable 
unemployment insurance, disability insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, federal 
and state taxes, benefits, and any other required withholdings for all staff. 

D. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the hiring, 
retention, training, licensure and certification of Direct Care Staff and personnel. 

E. Contractor certifies that all direct care staff providing services under this Contract hold 
necessary certification and/or licenses required by Title 17, California Code of 
Regulations and/or Title 22, California Code of Regulations or other pertinent State or 
Federal regulations. 

1) Contractor agrees that all direct care staff providing services under this Contract 
shall be currently certified to provide first aid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation, 
and any other emergency services required by law or regulation. 

2) Contractor shall provide to all direct care staff providing services under this 
Contract continuing education training on the needs of developmentally 
disabled persons relevant to the accepted program design (Exhibit C) as per Title 
17 Section 56038 et seq. Center may assist in such in-service training if 
requested to do so by Contractor. Contractor shall provide to Center proof of in-
service training upon request. 

F. Contractor agrees that all staff or volunteers having contact with consumers under this 
Contract will have cleared a fingerprint/background check that includes the Department 
of Justice prior to employment and contact with consumers. The Contractor will: 

1) Contractor shall require all staff providing Services having contact with 
Consumers under this Contract to have cleared a fingerprint /background check 
that includes the Department of Justice prior to having any contact with 
Consumers, and annually thereafter, unless clearance is sought through the 
Department of Social Services or the TrustLine Registry, which includes automatic 
checks for subsequent arrests.  Contractor shall provide Center, upon request, 
with proof of the fingerprint clearance. 

Page 61 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 22 of 27 
 

2) Contractor shall require individuals to submit references from prior employers 
and/or volunteer organizations.  Contractor shall verify the accuracy of these 
references and document the verification in the employee/volunteer personnel 
file. 

3) Contractor, within the scope of and direction of Contractor’s agency exclusively, 
agrees to develop, retain, and implement employment policies and programs to 
encourage and promote Contractor’s employee fitness during performance of 
service delivery tasks connected with the intended beneficiaries (Center’s 
consumers) within Contractor’s program design, California Code of Regulations 
Title 17 and Title 22 and Direct Support Professional requirements satisfying the 
principal purpose of “agreement” between Center and Contractor. 

 

  

Page 62 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 23 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT B 
RATE OF PAYMENT – HV0414 

 
1. Center shall pay Contractor at the following Negotiated rate: 

A. $15,851.31 per consumer per month, inclusive of SSI. 

B. This rate shall constitute the total amount of compensation for Contractor’s 
performance of this Contract. 

2. $981,792 is the maximum amount which can be paid by Center to Contractor under this 
Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

3. Contractor attests that fiscal and program related documentation is complete, accurate to the 
best of Contractor’s knowledge, supported by records and source documentation, prepared in 
accordance with instructions provided by the Department and subject to audit. 

4. Both parties to this Contract have come to a full understanding and agreement of a specified 
method used to accumulate data contained in the Contractor’s documentation. Contractor 
attests that it utilizes said specified methods. 

5. Center has informed Contractor of the applicable and correct median rate for the services to be 
provided under this Contract. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 63 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 24 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT C 
PROGRAM DESIGN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 64 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 25 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT D 

Zero Tolerance Policy for Consumer Abuse or Neglect 
 

 

1.0 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

 
Valley Mountain Regional Center (VMRC) has no tolerance for consumer abuse or neglect. Research 
studies document that individuals with developmental disabilities have a significantly higher risk of 
becoming the victims of abuse, neglect, or exploitation as compared to the non- disabled population. 
In an effort to ensure the health, safety, and security of VMRC consumers, our agency is committed to 
a “Zero Tolerance” standard for consumer abuse and neglect. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS 

 
Abuse includes, but is not limited to, physical abuse, neglect, financial abuse, abandonment, isolation, 
abduction, or other treatment which results in physical harm, pain or emotional/mental suffering, or 
deprivation, by a person providing care and supervision, of goods and services which are necessary 
to avoid physical harm or emotional/mental suffering further defined as follows: 

 
 Physical Abuse: Any act which results in non-accidental injury. The use or attempt to use 
force on the person of another, unreasonable physical constraint, prolonged or continual deprivation 
of food and water, chemical restraint, or psychotropic medication without medical authorization used 
for punishment. 

 Sexual Abuse: Any non-consenting sexual act or behavior. 

 Financial Abuse:  The illegal or unethical exploitation and/or use of a consumer’s funds, 
property, or other assets. 

 Neglect: The negligent failure of a person(s) having care or custody of a consumer to 

exercise a reasonable degree of care including, but not limited to, a failure to assist in personal 

hygiene and the provision of food, clothing, and shelter, or failure to provide medical care or protect 

the client from health and safety hazards including a medical diagnosis of failure to thrive. 

 Abandonment: The desertion of a consumer by someone who is a caregiver or has 

custody of the consumer under circumstances in which a reasonable person would continue to 

provide care and custody. 

 Abduction: The removal, without the consent of the consumer/conservator, of a 

consumer/conservatee to another state. 

 Isolation:  The intentional preventing of a consumer from receiving mail, telephone calls or 
visitors when contrary to the expressed wishes of the consumer. 

 Emotional Abuse/Mental Suffering: Fear, agitation, confusion, severe depression or other 

forms of emotional distress that is brought about by deprivation, threats, 
harassment, or other forms of intimidating behavior. 

 
3.0  PRINCIPALS, GUIDELINES 
VMRC and all of their service providers shall ensure employees are fully informed of VMRC’s Zero 
Tolerance Policy on Consumer Abuse and Neglect. 

Page 65 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 26 of 27 
 

 

Employees are to be fully informed of the policy upon hire and annually thereafter. Each 

employee must be knowledgeable of 

 
1) their responsibility to protect consumers from abuse and neglect, and 
2) the signs of abuse and neglect, and 
3) the process for reporting suspected abuse or neglect, and 
4) the consequences of failing to follow the law and enforcing this policy. 

 
“Reasonable suspicion” is the standard for reporting abuse and neglect.  All VMRC staff who are 
mandated reporters pursuant to the California Penal Code, and all employees of service providers and 
long-term care facilities who are mandated reporters will strictly comply with the reporting laws at all 
times.   A mandated reporter must (unless exempt under law) report all consumer abuse to the 
applicable governmental authorities immediately or as soon as practicable after his or her discovery or 
reasonable belief that consumer abuse has occurred. 

 
Consumer abuse committed by VMRC employees or employees of service providers or long- term 
care facilities will not be tolerated. All such abuse or allegations of such abuse will be thoroughly 
investigated.  Any VMRC employee found to have engaged in abuse against a consumer will be subject 
to severe discipline, up to and including termination. Any abuse found to have been committed by a 
service provider or long-term care facility employee will be referred  to  the  appropriate  authorities  and  
the  service  provider  may  also  be  subject  to sanctions up to and including devendorization which 
equates to removal from the list of those authorized to provide services for any and all regional center 
consumers. 

 

REPORTING PROCEDURES 

 
Suspected abuse must be reported immediately by calling the appropriate 24-hour hotline and 
followed by a written report within 2 days of receiving the information concerning the incident. 

 

If you suspect that a child is being abused, contact Child Protective Services: 
 

 San Joaquin County (209)468-1333 

 Stanislaus County (800)558-3665 

 Amador County (209)223-6550 or (209)223-1075 (After Hours) 

 Calaveras County (209)754-6452 or (209)754-6500 (After Hours) 

 Tuolumne County (209)533-5717 or (209)533-4357 (After Hours) 

 
If you suspect that an adult is being abused, contact Adult Protective Services: 
 

 San Joaquin County (209)468-2202 or (888)800-4800 

 Stanislaus County (800)336-4316 

 Amador County (209)223-6550 or (209)223-1075 (After Hours) 

 Calaveras County (209)754-6452 or (209)754-6500 (After Hours) 

Page 66 of 147



Contractor: Linden Grove, LLC 
Vendor No:  HV0414 

Page: 27 of 27 
 

 Tuolumne County (209)768-7753 or (209)533-HELP (4357) (After Hours) 

 
Ombudsman’s Offices: 
 

 San Joaquin (209)468-3785 

 Stanislaus (209)529-3784 

 Amador (209)532-7632 

 Calaveras (209)532-7632 

 Tuolumne (209)532-7632 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 67 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 1 of 27 
 

Valley Mountain Regional Center 
POS Independent Contractor Contract 

 
 This POS Independent Contractor Contract (“Contract”) is entered into this 1st day of August, 
2020, in the City of Stockton, County of San Joaquin, State of California, by and between Valley Mountain 
Regional Center, Inc. (“Center”) and Kabree Corporation dba Jar-Mill’s Place (“Contractor”).  Each party to 
this Contract shall be referred to individually as “Party” and collectively as “Parties.”  This Contract shall 
be effective on and after the date in which both Parties sign it (“Effective Date”). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 4648 of the California Welfare and Institutions Code (“W&I 
Code”), Center is authorized to, pursuant to Vendorization or a contract, purchase services or 
supports for its Consumers from any individual or agency which Center determines will best 
accomplish all or any part of its Consumers’ program plans; 

B. WHEREAS, Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations (“Title 17”) permits the establishment of 
service contracts for the provision of Vendored services; 

C. WHEREAS, Contractor is currently Vendored by Center to provide the Services described in Exhibit 
A for Center’s Consumers; 

D. WHEREAS, Center and Contractor desire to define the terms and conditions pursuant to which 
Contractor will provide the Services described in Exhibit A to Center’s Consumers; 

E. NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, including the promises and payments described 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Truth of Recitals and Representations. The Parties hereby acknowledge the truth of the Recitals 
set forth above, and agree that the facts recited are conclusively presumed to be true as between 
the Parties and their successors in interest pursuant to Section 622 of the California Evidence 
Code.  Contractor further affirms that all fiscal and other documentation submitted to Center in 
conjunction with the negotiation and preparation of this Contract, and Contractor’s 
Vendorization, is complete and accurate to the best of Contractor’s knowledge, supported by 
records and source documents, prepared in accordance with all instructions provided by Center 
and all applicable laws, and subject to review pursuant to any audit by Center, the State of 
California Department of Developmental Services, and/or any other agency of the State of 
California or the Federal Government, as permitted by law. 

2. Definitions.  The definitions set forth in the W&I Code and Title 17 shall apply to this Contract. 
The following terms, some of which are taken therefrom, are specifically utilized in this Contract. 

A. “Consumer” means an individual who has been determined by Center to meet the 
eligibility criteria of W&I Code Section 4512(a) and Sections 54000, 54001 and 54010 of 
Title 17, and for whom Center has accepted responsibility to provide services. 

B. “DDS” means the State of California Department of Developmental Services. 

C. “Individual Program Plan” or “IPP” means a written plan that is developed by Center’s 
Planning Team in accordance with the provisions of W&I Code Sections 4646 and 4646.5. 

Page 68 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 2 of 27 
 

D. “Individual Service Plan” or “ISP” means an individualized plan generated for each 
Consumer to detail exactly how to meet the goals set forth in the IPP. 

E. “Internal Grievance Procedure” means the written set of procedures, established 
pursuant to W&I Code Section 4705(a), a vendor uses to achieve the communication and 
resolution of Consumer dissatisfaction. 

F. “Planning Team,” also known as Interdisciplinary (ID) Team, means the group of persons 
convened in accordance with the W&I Code Section 4646 for the purpose of preparing a 
Consumer’s IPP. 

G. “Record” means any book, document, writing, whether tangible, or in an electronic 
format, evidencing operational, financial or service activities of a service provider such as 
Contractor, or Center, or pertaining to the service program and/or the provision of 
services to persons with developmental disabilities. 

H. “Service” means assistance provided and duties performed by a Vendor for a Consumer, 
as described in Exhibit A. 

I. “Service Coordinator” means the individual specified in W&I Code Section 4648(a) as the 
person with the responsibility for implementing, overseeing, and monitoring a 
Consumer’s IPP and for maintaining the Consumer’s case management or service 
coordination file. Service Coordinator is synonymous with Center case manager, 
counselor or client program coordinator. 

J. “Service Design,” also known as Program Design, means a written description of the 
service delivery capabilities and orientation developed, maintained, and implemented by 
a Vendor in compliance with the rules and regulations. 

K. “Special Incident Report” is the documentation prepared by Vendor staff or long-term 
health care facility staff detailing a special incident and provided to Center and 
appropriate law enforcement authorities. 

L. “Vendor” means an applicant which has been given a Vendor identification number and 
has completed the Vendorization process set forth in Section 54302, et seq. of Title 17. 

M. “Vendorization” means the process used to: 

1) Verify that an applicant meets all of the requirements and standards pursuant to 
Section 54320 of Title 17 prior to the provision of Services to Consumers; and, 

2) Assign Vendor identification numbers, service codes and sub-codes, for the 
purpose of identifying Vendor expenditures. 

3. Purpose of Contract.  The purpose of this Contract is to outline the obligations and duties of 
Contractor in providing the Services described in Exhibit A to Consumers and the means and 
process by which Contractor shall be compensated for said Services. 

4. Term of Contract. This Contract shall commence on the 1st day of August, 2020 (“Commencement 
Date”), and shall terminate at midnight on the 31st day of October, 2021 (“Termination Date”), 
unless renewed by the Parties, or terminated earlier, pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  
Center shall not be required to compensate Contractor for Services performed by Contractor prior 
to Contractor’s receipt of a written Authorization to Purchase Services from Center or subsequent 

Page 69 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 3 of 27 
 

to termination of this Contract, and any Services performed subsequent to termination of this 
Contract shall not be construed as a renewal of this Contract. 

A. Automatic Renewal of Contract.  On the Termination Date, this Contract shall 
automatically renew for a one (1) year period (“Renewal Period”), on the same terms and 
conditions contained herein, including, but not limited to, the rate to be paid by Center 
for Contractor’s Services, unless:  (1) no later than sixty (60) days before the Termination 
Date, a Party gives written notice to the other Party of the intent to terminate the 
Contract on the Termination Date; or (2) this Contract is terminated pursuant to Section 
4(B) below.  If this Contract is automatically renewed pursuant to this Section, Center shall 
send a written confirmation to Contractor within thirty (30) days of the originally 
scheduled Termination Date.  This Contract can be renewed pursuant to this provision for 
a maximum of five (5) years from the original Commencement Date.  For automatic 
renewal to occur, the process set forth in this Section must be followed each year until 
this Contract is terminated.  Automatic renewal of this Contract for one (1) or more years 
does not guarantee renewal for any subsequent year.  If either Party desires to modify 
any of the terms of this Contract during a Renewal Period, that Party shall send a written 
request for a meeting to discuss the proposed modification(s).  Any modification to this 
Contract during the renewal process, or otherwise, shall be set forth in a written 
amendment signed by both Parties.  No oral representation by the Parties or their 
representatives shall be effective to renew this Contract. 

B. Early Termination of Contract by Center.  Center may terminate this Contract prior to the 
date set forth in this Section 4 should Center, DDS or the State of California determine 
that Contractor has failed to comply with any provision of this Contract, failed to comply 
with the written Authorization to Purchase Services, and/or failed to comply with any 
applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, those 
which govern the provision of Services to persons with developmental disabilities. Should 
Center, DDS or the State of California determine that termination of this Contract is 
appropriate, Center shall provide Contractor with a written notice of termination 
describing the reason for termination (“Center’s Notice of Termination”). This Contract 
shall be deemed terminated thirty (30) days following delivery of Center’s Notice of 
Termination (“Termination Date”).  Center’s Notice of Termination shall be deemed 
delivered on the date that it is either mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, 
or personally delivered to Contractor.  Termination may occur without notice, or with less 
than thirty (30) days’ notice, if Center determines that either:  the results of any 
evaluation of Contractor’s Service delivery warrant termination without notice or with 
notice of less than thirty (30) days, or Contractor’s Service delivery contributes to life-
threatening dangers to, or has resulted in abuse of, a Consumer. 

C. Early Termination of Contract by Contractor. Should Contractor determine that 
termination of this Contract is appropriate, Contractor shall provide Center with a notice 
of termination describing the reason for termination (“Contractor’s Notice of 
Termination”).  This Contract shall be deemed terminated thirty (30) days following 
delivery of Contractor’s Notice of Termination, unless Contractor specifies in its Notice of 
Termination that termination shall be effective at a later date (“Termination Date”). 
Contractor’s Notice of Termination shall be deemed delivered on the date that it is either 
mailed via certified mail, return receipt requested, or personally delivered to Center. 

Page 70 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 4 of 27 
 

D. Termination of Contract by Either Party Without Cause.  Notwithstanding Sections 4(A), 
4(B) or 4(C) of this Contract, this Contract may be terminated by either Party without 
cause upon ninety (90) days written notice to the other Party, or as mutually agreed. 

E. No Payment for Services Performed After Termination Date.  On and after the 
Termination Date, Contractor shall not conduct any further activities under this Contract 
and Center’s obligation to pay Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall cease.  Any 
expenses incurred by Contractor following the Termination Date will not be reimbursed 
pursuant to this Contract.  If Contractor performed Services prior to the Termination Date 
that are reimbursable pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor shall deliver a 
final claim form within ten (10) business days of the Termination Date.  Center shall 
reimburse Contractor for those Services that were legitimately performed prior to the 
Termination Date. 

F. Compliance With Laws Upon Termination.  In the event of termination, Center and 
Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, W&I Code Sections 4502, 4646, 4646.4, 4648, 4710 and 
4741. 

5. Referral of Consumers.  Center’s case management staff may refer Consumers to Contractor, as 
it deems appropriate, through Contractor’s designee. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that 
Center is not obligated to refer any particular number of Consumers to Contractor, or any 
Consumers at all, and that this Contract is not intended to, nor shall it constitute a guarantee or 
vested right to have any particular Consumer, or any number of Consumers referred, assigned, 
transferred or sent to Contractor for Services.  Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that 
Center shall not be liable to Contractor, for any cause of action, in law or equity, including, but 
not limited to, breach of contract or breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, 
if Center does not refer, assign, transfer or send any particular Consumer, or any number of 
Consumers to Contractor for Services.  Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that it shall 
not interfere with or limit Center’s right under the W&I Code and Title 17 to secure for any 
Consumer served by Contractor, additional and/or alternative services which Center has 
determined are appropriate. 

6. Services.  Contractor shall provide Services in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
local laws or regulations, including but not limited to, Title 17 as it relates to the appropriate 
service type, in accordance with the Program Design attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit C, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract, including Exhibits 
and/or documents referenced in this Contract.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of 
the Program Design and this Contract, the terms of this Contract shall govern.  The level of service 
provided by Contractor shall, at a minimum, be consistent with Contractor’s Program Design, any 
other program-related documentation relied upon by the Department as a basis for establishing 
rates of payment, and any applicable Federal, State and local laws or regulations. 

7. Contractor’s Duties. 

A. Authorization to Purchase Services Required.  Contractor may not initiate or provide any 
Services for Consumers until Center has issued a duly executed Authorization to Purchase 
Services. 

Page 71 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 5 of 27 
 

B. Special Incident Reporting Requirements. 

1) Contractor shall report any and all Special or Unusual Incidents pursuant to 
Section 54327 of Title 17, including, but not limited to: 

a) The Consumer is missing and Contractor or long-term health care facility 
has filed a missing persons report with a law enforcement agency; 

b) Reasonably suspected abuse/exploitation, including: physical, sexual, 
fiduciary, emotional/mental, or physical and/or chemical restraint; 

c) Reasonably suspected neglect, including failure to:  provide medical care 
for physical and mental health needs; prevent malnutrition or 
dehydration, protect from health and safety hazards, failure to assist in 
personal hygiene or the provision of food, clothing, or shelter, or exercise 
the degree of care that a reasonable person would exercise in the 
position of having the care and custody of a dependent adult; 

d) Serious injury or accident, including: lacerations requiring sutures or 
staples, puncture wounds requiring medical treatment beyond first aid, 
fractures, dislocations, bites that break the skin and require medical 
treatment beyond first aid, internal bleeding requiring treatment beyond 
first aid, any medication errors, medication reactions that require 
medical treatment beyond first aid, and burns that require medical 
treatment beyond first aid; 

e) Any unplanned or unscheduled hospitalization due to the following 
conditions:  respiratory illness, seizure-related, cardiac-related, internal 
infection, diabetes, including diabetes-related complications, 
wound/skin care, nutritional deficiencies, or involuntary psychiatric 
admission; 

f) The death of any Consumer, regardless of cause and regardless of when 
or where it occurred; and 

g) The victimization of a Consumer of the following crimes: robbery, 
aggravated assault, larceny, burglary, and rape/attempted rape, 
regardless of when or where such an incident occurred. 

2) Special Incident Reports shall be made to the appropriate law enforcement 
authorities and to Center, via telephone, electronic mail or facsimile, immediately 
upon discovery of the incident, and under no circumstances shall said reporting 
occur more than twenty-four (24) hours after an incident occurred, was 
discovered, or was suspected, whichever is earliest.  Notification to the assigned 
Service Coordinator, the Officer of the Day, or the After Hours Response Team, 
as identified by the Special Projects Unit of Center, shall satisfy the initial 
reporting requirement. 

3) Thereafter, within forty-eight (48) hours after the alleged incident occurred, was 
discovered, or suspected, whichever is earliest, Contractor shall provide Center 
with a written report describing the alleged incident and Contractor’s response 
thereto.  Failure to report any such incident to the appropriate law enforcement 

Page 72 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 6 of 27 
 

authorities and to Center, and/or failure to provide the required written report, 
shall constitute a distinct and separate ground for automatic termination of this 
Contract, notice of which shall be served personally or via certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to Contractor. 

4) Written reports of incidents shall include all relevant information, including, but 
not limited to: 

a) Contractor’s name, address and telephone number; 

b) Date, time and location of the incident; 

c) Name(s) and date(s) of birth, and UCI Number(s) of each Consumer 
involved in the incident and the name, address and phone number of the 
Consumer’s family member(s) or authorized representative(s); 

d) The name, address and phone number of the Consumer’s family 
member(s) or authorized representative(s) who were contacted and 
informed of the incident; 

e) Description of the incident; 

f) Description of the alleged perpetrator(s) of the incident, including, but 
not limited to, name, age, height, weight, address, phone number, 
occupation, and relationship to Consumer; 

g) Treatment provided to Consumer, if any; 

h) Identification of potential witnesses, including, but not limited to, name, 
address, telephone number and context of witnessing the incident; 

i) Identity of all law enforcement, licensing, protective services and/or 
other agencies or individuals notified of the incident, or otherwise 
involved in the incident; 

j) Action(s) taken by Contractor, law enforcement, licensing, protective 
services and/or other agencies or individuals in response to the incident; 
and 

k) Dated signature of the person creating the written report on behalf of 
Contractor. 

5) Failure to Report.  Failure to report any of the foregoing incidents to the 
appropriate law enforcement authorities and to Center, and/or failure to provide 
the required written report, shall constitute a distinct and separate ground for 
automatic termination of this Contract, notice of which shall be served personally 
or via certified mail, return receipt requested, to Contractor. 

C. Compliance with IPP.  Contractor shall follow IPP documentation requirements as set 
forth in Section 56720 of Title 17 and W&I Code Section 4648 and shall properly train all 
staff as necessary to ensure the adequacy of said documentation.  All Services rendered 
by Contractor shall be in furtherance of the IPP.  Contractor shall not render Services that 
are not called for in the IPP.  Center shall notify Contractor of annual IPP meetings at least 
five (5) days in advance of all such meetings, unless the Consumer or their legally 
authorized representative asks that the Contractor not be at the meeting. 

Page 73 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 7 of 27 
 

D. Developing ISPs.  Contractor agrees to follow “person centered planning philosophies,” 
as published by DDS, in developing ISPs for Consumers and/or to procure such training as 
is necessary to ensure adequate staff participation in person centered planning. 

E. Use of Public or Generic Resources.  Regional centers are required to use generic services 
when available.  Contractor understands and agrees that if a Consumer or Consumer’s 
authorized representative chooses not to access available generic services (e.g. IHSS, 
Medi-Cal, public school, California Children's Service), Center will not be able to pay for 
the service.  Contractor shall utilize, to the fullest extent feasible, those public resources 
which are available without additional cost to Contractor and which will enhance the 
quality of Services provided to those Consumers who can benefit from the use of such 
resources. 

F. Grievance Reports / Complaints.  Contractor shall establish, adopt and periodically review 
a written Internal Grievance Procedure under which Consumers, or their authorized 
representatives or advocates may file complaints to address their grievances and by 
which Contractor shall resolve grievances pursuant to W&I Code Section 4705. 

G. Abuse Reporting Training.  Contractor shall train all staff regarding legally mandated 
abuse reporting requirements prior to the employee’s provision of Services to Consumers 
and annually thereafter. 

H. Staff Background Checks 

1) Contractor shall require all staff providing Services having contact with 
Consumers under this Contract to have cleared a fingerprint /background check 
that includes the Department of Justice prior to having any contact with 
Consumers, and annually thereafter, unless clearance is sought through the 
Department of Social Services or the TrustLine Registry, which includes automatic 
checks for subsequent arrests.  Contractor shall provide Center, upon request, 
with proof of the fingerprint clearance. 

2) Contractor shall require individuals to submit references from prior employers 
and/or volunteer organizations.  Contractor shall verify the accuracy of these 
references and document the verification in the employee/volunteer personnel 
file. 

3) Contractor, within the scope of and direction of Contractor’s agency exclusively, 
agrees to develop, retain, and implement employment policies and programs to 
encourage and promote Contractor’s employee fitness during performance of 
service delivery tasks connected with the intended beneficiaries (Center’s 
consumers) within Contractor’s program design, California Code of Regulations 
Title 17 and Title 22 and Direct Support Professional requirements satisfying the 
principal purpose of “agreement” between Center and Contractor.  

8. Payment for Services.  The Parties fully understand and agree that payment under this Contract 
is dependent upon available Federal and/or State funding.  Contractor expressly acknowledges 
that the State and/or Federal Government may, from time to time during the Term of this 
Contract, require changes to the rate of payment that Center pays Contractor.  Accordingly, 
Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that adjustments to the rate of payment described 
herein may be made by Center.  Center will notify Contractor, in writing, of any such adjustments 

Page 74 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 8 of 27 
 

to the rate of payment and of the effective date of any adjustment.  Contractor expressly 
understands and agrees that Contractor shall have no right to object to any such adjustments and 
that any such adjustments shall not give rise to any cause of action, in law or equity, against 
Center.  In the event that Center is not allocated any funds for the Services referenced in this 
Contract, this Contract shall be null and void and of no further force and effect, in which event, 
Center shall have no obligation to pay any funds whatsoever to Contractor, or to furnish any other 
consideration under this Contract, and Contractor shall not be obligated to perform pursuant to 
this Contract.  Payment to Contractor shall only be made according to the following terms: 

A. Reliance on Authorization to Purchase Services. All payments shall be made in accordance 
with the Authorization to Purchase Services provided to Contractor by Center.  Payments 
shall not be made based upon oral authorization to provide services. 

B. Rate of Payment. 

1) The rate paid to Contactor by Center shall be cost effective to the State of 
California. 

2) Contractor shall not charge Center a rate for Services to Consumers that is more 
than Contractor would charge, or is charging, for any other purchase of the same 
or substantially similar service. 

3) Center shall pay Contractor at the rate described in Exhibit B which shall 
constitute the total amount of compensation for Contractor’s performance of this 
Contract. 

4) Contractor also understand and agrees that the maximum amount described in 
Exhibit B is the highest total amount which can be paid by Center to Contractor 
under this Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties.  
Contractor further understands and agrees that if the maximum amount 
described in Exhibit B is exceeded, this Contract is not valid unless and until it is 
approved by Center’s Governing Board.  Nothing in this Contract shall be deemed 
to guarantee that Contractor will receive the maximum amount of compensation 
provided for in Exhibit B, or any compensation at all, as Center cannot guarantee 
the amount of Services that Contractor will be asked to provide for Consumers. 

C. Payment in Arrears.  Center shall pay Contractor in arrears for Services provided in the 
previous calendar month. 

1) Claim Form. Contractor shall bill Center, on a monthly basis, for Services provided 
in the previous month by submitting to Center a completed and signed claim form 
in the format provided by Center, or electronically.  Contractors who submit their 
claim forms electronically shall retain all supporting and required source 
documentation.  All other contractors shall submit all supporting and required 
source documentation with their claim forms.  The supporting and required 
source documentation shall include, at a minimum, the information required by 
Section 50604(d) of Title 17. 

2) Certification.  For each claim form submitted, Contractor shall certify under 
penalty of perjury: 

Page 75 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 9 of 27 
 

a) All services for which Contractor is seeking payment have been provided 
to Center consumers by Contractor; and 

b) All information submitted to Center along with the claim form is accurate 
and complete. 

3) Time for Submittal of Claim Form.  Claim forms, and supporting and required 
source documentation, if applicable, shall be submitted to Center on or before 
the tenth (10th) day of each month.  Contractor understands that at the very 
latest, Contractor must submit a claim for reimbursement for all Services 
performed within ninety (90) days of the actual date of service.  On each claim 
form, Contractor shall certify that all Services for which Contractor seeks 
reimbursement were performed within ninety (90) days of submittal of the claim 
form.  Contractor further understands and agrees that it shall not be paid by 
Center for any Services that were performed more than ninety (90) days before 
submittal of a claim form for the Services. 

D. Date for Payment by Center.  On or before the twenty-fifth (25th) of each month, Center 
shall pay Contractor according to the information provided in each claim form. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Center shall have no obligation to pay Contractor: if 
Contractor fails to provide supporting and required source documentation for each claim 
form submitted to Center on or before the 10th of the month, or fails to make such 
information available in the case of electronic billing; if Center disputes any item 
submitted by Contractor in conjunction with a claim form; or if the claim form is 
inconsistent with the Authorization to Purchase Services provided to Contractor by 
Center. 

E. Limitations on Payment. 

1) Center’s obligation to pay for Services under this Contract arises only when 
Contractor has provided the Services fully and satisfactorily in accordance with 
the terms of this Contract. 

2) Payments by Center to Contractor shall not be used to supplant the budget of any 
agency which has a legal responsibility to serve all members of the general public 
and is receiving public funds for providing those Services.  Nor shall payments by 
Center to Contractor be used to supplement the rate of payment Contractor is 
receiving from any agency for Services provided to a Consumer. 

3) No more than fifteen percent (15%) of Center funds shall be spent by Contractor 
on Administrative Costs.  Funds spent on direct Services (costs immediately 
associated with Services to Consumers being offered by Contractor) shall not 
include any Administrative Costs.  Administrative Costs, include, but are not 
limited to: 

a) Salaries, wages and employee benefits for managerial personnel whose 
primary purpose is administrative management of the entity, including, 
but not limited to, directors and chief executive officers; 

b) Salaries, wages and benefits of employees who perform administrative 
functions, including, but not limited to, payroll management, personnel 
functions, accounting, budgeting, and facility management; 

Page 76 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 10 of 27 
 

c) Facility and occupancy costs, directly associated with administrative 
functions; 

d) Maintenance and repair; 

e) Data processing and computer support services; 

f) Contract and procurement activities, except those provided by a direct 
service employee; 

g) Training directly associated with administrative functions; 

h) Travel directly associated with administrative functions; 

i) Licenses directly associated with administrative functions; 

j) Taxes; 

k) Interest; 

l) Property insurance; 

m) Personal liability insurance directly associated with administrative 
functions; 

n) Depreciation; and 

o) General expenses, including, but not limited to, communication costs and 
supplies directly associated with administrative functions. 

F. Payment in full.  In accordance with Section 54326(a)(12) of Title 17, Contractor shall 
accept payment by Center as payment in full for all materials, supplies, or Services 
provided by Contractor to Consumers.  Contractor shall not bill Center, the Consumer, 
Consumer’s parents, guardians, family, conservator, authorized representative, or any 
other person or agency, for a supplemental amount, regardless of the actual cost of 
providing the materials, supplies, or Services. 

G. Additional Requirements for Federal Funds.  If Federal Government funds are involved, 
Contractor shall comply with all Federal rules, including, but not limited to, the applicable 
sections of the Code of Federal Regulations. 

9. Record Preparation and Retention Obligation. 

A. Record Retention Requirement.  Contractor shall prepare and retain all service and 
program financial, accounting, administrative and Consumer-related information, 
including, but not limited to, complete service records, records related to Contractor’s 
rates, and all books, records, documents and other evidence related to and/or affecting 
performance of this Contract, the Services provided by Contractor, the billing or invoicing 
by Contractor, and Contractor’s income and expenses (“Contractor’s Records”), in 
accordance with Title 17, including, but not limited to, Section 50604(d) and (e), as 
applicable, (“Record Retention Requirement”). 

B. Record Retention Period.  The Record Retention Requirement shall apply for a period of 
no less than five (5) years following the date of the final payment for the State fiscal year 
in which Services were rendered by Contractor, provided however, that if an audit is in 
process, or an appeal of an audit is pending at the end of said timeframe, Contractor’s 

Page 77 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 11 of 27 
 

records shall be retained until all audit exceptions have been resolved (“Record Retention 
Period”).  Contractor shall retain all such records for the Record Retention Period in a 
separate and distinct location from any of Contractor’s records for non-Center 
Consumers. 

C. Additional Requirements for Financial Records.  Contractor shall maintain all financial 
records by consistently using a single method of accounting.  Financial records shall clearly 
reflect the nature and amounts of all costs and income.  All transactions for each month 
shall be entered into the financial records within thirty (30) days after the end of that 
month. 

10. Access to Contractor Records and Facilities. 

A. Access by Authorized Agencies.  Throughout the Term of this Contract, and during the 
Record Retention Period, Contractor shall permit DDS, Center and any other authorized 
agency representative of the California Department of Health Services and the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services when Federal Government funds are 
involved in the payment for Services (collectively, “Authorized Agencies”), access to all of 
Contractor’s Records, and any facilities belonging to, or used by Contractor pertaining to 
Services provided to persons with developmental disabilities (“Contractor’s Facilities”). 

B. Scope of Right of Access.  All of Contractor’s Records and Facilities shall be made 
immediately available to the Authorized Agencies for audit, review, examination, excerpt, 
reproduction, and/or making transcripts. 

C. Time for Access.  While the Authorized Agencies will endeavor to give twenty-four (24) 
hours’ notice prior to exercising their right of access, the rights of access described in this 
Section 10 shall not be limited by a requirement of prior notice.  Access without prior 
notice shall, however, be limited to situations where the Authorized Agency determines 
that the purpose of the access would be thwarted if advance notice were given (i.e. in 
cases of suspected fraud, imminent destruction of records or similar circumstances).  
Contractor shall permit the Authorized Agencies to access Contractor’s Records and 
Facilities at any time during Contractor’s normal business hours. 

11. Audits by Center.  Center may audit Contractor’s Records pursuant to Title 17, including, but not 
limited to, Section 50606, et seq.  Should the results of any audit by the Center or any other 
Authorized Agency result in a finding that any or all of the payments made by Center to Contractor 
were in error or were otherwise improper or disallowed based upon the terms of this Contract, 
Center’s contract with DDS, or as a result of any applicable Federal, State or local law or regulation, 
Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Title 17 relating to repayment and appeal of audit 
findings and/or recommendations.  Should Contractor elect to appeal any audit findings and/or 
recommendations, Contractor shall utilize and be bound by Sections 50700 et seq. of Title 17.  
Contractor shall accept financial liability for any audit findings and/or recommendations disclosed 
by an audit and promptly repay amounts owed unless the audit findings are appealed and 
liquidation is stayed pursuant to Section 50705 of Title 17. 

12. Audit or Review by Independent Accounting Firm.  Contractor shall contract with an independent 
accounting firm for an audit or review of Contractor’s financial statements, subject to the 
following: 

Page 78 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 12 of 27 
 

A. When the amount received by Contractor from Center and/or any other regional center, 
during each state fiscal year, is more than or equal to Five Hundred Thousand Dollars 
($500,000), but less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), Contractor shall obtain an 
independent review report of its financial statements for the fiscal year that includes the 
last day of the most recent state fiscal year.  Consistent with Subchapter 21 (commencing 
with Section 58800) of Title 17, this requirement shall also apply to work activity program 
providers receiving less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000). 

B. When the amount received by Contractor from Center and/or any other regional center, 
during each state fiscal year, is equal to or more than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), 
Contractor shall obtain an independent audit of its financial statements for the fiscal year 
that includes the last day of the most recent state fiscal year. 

C. Independent review of financial statements must be performed by an independent 
accounting firm and shall cover, at a minimum, all of the following: 

1) An inquiry into Contractor’s accounting principles and practices and methods 
used in applying them; 

2) An inquiry into Contractor’s procedures for recording, classifying, and 
summarizing transactions and accumulating information; 

3) Analytical procedures designed to identify relationships or items that appear to 
be unusual; 

4) An inquiry about budgetary actions taken at meetings of the board of directors 
or other comparable meetings; 

5) An inquiry about whether the financial statements have been properly prepared 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and whether any 
events subsequent to the date of the financial statements would have a material 
effect on the statements under review; and 

6) Working papers prepared in connection with a review of financial statements 
describing items covered as well as any unusual items, including their disposition. 

D. Independent review report shall cover, at a minimum, all of the following: 

1) Certification that the review was performed in accordance with standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; 

2) Certification that the statements are the representations of management; 

3) Certification that the review consisted of inquiries and analytical procedures that 
are lesser in scope than those of an audit; and 

4) Certification that the accountant is not aware of any material modifications that 
need to be made to the statements for them to be in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

E. Contractor shall provide copies of the independent audit or independent review report 
and accompanying management letters to Center within thirty (30) days after completion 
of the audit or review.  Center shall review and require resolution by Contractor of issues 
identified in the report that have an impact on Center services.  Center shall take 
appropriate action, up to termination of vendorization, for lack of adequate resolution of 

Page 79 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 13 of 27 
 

issues.  Center shall notify DDS of all qualified opinion reports, or reports noting significant 
issues that directly or indirectly impact Center services, within thirty (30) days after 
receipt, which notification shall include a plan for resolution of the issues. 

F. The requirements of this Section 13 do not apply to payments made using usual and 
customary rates, as defined by Title 17 for services provided by regional centers, or to 
State and local government agencies, the University of California, or California State 
University. 

13. Disclosure of Survey Results.  Contractor shall provide Center with information obtained from 
surveys, questionnaires or other Consumer satisfaction tools relevant to Center’s Consumers 
within thirty (30) days of receiving the same.  Contractor shall meet with Center, upon request, to 
discuss the results of said surveys, questionnaires or other Consumer satisfaction tools, and shall 
work cooperatively with Center to address any identified areas of deficiency. 

14. Notices.  Any and all notices or other correspondence required to be sent to the Parties shall be 
deemed delivered when personally delivered or mailed via certified mail, return receipt 
requested, as follows: 

Center: Executive Director 
Valley Mountain Regional Center 
P.O. Box 692290 
Stockton, CA  95269-2290 

Contractor: Jamilah K. Moore 
Kabree Corporation dba Jar-Mill’s Place 
PO Box 579272 
Modesto, CA  95357 

15. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws 
and regulations in providing Services, expressly including, but not limited to, Titles 17 and 22 of 
the California Code of Regulations, and the California Welfare and Institutions Code.  Contractor 
expressly acknowledges the applicability of the foregoing, and affirms that it and its employees, 
agents and everyone acting on Contractor’s behalf, have read and agree to abide by the same.  
Contractor shall comply with the Service Provider Accountability Regulations as set forth in 
Sections 50601 through 50612 of Title 17.  Although this Contract cites to particular laws and 
regulations, Contractor’s obligation to comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws and 
regulations is not limited to the specific provisions cited herein.  Nothing in this Contract shall be 
construed as excusing compliance with any existing or future laws or regulations. 

16. Consumer Privacy & Confidentiality.  The Parties shall abide by all applicable Federal, State and 
local laws and regulations concerning privacy and confidentiality of Consumer records, including, 
but not limited to, W&I Code Section 4514. The Parties further acknowledge, understand and 
agree to adhere to their responsibilities as “business associates” under the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), as amended, and regulations promulgated 
there under, including, but not limited to, the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable 
Health Information at Section 45 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 160 and 164 (“Privacy 
Regulations”).  Accordingly, the Parties shall use Consumer health information only as needed to 
complete their responsibilities under this Contract and shall not use or disclose Consumer health 
information for any other purpose.  Further, the Parties shall implement and maintain adequate 

Page 80 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 14 of 27 
 

administrative, technical and physical safeguards to prevent improper use or disclosure of such 
Consumer health information. 

17. Compliance with Center Policy.  Contractor agrees to comply with all Center policies and 
procedures as they pertain to Contractor’s provision of Services to Center’s Consumers, the 
administration of payments to Contractor, contracts, financial matters, record keeping and 
retention, and audits.  All such policies and procedures are available for review by Contractor at 
Center’s office. 

18. Non-Discrimination. 

A. Provision of Services.  Contractor shall not discriminate in the provision of Services on the 
basis of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age or condition of physical or 
mental disability, or any other protected class.  Contractor shall comply with Title VII of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d), as amended, rules and regulations 
promulgated pursuant thereto, and all Federal, State and local laws and regulations 
governing discrimination. 

B. Employment.  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment, and shall take action to ensure that employees and applicants are treated 
equally without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age or 
condition of physical or mental disability, or any other protected class. 

19. Effect of Legal History.  People (including individuals, partnerships, group associations, 
corporations, institutions, or entities, and the officers, directors, owners, managing employees or 
agents thereof) with the following legal histories, within the previous ten (10) years, shall be 
ineligible to be a Contractor or Contractor’s employee: 

A. People convicted of the following crimes: 

1) Any felony or misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse in any government program; 

2) Any felony or misdemeanor related to neglect or abuse of an elder or dependent 
adult or child; or  

3) Any felony or misdemeanor in connection with interference with, or obstruction 
of, any investigation into health care related fraud or abuse. 

B. People found liable for fraud or abuse in any civil proceeding. 

C. People that have entered into a settlement in lieu of conviction for fraud or abuse in any 
governmental program. 

20. Contractor Licensing.  Contractor affirms that it has obtained, and will maintain in good standing, 
all licenses and certificates required by all applicable Federal, State and local laws for the Services 
Contractor is providing.  Contractor shall disclose, in writing, any past, present or pending 
revocation, denial or adverse action against any of Contractor’s licenses or certificates within 
fifteen (15) days of receiving notice of such action. 

21. Contractor’s Affirmation Regarding Program-Related Documents.  Contractor affirms that all 
fiscal and Services program-related documentation that has been provided to Center, and that 
will be provided to Center in the future is, and will be complete, accurate, supported by records 
and source documentation, prepared in accordance with Center’s instruction, and available for 
inspection and audit by Center and DDS.  Contractor affirms its understanding that payments 

Page 81 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 15 of 27 
 

made by Center to Contractor pursuant to this Contract will come from Federal and/or State 
funds, and any falsification or concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under Federal 
and/or State laws. 

22. Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless, Center, DDS and the 
State of California, its officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, 
expenses, damages, injuries, liability and causes of action, of any nature whatsoever (collectively, 
“Claims”), that in any way accrues or results to Contractor, Center, DDS or the State of California 
and/or any of their employees, agents, attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, 
materialmen, laborers or any other person, firm or entity that may be injured or damaged by any 
act, omission or negligence of Contractor and/or any of its employees, officers, directors, agents, 
or any person acting on Contractor’s behalf in the performance of this Contract.  This 
indemnification provision extends to include any and all costs or expenses, including, but not 
limited to, attorney’s fees and expert fees incurred by Center, DDS and the State of California as 
the result of any such Claims, and shall survive termination of this Contract. Contractor’s 
obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless as described herein shall apply regardless of 
whether Contractor has acted negligently or intentionally. 

23. Insurance.  Contractor shall procure and maintain, at its own expense, throughout the term of 
this Contract, a policy of personal liability insurance in the minimum amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000), under which Contractor shall name Center as an additional insured.  The “additional 
insured” portion of Contractor’s insurance policy shall include the following language: “Such 
insurance as is afforded by the endorsement of the additional insured shall apply as primary 
insurance.  Any other insurance maintained by Valley Mountain Regional Center, or its officers or 
employees, shall be in excess only, and shall not contribute to the insurance afforded by this 
endorsement.”  Contractor shall require its insurance company(ies) to notify Center of any 
renewal and/or cancellation of the insurance policy required by this Contract.  Copies of 
Contractor’s insurance policies and the required endorsements shall be provided to Center within 
five (5) calendar days after the insurance is obtained and after all renewals or cancellations of any 
policy.  Failure by Contractor to maintain the insurance policy required by this Contract shall 
constitute grounds for immediate termination of this Contract. 

24. No Agency or Employment Relationship.  Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create 
any type of agency or employment relationship between Center and Contractor.  Contractor, its 
employees, agents, attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, materialmen, laborers and any 
other person acting on Contractor’s behalf shall act in an independent capacity, as an independent 
contractor, and not as an officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California.  
Contractor, and all persons acting on Contractor’s behalf, shall not hold themselves out as, nor 
claim to be, an officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California as a result of 
this Contract, and shall not make any application, claim or demand for any right or privilege 
applicable to any officer, employee or agent of Center, DDS or the State of California, including, 
but not limited to, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, worker’s compensation 
insurance, or retirement benefits. 

25. No Assignments.  This Contract, and the rights, duties and obligations described herein shall not 
be assigned.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor shall be permitted to factor or assign its 
accounts receivable from Center, if, and only if, such factoring or assignment is required in order 
to obtain equipment financing, and if, and only if, such factoring or assignment is not otherwise 

Page 82 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 16 of 27 
 

prohibited by law.  Any such factoring or assignment shall not be effective unless approved by 
Center, in writing, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

26. No Subcontracts.  The Services for which Contractor is Vendored shall not be subcontracted to 
any other person or entity, except pursuant to prior written consent of Center, and any such 
subcontracting shall be in accordance with Title 17. 

27. Breach or Default by Contractor.  In the event of Contractor’s breach or default under this 
Contract, Center shall be permitted to either give Contractor notice of the breach or default and 
a reasonable opportunity to remedy the same, or terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 4(B) 
hereof.  This Section 27 shall not prevent Contractor from pursuing any legal or appeal process 
set forth in Title 17, in which event this Contract shall remain in force until the legal or appeal 
process is completed.  If Contractor suffers any strike, walk-out or work stoppage by its 
employees, and as a result of such condition, is unable to continue to provide Services required 
herein for a period of fifteen (15) days, Center shall be entitled to procure the Services that 
Contractor is unable to provide from another vendor, and Contractor shall not be compensated 
for any such substituted service.  In such case, Center may, in its sole discretion, terminate this 
Contract and obtain a replacement for the Services for its Consumers. 

28. Excuse of Performance.  Neither Party shall be deemed in default of any of the provisions of this 
Contract in the event that the Party’s failure to perform is the result of an earthquake, flood or 
other act of God, fire, riot insurrection, commandeering of vehicles, material, equipment or 
facilities by the government, strike, labor dispute or work stoppage, or similar cause beyond the 
Party’s control, which renders performance impossible, when evidence thereof is presented to 
the other Party. 

29. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in relation to each and every provision of this 
Contract. 

30. Materiality of Each Provision.  Each and every provision, term and condition of this Contract is 
considered material to this Contract. 

31. Integration.  This Contract contains the entire agreement between the Parties, and replaces any 
prior representations, agreements or understandings, oral or written, that may have existed 
between the Parties.  The Parties agree that any modification or supplementation of this Contract 
shall be in writing, signed by the Parties’ respective representatives, and must refer specifically to 
this Contract and the provision(s) modified or supplemented.  No other modifications or 
supplements will be valid.  The execution of any modification or supplementation of this Contract 
shall comply with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations. 

32. Governing Law.  This Contract, and any other documents to which it refers, shall in all respects be 
interpreted, enforced and governed by the laws of the State of California and the United States 
of America.  This Contract is specifically subject to restrictions, limitations and conditions enacted 
by the California Legislature, contained in the Annual Budget Act, and/or any contract between 
Center and DDS, and this Contract shall be modified by the Parties to the extent necessary to 
ensure compliance with the same. 

33. Mutual Drafting. This Contract shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and 
not strictly for or against any of the Parties.  The Parties acknowledge that this Contract 
documents a negotiated agreement and it shall not be construed or interpreted in favor of either 
Party due to the fact that one of the Party’s attorneys drafted this Contract. 

Page 83 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 17 of 27 
 

34. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is deemed invalid or unenforceable pursuant to the 
provisions set forth in Section 36, the unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remaining 
provisions of this Contract and the remaining provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

35. Section Headings.  Section headings used in this Contract are for convenience only, are not part 
of the Contract, and shall not affect any of the terms hereof. 

36. Resolution of Disputes.  Any and all disputes, controversies or claims arising out of or relating to 
this Contract shall be resolved pursuant to the grievance procedures set forth in Title 17, if 
applicable.  If the grievance procedures set forth in Title 17 do not apply to a dispute, or after 
exhausting the applicable grievance procedures set forth in Title 17, all remaining disputes, 
controversies or claims shall be settled by a mutually agreed upon arbitrator in accordance with 
the rules of the American Arbitration Association.  The arbitrator’s decision may be entered as a 
judgment in any court having jurisdiction or may be appealed to the Superior Court of California 
in and for the County of San Joaquin within thirty (30) days of issuance. 

37. Attorney’s Fees and Costs.  In the event of an appeal of an audit finding, hearing before the Office 
of Administrative Hearings, arbitration, or should either Party bring an action in law or equity, in 
which a Party incurs attorney’s fees to enforce the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party 
thereto may recover reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs incurred in connection therewith, 
including, but not limited to, fees for reasonably necessary expert witnesses. 

38. Exclusive Benefit.  This Contract, and each and every provision hereof, is for the exclusive benefit 
of the Parties hereof and not for the benefit of any third party. 

39. Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

40. Delivery by Facsimile or Electronic Mail.  Duly executed signatures to this Contract may be 
delivered by facsimile or electronic mail, and signature pages delivered by such method shall be 
deemed equivalent to and of the same force and effect as original signature pages. 

41. Successors and Assigns.  This Contract is binding on the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

42. Execution of Contract.  By signing this Contract, the Parties confirm that they have read this 
Contract, understand its contents, agree to its terms, have consulted with their respective 
attorneys, and are voluntarily entering into this Contract. The Parties warrant that the person 
signing on behalf of each Party is an authorized representative of that Party. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 18 of 27 
 

Accepted and agreed to: 
Valley Mountain Regional Center 

 
 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________  

By: Anthony (Tony) Anderson 
Its: Executive Director 

 
 

Contractor 
Kabree Corporation dba Jar-Mill’s Place 

 
 
 
Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________  

By: Jamillah K. Moore 
Its: Chief Executive Officer 

 
 
  

Page 85 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 19 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SERVICES-HV0452 

 
1. Contractor is vendored by Center pursuant to Title 17, Section 54356 as a DSS Licensed-

Specialized Residential Facility (Habilitation) - Service Code 113. 

“A regional center shall classify a vendor as a DSS Licensed-Specialized Residential Facility provider if 
the vendor operates a residential care facility licensed by the Department of Social Services (DSS) for 
individuals with developmental disabilities who require 24 hour care and supervision and whose 
needs cannot be appropriately met within the array of other community living options available. 
Primary services provided by a DSS Licensed-Specialized Residential Facility may include personal 
care and supervision services, homemaker, chore, attendant care, companion services, medication 
oversight (to the extent permitted under State law) and therapeutic social and recreational 
programming, provided in a home-like environment.  Incidental services provided by a DSS Licensed-
Specialized Residential Facility may include home health care, physical therapy, occupational 
therapy, speech therapy, medication administration, intermittent skilled nursing services, and/or 
transportation, as specified in the IPP.  This vendor type provides 24 hour on-site response staff to 
meet scheduled or unpredictable needs in a way that promotes maximum dignity and independence, 
and the provision of supervision and direct care support to ensure the consumers’ health, safety and 
well-being.  Other individuals or agencies may also furnish care directly, or under arrangement with 
the DSS Licensed-Specialized Residential Facility, but the care provided by these other entities must 
supplement the care provided by the DSS Licensed-Specialized Residential Facility and does not 
supplant it. Regional Center monitoring of the DSS Licensed-Specialized Residential Facility shall be in 
accordance with the applicable state laws and licensing regulations, including Title 17, and the 
regional center admission agreement.  Payment for services in a DSS Licensed-Specialized Residential 
Facility must be made pursuant to Title 17, Section 56919 (a), after the regional center obtains 
approval from the Department for payment of the prevailing rate or, pursuant to Welfare & 
Institutions Code, Section 4648 (a)(4), the regional center may contract for the provision of services 
and supports for a period of up to three years, subject to the availability of funds.” 

2. Additional Definitions: 

A. “Direct Care Staff” means staff who personally provide hands-on training provided by 
the vendor in accordance with the requirements of consumers’ Individual Program Plan 
and the provisions of Title 17, Section 56722 of California Code of Regulations. 

B. “Direct Care Staff” means staff that personally provide hands-on training provided by 
the vendor in accordance with the requirements of consumers’ Individual Program Plan 
and the provisions of Title 17, Section 56722 of California Code of Regulations, and who 
are involved in program preparation functions in accordance with the provisions of Title 
17, Section 54302(a)(23). 

C. “Generic Agency” means any agency which has a legal responsibility to serve all 
members of the general public and which is receiving public funds for providing such 
services. 

D. “Natural Environments” means places and social contexts commonly used by individuals 
without disabilities. 

E. “Person Centered Planning” means an approach to determining, planning for, and 
working toward the preferred future of a person with developmental disabilities and her 
or his family. 

Page 86 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 20 of 27 
 

3. Specific Consumer Services. 

A. Contractor agrees to provide the Negotiated Rate Residential services in a facility 
located at 12091 E. Whitmore Avenue, Hughson, California 95326. 

B. Jar-Mill’s Place will be vendored for a total of six (6) beds. 

C. Jar-Mill’s Place will serve ambulatory developmentally disabled male children with 
severe behavioral challenges. 

D. Contractor agrees that all doors used to enter/exit its licensed facility shall be equipped 
with alarms that signal movement in and out of the facility, and further that such alarms 
shall be operational at all times. 

E. Contractor agrees to provide services in accordance with Contractor’s Program Design 
attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by reference. 

F. Refusal to accept a referral is limited to individuals who are judged to be beyond the 
scope of the “target population” contained in the approved program design (Exhibit C). 

G. Contractor agrees to adhere to the Zero Tolerance Policy for Consumer Abuse or 
Neglect attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

H. Contractor hereby warrants that all work will be performed in accordance with accepted 
professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of applicable federal, 
state, and local laws. 

I. Contractor agrees that this facility shall be operated in accordance with Title 17, Division 
2 of the California Code of Regulations concerning services for persons with 
developmental disabilities, Title 22, Division 6 of the California Code of Regulations 
concerning licensure of community care facilities, and Center’s “Best Practice in 
Licensed Residential Services.” 

J. Contractor under this agreement is obligated to the following service delivery model: 

1) Facility Management Oversight- a “Facility Administrator” for Group Homes for 
Children certified by Community Care Licensing of no less than 20 hours weekly 
as required by Center’s Best Practice in Licensed Residential Services, or more if 
needed. A full-time 40 hour per week “House Manager” to assist in the 
oversight of the facility operations and implementation of components of the 
specialized residential service. 

2) Staffing Ratios and Consumer Supervision- at a ratio to meet consumer 
supervision needs, 252 hours of additional weekly direct care staffing above the 
required 24-hour staff person; one (1) awake-night staff. 

3) Consultant Services: The following consultants will be utilized by Contractor: 
Behavior Management Consultant (Psychologist or LCSW), or Behavior Analyst 
Consultant (BCBA), but at minimum 16 hours of Consultant Services will be 
provided to each resident every six (6) months. 

K. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor does not obtain by this Contract a guarantee 
and/or a vested right to have any particular consumer(s) and/or any number of 
consumers assigned, transferred or sent to Contractor under this Contract other than 
the number(s) specified in Section 1 of this Contract. Further, Contractor shall not limit 

Page 87 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 21 of 27 
 

and/or interfere with Center’s right under Title 17 regulations to secure for any 
consumer served by Contractor additional and/or alternative services which the 
consumer’s Planning Team has determined as needed. 

L. Contractor is to provide appropriate personnel and equipment to perform the services 
contracted for herein. 

1) Contractor agrees to follow IPP documentation requirements as stated in Title 
17, California Code of Regulations, Sections 56022 and 56026, and to provide 
such training to its staff as needed to assure adequacy of documentation. 

2) Contractor agrees to follow person centered planning philosophies as published 
by DDS for consumers receiving services, and to provide and/or procure such 
training as needed to ensure adequate staff participation in person centered 
planning. 

3) Contractor agrees to notify consumers, service coordinators, care providers, and 
other significant persons of annual review staffings in advance. Center agrees to 
notify Contractor of annual or IPP meetings in advance. 

4) Contractor agrees that it shall submit written quarterly reports to the Center’s 
case management staff for individual consumers reflecting progress toward the 
agreed upon Individual Program Plan/Individual Family Service Plan (IPP/IFSP) 
objectives. 

4. Authorization to Purchase Services Required. 

A. Contractor may not initiate any Services for Consumers until it has received a duly 
executed Authorization to Purchase Services from Center. Center will not be responsible 
for any services performed without written authorization. 

B. Program Managers and the After-Hours Response team are the only Center staff who are 
designated to give verbal authorization for services or to provide additional services 
beyond the authorized hours. 

C. Verbal authorization must be followed up within 15 days from the initiation of the 
requested services by a formal letter of request by the Contractor in order to receive a 
duly executed Authorization to Purchase Services from the Center. 

D. Contractor must maintain separate records to support direct service billing for each 
consumer served and indirect or administrative billing performed during the course of 
providing services. 

5. Contractor Staff. 

A. Contractor hereby warrants that all work will be performed in accordance with accepted 
professional practices and standards as well as the requirements of applicable federal, 
state, and local laws. 

B. Contractor shall contract directly with its staff and shall provide all staff necessary to 
perform the Services for each Consumer to whom Contractor has agreed to provide 
services. 

C. Contractor’s staff shall be employees of Contractor. Contractor shall be solely responsible 
for procuring liability insurance for all staff, for payment of any and all applicable 

Page 88 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 22 of 27 
 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, federal 
and state taxes, benefits, and any other required withholdings for all staff. 

D. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the hiring, 
retention, training, licensure and certification of Direct Care Staff and personnel. 

E. Contractor certifies that all direct care staff providing services under this Contract hold 
necessary certification and/or licenses required by Title 17, California Code of 
Regulations and/or Title 22, California Code of Regulations or other pertinent State or 
Federal regulations. 

1) Contractor agrees that all direct care staff providing services under this Contract 
shall be currently certified to provide first aid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation, 
and any other emergency services required by law or regulation. 

2) Contractor shall provide to all direct care staff providing services under this 
Contract continuing education training on the needs of developmentally 
disabled persons relevant to the accepted program design (Exhibit C) as per Title 
17 Section 56038 et seq. Center may assist in such in-service training if 
requested to do so by Contractor. Contractor shall provide to Center proof of in-
service training upon request. 

F. Contractor agrees that all staff or volunteers having contact with consumers under this 
Contract will have cleared a fingerprint/background check that includes the Department 
of Justice prior to employment and contact with consumers. Contractor will: 

1) Contractor shall require all staff providing Services having contact with 
Consumers under this Contract to have cleared a fingerprint /background check 
that includes the Department of Justice prior to having any contact with 
Consumers, and annually thereafter, unless clearance is sought through the 
Department of Social Services or the TrustLine Registry, which includes automatic 
checks for subsequent arrests.  Contractor shall provide Center, upon request, 
with proof of the fingerprint clearance. 

2) Contractor shall require individuals to submit references from prior employers 
and/or volunteer organizations.  Contractor shall verify the accuracy of these 
references and document the verification in the employee/volunteer personnel 
file. 

3) Contractor, within the scope of and direction of Contractor’s agency exclusively, 
agrees to develop, retain, and implement employment policies and programs to 
encourage and promote Contractor’s employee fitness during performance of 
service delivery tasks connected with the intended beneficiaries (Center’s 
consumers) within Contractor’s program design, California Code of Regulations 
Title 17 and Title 22 and Direct Support Professional requirements satisfying the 
principal purpose of “agreement” between Center and Contractor.  

 

 

 

Page 89 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 23 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT B 
RATE OF PAYMENT-HV0452 

 
1. Center shall pay Contractor at the following Negotiated Rate: 

A. $9,818.45 per consumer per month, inclusive of SSI. 

B. Should Contractor accept a respite or short-term placement (less than a full month), the 
rate will be the monthly rate divided by 21. 

C. This rate shall constitute the total amount of compensation for Contractor’s 
performance of this Contract. 

2. $470,063 is the maximum amount which can be paid by Center to Contractor under this 
Contract, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

3. Contractor attests that fiscal and program related documentation is complete, accurate to the 
best of Contractor’s knowledge, supported by records and source documentation, prepared in 
accordance with instructions provided by the Department and subject to audit. 

4. Both parties to this Contract have come to a full understanding and agreement of a specified 
method used to accumulate data contained in the Contractor’s documentation. Contractor 
attests that it utilizes said specified methods. 

5. Center has informed Contractor of the applicable and correct median rate for the services to be 
provided under this Contract. 

  

Page 90 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 24 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT C 
PROGRAM DESIGN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 25 of 27 
 

EXHIBIT D 
Zero Tolerance Policy for Consumer Abuse or Neglect 

 
 

1.0 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

 

Valley Mountain Regional Center (VMRC) has no tolerance for consumer abuse or neglect. Research 
studies document that individuals with developmental disabilities have a significantly higher risk of 
becoming the victims of abuse, neglect, or exploitation as compared to the non- disabled population. 
In an effort to ensure the health, safety, and security of VMRC consumers, our agency is committed to 
a “Zero Tolerance” standard for consumer abuse and neglect. 
 
2.0 DEFINITIONS 

 

Abuse includes, but is not limited to, physical abuse, neglect, financial abuse, abandonment, isolation, 
abduction, or other treatment which results in physical harm, pain or emotional/mental suffering, or 
deprivation, by a person providing care and supervision, of goods and services which are necessary 
to avoid physical harm or emotional/mental suffering further defined as follows: 

 

 Physical Abuse: Any act which results in non-accidental injury. The use or attempt to use 
force on the person of another, unreasonable physical constraint, prolonged or continual 
deprivation of food and water, chemical restraint, or psychotropic medication without 
medical authorization used for punishment. 

 Sexual Abuse: Any non-consenting sexual act or behavior. 

 Financial Abuse:  The illegal or unethical exploitation and/or use of a consumer’s funds, 
property, or other assets. 

 Neglect: The negligent failure of a person(s) having care or custody of a consumer to 

exercise a reasonable degree of care including, but not limited to, a failure to assist in 

personal hygiene and the provision of food, clothing, and shelter, or failure to provide 
medical care or protect the client from health and safety hazards including a medical 
diagnosis of failure to thrive. 

 Abandonment: The desertion of a consumer by someone who is a caregiver or has 

custody of the consumer under circumstances in which a reasonable person would 
continue to provide care and custody. 

 Abduction: The removal, without the consent of the consumer/conservator, of a 

consumer/conservatee to another state. 

 Isolation:  The intentional preventing of a consumer from receiving mail, telephone calls or 
visitors when contrary to the expressed wishes of the consumer. 

 

 Emotional Abuse/Mental Suffering: Fear, agitation, confusion, severe depression or other 

forms of emotional distress that is brought about by deprivation, threats, 
harassment, or other forms of intimidating behavior. 

 
3.0  PRINCIPALS, GUIDELINES 

Page 92 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 26 of 27 
 

VMRC and all of their service providers shall ensure employees are fully informed of VMRC’s Zero 
Tolerance Policy on Consumer Abuse and Neglect. 

 

Employees are to be fully informed of the policy upon hire and annually thereafter. Each 

employee must be knowledgeable of 

 

1) their responsibility to protect consumers from abuse and neglect, and 
2) the signs of abuse and neglect, and 
3) the process for reporting suspected abuse or neglect, and 
4) the consequences of failing to follow the law and enforcing this policy. 

 

“Reasonable suspicion” is the standard for reporting abuse and neglect.  All VMRC staff who are 
mandated reporters pursuant to the California Penal Code, and all employees of service providers and 
long-term care facilities who are mandated reporters will strictly comply with the reporting laws at all 
times.   A mandated reporter must (unless exempt under law) report all consumer abuse to the 
applicable governmental authorities immediately or as soon as practicable after his or her discovery or 
reasonable belief that consumer abuse has occurred. 

 

Consumer abuse committed by VMRC employees or employees of service providers or long- term 
care facilities will not be tolerated. All such abuse or allegations of such abuse will be thoroughly 
investigated.  Any VMRC employee found to have engaged in abuse against a consumer will be subject 
to severe discipline, up to and including termination. Any abuse found to have been committed by a 
service provider or long-term care facility employee will be referred  to  the  appropriate  authorities  
and  the  service  provider  may  also  be  subject  to sanctions up to and including devendorization 
which equates to removal from the list of those authorized to provide services for any and all regional 
center consumers. 
 

REPORTING PROCEDURES 

 

Suspected abuse must be reported immediately by calling the appropriate 24-hour hotline and 
followed by a written report within 2 days of receiving the information concerning the incident. 

 

If you suspect that a child is being abused, contact Child Protective Services: 
 

 San Joaquin County (209)468-1333 

 Stanislaus County (800)558-3665 

 Amador County (209)223-6550 or (209)223-1075 (After Hours) 

 Calaveras County (209)754-6452 or (209)754-6500 (After Hours) 

 Tuolumne County (209)533-5717 or (209)533-4357 (After Hours) 

 

If you suspect that an adult is being abused, contact Adult Protective Services: 
 

 San Joaquin County (209)468-2202 or (888)800-4800 

 Stanislaus County (800)336-4316 

Page 93 of 147



Contractor: Kabree Corporation 
Vendor No:  HV0452 

Page: 27 of 27 
 

 Amador County (209)223-6550 or (209)223-1075 (After Hours) 

 Calaveras County (209)754-6452 or (209)754-6500 (After Hours) 

 Tuolumne County (209)768-7753 or (209)533-HELP (4357) (After Hours) 

 

Ombudsman’s Offices: 
 

 San Joaquin (209)468-3785 

 Stanislaus (209)529-3784 

 Amador (209)532-7632 

 Calaveras (209)532-7632 

 Tuolumne (209)532-7632 

 
 

 
 

Page 94 of 147



Contract BoardApproval Report ContractsExpiring: 6/23/2020Page1of1

BODApprovalDate: VendorNumberVendorNameSrvcCodeVendorCategory

HV0610APIQUEBEHAVIORALSVCS AMVACorporation103SpecializedHealth, Treatment & TrainingServices

Current Contract: 

NTEEffecDateExpDateResponsibleStaffResponsibleDept

BrianBennettRD

Rate

Proposed Contract: 

PropNTEPropEffDatePropExpDateAction: ActionReason: 

1,439,671.004/1/202011/30/2020AmendmentAddProgram

PropRate

260.81/cons/day; $47.42/cons/hr (5.5programhoursperProgramDesign) 

Page 95 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page1of11

ValleyMountain RegionalCenter
Amendment toIndependent Contractor Contract

thThisIndependent ContractorContract (“Contract”) enteredintoonthe19 dayofDecember2019, inthe
CityofStockton, CountyofSanJoaquin, StateofCalifornia, byandbetweenValleyMountain Regional
Center, Inc. (“Center”) andAMVACorporation (“Contractor”) isherebyamendedasfollows:  

stExhibitsA, B, CandD – HV0610areaddedeffectiveApril1, 2020asfollows:  

EXHIBITA
SERVICES – HV0610

ApiqueBehavioral Services

1. Contractor isvendoredbyCenterpursuanttoTitle17, Section54356toprovide “Specialized
Health, Treatment andTrainingServices- ServiceCode: 103. ServiceDescription: Aregional
centershallclassifyavendorasaSpecialized Health, Treatment andTrainingServicesprovider if
thevendorprovides, orobtains, healthordentalservices forwhichthereisnotanexistingTitle
17servicecode, andthatisdeemednecessary byahealthcareprofessional toimplement an
objective intheconsumer’sIPP. Specialized Health, Treatment andTrainingServices include, but
arenotlimitedto: services thatincreaseormaintainhealth, gastrostomy andcareofG-tube
treatment formental illnessesand / orchemicaldependencies, dentalhygienetrainingfor
consumers andcareproviders, andtheshipmentofmedicalsamplesfortesting. Vendorsshall
ensurethattrainersarecredentialed and/ orlicensedasrequiredbytheStateofCalifornia to
practice inthefieldoftrainingbeingoffered. Vendorsofferinggastrostomy and/ orG-tube
equipment caretraining, shallensurecompliance withtheWelfareandInstitution Code, 4686
c).”  

2. SummaryofAdultDayServices. Inaccordance withtheallapplicable federalandstatelawsand
regulations, Contractor shallestablishandprovideservices inaccordance withtheTitle17,  
Chapter3, SubChapter5etseq., pertaining toNon-Residential Services, thisServiceContract
andContractor’sapproved ProgramDesign.  

3. Additional Definitions:   

A. “ MedicalCareandBehaviorManagement DayProgram” meansacommunity-basedday
programthatservesadultswithmedicalcareneedsand/orseverebehavioraldisorders
and, becauseoftheirmedicalcareneedsand/orbehaviorproblems, arenoteligible for
oracceptable inanyothercommunity-baseddayprogram.  

B. “ Center-BasedEnvironment” meanswithinadaycarefacilityoronthegroundsofsuch
afacility.  

C. “ DirectCareStaff” meansstaffthatpersonally providehands-ontrainingprovided by
thevendorinaccordance withtherequirements ofconsumers’ Individual ProgramPlan
andtheprovisions ofTitle17, Section56722ofCalifornia CodeofRegulations, andwho
areinvolved inprogrampreparation functions inaccordance withtheprovisionsofTitle
17, Section54302(a)(23).  

Page 96 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page2of11

D. “ GenericAgency” meansanyagencywhichhasalegalresponsibility toserveall
membersofthegeneralpublicandwhichisreceivingpublicfundsforproviding such
services.   

E. “ NaturalEnvironments” meansplacesandsocialcontextscommonly usedbyindividuals
withoutdisabilities.   

F. “ PersonCentered Planning” meansanapproach todetermining, planning for, and
workingtowardthepreferred futureofapersonwithdevelopmental disabilities andher
orhisfamily.   

4. SpecificConsumer Services.  

A. Contractor agreestoprovideservices inaccordance withContractor’sProgramDesign
attachedheretoasExhibitCandincorporated hereinbyreference.  

B. Contractor agreestoadheretotheZeroTolerance PolicyforConsumer AbuseorNeglect
attachedheretoasExhibitD.   

C. Referralswillbeidentifiedasrequiring mentalandphysicalhealth-wellnessneedsby
licensedprofessionals. Allindividualized serviceplans, includingbutnotlimitedtorestricted
healthconditioncareplans, willbedeveloped bylicensedprofessionals includingaBCBA,  
RN/LVN. Theagencywillalsoutilizealicensedpsychiatrist tooverseemedication routines
andmentalhealth treatment. Thelicensedprofessionals willprovidedirecttrainingofISP
andhealthcareplans.  

D. Contractor agreestoutilizetheservices andsupportsofconsultants identified intheir
approved ProgramDesign (ExhibitC), whichincludesaBehaviorist, Registered Nurse,  
Dietician, Occupational Therapist, Physical TherapistandRecreational Therapist.   

1) Contractor shallsubmittoCenteralistofitsconsultants andtheirqualifications,  
andshallsubmitacopyofcurrent, validlicenses/certificates atleastonan
annualbasispriortocontract renewalorasstaffchangesoccur.   

E. Contractor agreestodevelopandmaintainHealthCarePlansforparticipants whohave
Restricted HealthConditions.   

F. Contractor agreestodevelopandmaintainBehaviorManagement Plansforallparticipants
thatdemonstrate behaviordeficitsrequiring redirection.   

G. Contractor acknowledges thatContractor doesnotobtainbythisContractaguarantee
and/oravestedrighttohaveanyparticular consumer(s) and/oranynumberofconsumers
assigned, transferredorsenttoContractor underthisContractotherthanthenumber(s)  
specified inSection1ofthisContract. Further, Contractor shallnotlimitand/orinterfere
withCenter’srightunderTitle17regulations tosecureforanyconsumer servedby
Contractor additional and/oralternative services whichtheconsumer’sPlanningTeamhas
determined asneeded.  

H. Center’scasemanagement staffshallinitiatereferralofconsumers toContractor’sprogram
ofservices throughtheProgramDirectorordesignatedstaffperson. Noservicesmaybe

Page 97 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page3of11

initiatedbyContractor untilithasreceivedadulyexecutedAuthorization toPurchase
Services fromCenterorasigned letterfromaCentermanagerauthorizing thepurchaseof
services.  

I. Contractor istoprovideappropriate personnel andequipment toperformtheservices
contracted forherein.  

1) Contractor willmaintainanoverallaveragestaff-to-consumer ratioofnoless
than1direct-carestaffto2consumers duringthedurationofprogram hours.  

2) Contractor agreestooperate itsservicesnolessthan5.5hoursperprogram
day.  

3) Contractor agreestofollowIPPdocumentation requirements asstatedinTitle
17, California CodeofRegulations, andSection56720andtoprovidesuch
trainingtoitsstaffasneededtoassureadequacyofdocumentation.  

4) Contractor agreestofollowpersoncenteredplanningphilosophies aspublished
byDDSindeveloping Individual ServicePlansforconsumers receiving services,  
andtoprovideand/orprocuresuchtrainingasneededtoensureadequatestaff
participation inpersoncenteredplanning.  

J. Contractor agreestomaintainallequipment, facilities, grounds, supplies, buildings, orout
buildings insafecondition.  

1) Anyloss, damageorinjurytopersonsorpropertywhicharisesfromthe
negligent maintenance oromissionoftheContractorshallbethesole
responsibility oftheContractor. Centershallinnowaybeheldresponsible for
theinspection, maintenance, care, orselectionofequipment, facilities, grounds,  
supplies, buildings, oroutbuildings.  

2) Contractor agreesthatphysicalspacesowned, leasedorotherwise controlledby
Contractor, andutilizedforfacility-basedinstruction, shallbeair-conditioned.  
Useofnon-air-conditioned environments bytheContractor shallrequireprior
writtenapproval fromCenter. Useofgenericorpublicfacilitiesorautomobiles
outsidethecontrolofContractorshallbeexemptfromthissection.  

3) Contractor agreesthatphysicalspacesowned, leased, orotherwise controlled
byContractor, andutilizedforfacility-basedinstruction, shallhaveadequate
heatingforthewintermonths. Useofgenericorpublicfacilitiesorautomobiles
outsidethecontrolofContractorshallbeexemptfromthissection.  

4) Contractor certifies thattheprogram andcenter-basedsitefortheseservices
arelicensedinaccordance withTitle22, Section82000ofCalifornia Codeof
Regulations.  

K. Contractor certifies thatalldirectcarestaffand/orconsultants providing services underthis
Contractholdnecessary certification and/orlicensesrequiredbyTitle17, California Codeof
Regulations and/orTitle22, California CodeofRegulations, asapplicable.  

1) Contractor agreesthatalldirectcarestaffproviding servicesunderthisContract
shallbecurrentlycertifiedtoprovidefirstaid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation,  
andanyotheremergency servicesrequiredbylaworregulation.  

Page 98 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page4of11

2) Contractor shallprovidetoalldirectcarestaffprovidingservicesunderthis
Contractaminimumoffivehoursperyearin-servicetrainingontheneedsof
developmentally disabledpersonsrelevant totheacceptedprogramdesign
ExhibitC). Centermayassistinsuchin-servicetrainingifrequestedtodosoby

Contractor. Contractorshallprovide toCenterproofofin-servicetrainingupon
request.  

L. Contractor agreesthatallstafforvolunteers havingcontactwithconsumers underthis
Contractwillhaveclearedafingerprint/background checkthatincludestheDepartment of
Justicepriortoemployment andcontactwithconsumers.  

1) Contractor shallrequireallstaffprovidingServiceshavingcontactwith
Consumers underthisContract tohaveclearedafingerprint/background check
thatincludestheDepartment ofJusticepriortohavinganycontactwith
Consumers, andannually thereafter, unlessclearance issoughtthroughthe
Department ofSocialServicesortheTrustLineRegistry, whichincludes
automatic checksforsubsequent arrests. Contractor shallprovideCenter, upon
request, withproofofthefingerprint clearance.   

2) Contractor shallrequireindividuals tosubmitreferences fromprioremployers
and/orvolunteer organizations. Contractor shallverifytheaccuracyofthese
references anddocument theverification intheemployee/volunteerpersonnel
file.   

3) Contractor, withinthescopeofanddirectionofContractor’sagencyexclusively,  
agreestodevelop, retain, andimplement employment policiesandprogramsto
encourage andpromote Contractor’semployee fitnessduringperformance of
servicedelivery tasksconnected withtheintendedbeneficiaries (Center’s
consumers) withinContractor’sprogramdesign, California CodeofRegulations
Title17andTitle22andDirectSupportProfessional requirements satisfying the
principalpurposeof “agreement” betweenCenterandContractor.   

M. Contractor shallsubmittoCenteranannualProgramSelf-Evaluation perTitle17
Regulations, Section56732, atleastninety (90) dayspriortoexpirationofthisContract.  
CentermayverifythereportbyreviewofContractor’sservicerecordsuponrequest. The
annualProgramSelf-Evaluation shallinclude:  

1) Aggregate dataonthedifferent typesofConsumers needsencountered during
servicedelivery;  

2) Outcomes inrelationtotheexpectations identified intheProgramDesign;  

3) Outcomes inrelationtotheConsumer’sIPP;  

4) Percentage ofstaffwhohavecurrentCPRandFirstAidcertifications;  

5) Percentage ofstaffwhohavecurrentcriminal recordsclearance;  

6) Percentage ofstaffwhohavecompleted stafforientation duringthefirsttwo (2)  
weeksofemployment;  

7) Percentage ofstaffwhohavereceivedmandated abusereporting foradults
duringthelastyear;  

Page 99 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page5of11

8) Percentage ofstaffwhohavereceived five (5) hoursofin-servicetrainingduring
thelastyear, including topics, traineranddateandtimeoftraining;  

9) Percentage ofSpecial IncidentReports thatweresubmittedwithintherequired
timeframes;  

10) Percentage ofSemi-AnnualReportssubmitted withinten (10) workingdays
aftertheendofeachhalf-year;  

11) Goalsforthenexttwelve (12) monthsbasedontheprogramevaluation
findings.  

N. Contractor shallcomplywithallapplicable lawsandregulations regarding thehiring,  
retention, training, licensure andcertification ofDirectCareStaffandpersonnel.  

5. RecordMaintenance Requirements.  

A. Serviceprovidersshallmaintain financial recordswhichconsistently useasinglemethodof
accounting. Thesefinancial recordsshallclearly reflectthenatureandamountsofallcosts
andallincome. Alltransactions foreachmonthshallbeentered intothefinancial records
within30daysaftertheendofthatmonthandshallbeavailable forthefollowingpurposes:  

1) Toensurethatstaffingschedules inconformance withstaffing level
requirements, ifany, aresupported bypayroll recordsandsourcedocuments.  

2) Toensurethatrevenueandcostinformation areavailable tosupport
administrative overhead.  

B. Contractor shallmaintaincomplete servicerecordstosupportallbilling/invoicing foreach
regionalcenterconsumer intheprogram.  

C. ServicerecordsusedtosupportContractor’sbilling/invoicingshallinclude, butnotbe
limitedto:  

1) Information identifyingeachregionalcenterconsumer including theUnique
Consumer Identifierandconsumer name;  

2) Documentation foreachconsumer reflecting thedatesforprogram entrance
andexit, ifapplicable, asauthorized byaregionalcenter.  

3) Arecordofservicesprovidedtoeachconsumer including thedatesofservice,  
placewhereservicewasprovided, thestartandendtimesofserviceprovidedto
theconsumer, andthedailyorhourlyunitsofserviceprovided.  

D. AllContractor’srecordsshallbesupported bysourcedocumentation. Nothingspecifiedin
thissectionshallbeconstrued assuperseding otherrecordmaintenance requirements set
forthinstatuteorregulation.  

Page 100 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page6of11

EXHIBITB
RATEOFPAYMENT – HV0610
ApiqueBehavioral Services

1. CentershallpayContractor atthefollowing rate:  

A. $ 260.81perconsumer, perday.  

B. CenterandContractor haveagreedtodividethisrateintoanhourlyratetoallowfor
moreflexibility inconsumer attendance andactivityscheduling:  

1) Thishourlyrateis $47.42perconsumer, perhour.  

2) Thishourlyrateshallbeadjusted shouldthedailyratechange.   

C. Thisrateshallconstitute thetotalamountofcompensation forContractor’s
performance ofthisContract.  

2. $ 1,439,671isthemaximum amountwhichcanbepaidbyCenter toContractor underthis
Contract, unlessotherwise agreedtoinwritingbytheParties.  

3. Contractor atteststhatfiscalandprogramrelateddocumentation iscomplete, accuratetothe
bestofContractor’sknowledge, supported byrecordsandsourcedocumentation, prepared in
accordance withinstructions providedbytheDepartment andsubjecttoaudit.  

4. BothpartiestothisContracthavecometoafullunderstanding andagreement ofaspecified
methodusedtoaccumulate datacontained intheContractor’sdocumentation. Contractor
atteststhatitutilizessaidspecifiedmethods.  

5. Centerhasinformed Contractoroftheapplicable andcorrectmedianratefortheservicestobe
providedunderthisContract.  

Page 101 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page7of11

Itisagreedthatallothertermsandconditionsofthiscontract remainineffectaswritten.  

Acceptedandagreedto:  
ValleyMountain RegionalCenter

Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________   
By: Anthony (Tony) Anderson
Its: Executive Director

Contractor
AMVACorporation

Dated:  ______________________________   _________________________________________   
By: VartanHekimian
Its: ChiefExecutive Officer

Page 102 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page8of11

EXHIBITC
PROGRAM DESIGN – HV0610
ApiqueBehavioral Services

Page 103 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page9of11

EXHIBITD

ZeroTolerance PolicyforConsumer AbuseorNeglect

1.0STATEMENT OFPURPOSE

ValleyMountain RegionalCenter (VMRC) hasnotoleranceforconsumerabuseorneglect. Research
studiesdocument thatindividuals withdevelopmental disabilities haveasignificantly higherriskof
becomingthevictimsofabuse, neglect, orexploitation ascomparedtothenon- disabledpopulation.  
Inanefforttoensurethehealth, safety, andsecurityofVMRCconsumers, ouragencyiscommitted to
a “ZeroTolerance” standard forconsumer abuseandneglect.  

2.0DEFINITIONS

Abuse includes, butisnot limited to, physical abuse, neglect, financial abuse, abandonment, isolation,  
abduction, orother treatment which results inphysical harm, painoremotional/mental suffering, or
deprivation, by a person providing care and supervision, ofgoodsandserviceswhicharenecessary
toavoidphysical harmoremotional/mentalsuffering furtherdefinedasfollows:  

PhysicalAbuse: Anyactwhichresultsinnon-accidental injury. Theuseorattempttouse
forceonthepersonofanother, unreasonable physicalconstraint, prolongedorcontinual
deprivationoffoodandwater, chemical restraint, orpsychotropic medication without
medicalauthorization usedforpunishment.  
SexualAbuse: Anynon-consenting sexualactorbehavior.  
FinancialAbuse:  Theillegalorunethicalexploitation and/oruseofaconsumer’sfunds,  
property, orotherassets.  
Neglect: Thenegligent failureofaperson(s) havingcareorcustodyofaconsumer to
exerciseareasonable degreeofcareincluding, butnotlimitedto, afailuretoassistin
personalhygieneandtheprovisionoffood, clothing, andshelter, orfailuretoprovide
medicalcareorprotecttheclientfromhealthandsafetyhazards includingamedical
diagnosisoffailuretothrive.  
Abandonment: Thedesertionofaconsumerbysomeonewhoisacaregiverorhas
custodyoftheconsumerundercircumstances inwhichareasonable personwould
continuetoprovidecareandcustody.  
Abduction: Theremoval, withouttheconsentoftheconsumer/conservator, ofa
consumer/conservateetoanotherstate.  
Isolation:  Theintentionalpreventingofaconsumer fromreceivingmail, telephonecallsor
visitorswhencontrarytotheexpressedwishesoftheconsumer.  

Emotional Abuse/MentalSuffering: Fear, agitation, confusion, severedepressionorother
formsofemotionaldistressthatisbroughtaboutbydeprivation, threats,  
harassment, orotherformsofintimidating behavior.  

Page 104 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page10of11

3.0 PRINCIPALS, GUIDELINES
ZeroVMRCandalloftheirservice providers shallensure employees arefullyinformed ofVMRC’s

TolerancePolicyonConsumerAbuseandNeglect. 

Employeesaretobefullyinformedofthepolicyuponhireandannually thereafter. Each
employeemustbeknowledgeable of

1) theirresponsibility toprotectconsumers fromabuseandneglect, and
2) thesignsofabuseandneglect, and
3) theprocessforreportingsuspected abuseorneglect, and
4) theconsequences offailingtofollowthelawandenforcingthispolicy.  

Reasonable suspicion” isthe standard for reportingabuse and neglect.  All VMRC staff who are
mandated reporters pursuant totheCalifornia PenalCode, andallemployees ofserviceprovidersand
long-termcarefacilitieswhoaremandated reporterswillstrictlycomplywiththereporting laws at all
times.   A mandated reporter must (unless exempt under law) report allconsumer abuse to the
applicable governmental authorities immediately orassoonaspracticableafterhisorherdiscoveryor
reasonable beliefthatconsumerabusehasoccurred.  

Consumer abuse committed by VMRC employees or employees of service providers or long- term
care facilities will not be tolerated. All such abuse or allegations of such abuse will bethoroughly
investigated.  AnyVMRCemployee foundtohaveengaged inabuseagainstaconsumerwillbesubject
toseverediscipline, uptoand including termination. Anyabuse foundtohave been committed bya
serviceprovider or long-termcare facility employeewill bereferred to the appropriate authorities
and the service provider may also be subject tosanctions up toand including devendorization
whichequates toremoval fromthelistofthoseauthorized toprovideservicesforanyandallregional
centerconsumers.  

REPORTING PROCEDURES

Suspected abusemustbereported immediately bycalling theappropriate 24-hourhotline and
followedbyawrittenreportwithin2daysofreceivingtheinformation concerning theincident.  

Ifyoususpectthatachildisbeingabused, contactChildProtectiveServices:  

SanJoaquinCounty ( 209)468-1333
Stanislaus County( 800)558-3665
AmadorCounty( 209)223-6550or (209)223-1075 (AfterHours) 
CalaverasCounty( 209)754-6452or (209)754-6500 (AfterHours) 
Tuolumne County( 209)533-5717or (209)533-4357 (AfterHours) 

Ifyoususpectthatanadultisbeingabused, contactAdultProtectiveServices:  

SanJoaquinCounty ( 209)468-2202or (888)800-4800

Page 105 of 147



Contractor: AMVACorporation
VendorNo:   HV0411/HV0576/HV0577/HV0610

Page11of11

Stanislaus County( 800)336-4316
AmadorCounty( 209)223-6550or (209)223-1075 (AfterHours) 
CalaverasCounty( 209)754-6452or (209)754-6500 (AfterHours) 
Tuolumne County( 209)768-7753or (209)533-HELP (4357) (AfterHours) 

Ombudsman’sOffices:  

SanJoaquin ( 209)468-3785
Stanislaus( 209)529-3784
Amador( 209)532-7632
Calaveras( 209)532-7632
Tuolumne( 209)532-7632

Page 106 of 147



Contract. r: Central Valley Training Center
Verudor Utdlo: 5V0009, 11V0503, 529378

Page: 1 of 14

Home and Community -Based Services Grant Contract
Fiscal Year 2019-2020

This Grant Contract (" Contract") is entered into this 10tfi day of June, 2020, in the City of Stockton, 
County of San Joaquin, State of California, by and between Valley Mountain Regional Center, Inc. 

Center") and Central Valley Training Center, (" Contractor"). Each party to this Contract shall be referred
to individually as " Party" and collectively as " Parties." This Contract shall be effective on and after the

date in which both Parties sign it (" Effective Date"). 

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, in accordance with California Welfare and Institutions Code § 4648, Center is

authorized to contract with individuals and agencies to provide services to persons with developmental
disabilities; 

B. WHEREAS, Center and Contractor desire to enter into this Contract for the purpose
described in Exhibit A (" Purpose of Contract") attached hereto and incorporated herein; 

C. WHEREAS, Contractor has reviewed the " Home and Communitv- Based Services Provider

Compliance Funding Guidelines " established by the Department of Developmental Services, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C, and affirms that it is capable of establishing

and running a community placement program that meets the standards set forth therein and that is
consistent with all applicable laws and regulations; and

D. WHEREAS, Contractor affirms that Central Valley Training Center, Inc. shall be operated
in accordance with Title 17, Division 2 of the California Code of Regulations, concerning services for

persons with developmental disabilities, and Title 22, Division 6 of the California Code of Regulations
concerning licensure of community care facilities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, including the promises and payments described
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. The definitions set forth in Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations shall

apply to this Contract. The following terms, some of which are taken therefrom, are
specifically utilized in this Contract. 

A. " Consumer" means an individual who has been determined by Center to meet the
eligibility criteria of Section 4512( a) of the California Welfare and Institutions Code and
Sections 54000, 54001 and 54010 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations, and

for whom Center has accepted responsibility. 

B. " DDS" means the State of California Department of Developmental Services. 

C. " Record" means any book, document, writing, whether tangible, or in an electronic
format, evidencing operational, financial and service activities of a service provider such

as Contractor, or Center pertaining to the service program and/ or the provision of
services to persons with developmental disabilities. 

D. " Service" means assistance provided and duties performed by a Vendor for a Consumer. 

E. " Vendor" means an applicant which has been given a vendor identification number and
has completed the Vendorization process, and includes those specified in Sections
54310(d) and (3) of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations. 

Page 107 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 2 of 14

F. " Home and Community Based Services" ( HCBS) means federal rules, effective March 17, 

2014, requiring that vendor service delivery components and strategies are

implemented consistent with impending HCBS rules (community integration and
individualized plans), presumably effective March 17, 2022 and comply with CMS
approved State Plan to secure and maximize State Federal Financial Participation ( FFP). 

2. Purpose of Grant Contract. The purpose of this Contract is to provide grant funding for
Contractor designated for furthering Contractor' s efforts to make adjustments and changes
to Contractor' s service delivery design and settings where services are delivered to achieved

compliance with proposed ( HCBS) rules presumably effective March 17, 2022. 

3. All Grant Funds distributed by Center to Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall be used
solely to further achieve compliance with proposed HCBS rules. Use of any Grant Funds
distributed by Center to Contractor pursuant to this Contract for any other purpose shall
constitute a breach of this Contract and give rise to Center' s right to terminate this Contract
pursuant to Section 17. Contractor expressly agrees that purchases shall be in accordance
with their Provider Concept (Attachment A). 

4. Importance of Collaboration / Designation of Contact Person. The Par -ties expressly
acknowledge that collaboration between the Parties is critical to the successful

implementation of the Home and Community -Based Services Grant. The Parties therefore
expressly agree to work together in good faith to achieve the requirements of this Contract. 

The Parties shall designate one ( 1) or more representatives as the contact person for each
Party. Each party shall) provide the other with the contact information for the contact
person( s) within ten ( 10) days of the Effective Date of this Contract. 

5. Amount of Grant. Center agrees to reimburse Contractor up to a maximum amount of
339,084 for costs directly related to Contractor' s development of Provider Concept

6, Distribution of Grant Funds. 

A„ Terms of Distribution. Center may distribute Grant Funds to Contractor through the
provisions in Project Milestones (Attachment B) attached hereto and incorporated herein
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Contract (" Terms of Distribution"). 

Ba. Contractor' s Budget ( Attachment C) Within 30 days of the Effective Date of this

Contract, Contractor shall submit to Center a budget of expenditures Contractor

anticipates will be made during the Term of Distribution (" Budget"). The Budget shall

include all reasonably anticipated expenditures relating to the development of the
Home and Community - Based Services Grant Project, including, but not limited to, 
salaries, benefits, staff training, materials / curriculum, supplies, related to Provider
Concept

Attachment A). The Budget shall be in the form of a line -item budget and shall identify
an estimate for each line item. Upon receipt of the Budget, Center shall review the

same. Should Center require any changes to the Budget, Center shall identify the
required changes in writing and deliver the same to Contractor within 30 days of receipt
of the Budget from Contractor. Contractor shall make the required changes within 30

Page 108 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor N o: S HVOSOB S29378

Page: 3 of 14

days of receipt of notice thereof and re -submit the Budget to Center for approval. 

Expenditures made without proper authorization from Center will not be reimbursed by

C. Development ofthe Home and Connnounbv' Bamad Services Grant Pmmimct Upon execution of

this Contract, Contractor shall commence development ofthe Home and Community - Based 5anvimeo
Grant Project in accordance with the timeline set forth in the Provider Concept ( Attachment

A) and Project Milestones ( Attachment8),within the scope ofthe Budget, and

pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor shall work diligently to pursue dawa|
oprnant of the Home and Community - Based Services Grant Project in accordance with
the provisions of this contract. ContractorJs failure tomake reasonable efforts to
meet the deadlines set forth in the Provider Concept ( Attachment A) and Project Milestones ( Attachment

B), and tostay within the Budget shall constitute abreach ofthis Contract. Contractor shall complete

development of the Horne and Community Based Services Grant Project, onorbefore
January 3,2022, 7. Distribution Process. Grant Funds

shall bedistributed tpaid Contractor | npaying the costs of the developing the Home and Community Based

Services Grant Project pursuant to the Home and Community —Based Services Provider Compliance Funding
Guidelines ( Fiscal Year 3019-20) and in accordance with providers Provider
Concept ( Attachment A) and Project Milestones ( Attachment B). 8. Quarte v Prmlect Status
Reports- Onprbefore the

tenth ( 1Uth) day ofOctober 2D2O, January 2021, April 2021, July 3821 , commencing the month following the
Effective Date of this Contract and continuing throughout the Term of Distribution, Contractor shall

submit to antees HCBS Program Evaluator, o written project status report ("Quarterly
Project Status Report!'). Each Quarterly Project Status Report shall provide Center with
an update concerning Contractor' s development of the Home and Community — Based
Services Grant Project, including, but not limited to, whether Contractor is meeting
the deadlines set forth in the Provider Concept (Attachment A) and Project Milestones ( Attachment
8). Contractor must identify any anticipated barriers tomeeting the deadlines, strategy for

overcoming any such barriers, whether Contractor | sstaying within the Budget, andadescription
of the purpose/s\for which Grant Funds were expended during the month, etc. 
Failure tosubmit a Quarterly Project Status Report on or before the tenth / IOth\ of the month

may result ina notice from Center to Contractor that Contractor has incurred a breach of contract. 
9. Monthly Accountina Report. On or before the tenth <3rd\ day of each

month, commencing the month following the Effective Date of this Contract and continuing throughout the
Term of Distribution, Contractor shall submit to Center's Assistant Directorof Resource Development / 
Community Support Services, a written monthly accounting report (" Monthly Accounting Report"). Each

Monthly Accounting Report shall identify all expendituresofGrant Funds, 
the corresponding line -item for the expenditures noted |nthe Budget, and shall
include dated receipts for all expenditures. Receipts submitted as part of each Monthly Accounting

Report shall be original receipts, unless submission of an original is impractical (i.
e., salary stubs). All payments to Contractor shall be based upon the information provided in
the Monthly Accounting Reports and corresponding receipts for expenditures. The final date for submitting
the final Monthly Accounting Report and corresponding receipts for expenditures shall be
January 3, 2022^ Grant Funds shall nothepaid forany
expenditures that are not submitted toCenter pnorbefore said final date. 

Page 109 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 4 of 14

10. Failure to Complete Development of the Home and Community -Based Grant Project. 

Contractor shah)) fully complete development of the Home and Community Based Services
Grant Project in accordance with the terms and requirements of this Contract. Should

Contractor fail to complete development of the Community Placement Program Project in
accordance with the terms and requirements of this Contract, on its own volition, or as a

result of Center' s exercise of its right to terminate this Contract, as described in Section 17 of

this Contract, Contractor shall reimburse Center accordingly. 

11, Record Retention Obligation. Contractor shall retain all financial, administrative and

consumer - related) records related to this Contract and the development of the Home and

Community Based Services Grant Project (" Record Retention Requirement") for a period of

no less than five (5) years following the end of the Term of Distribution (" Record Retention

Period"). 

12. Audits by Center. Throughout the Term of Distribution and during the Record Retention
Period, all of Contractor' s financial, administrative and consumer - related records related to

this Contract and the development of the Home and Community Based Services Grant Project

are subject to examination and/ or audit by Center, the State of California and the designees
of both. Should the results of any audit by the Center, the State of California, or the designee
of either, result in a finding that any or all of the Grant Funds were paid by Center to
Contractor in error or were otherwise improper or disallowed based upon the terms of this

Contract or as a result of any applicable law or regulation, Contractor shall repay Center the

amount of said Grant Funds pursuant to the provisions of Title 17 of the California Code of
Regulations, In the event that Center determines repayment of any Grant Funds is

appropriate, Contractor agrees to utilize and abide by the provisions of Title 17, Sections

50700 et seq. of the California Code of Regulations relating to repayment of the Grant Funds, 
appeal of audit findings and/ or recommendations, etc. 

13„ Notices Any and all notices or other correspondence required to be sent to the Parties shall
be sent as follows: 

Center Asst. Director Case Management Services/ Resource Development

Valley Mountain Regional Center
P. O. Box 692290

Stockton, CA 95269- 2290

Contractor: Central Valley Training Center, Inc. 

7475 Murray Dr. Ste. 21
Stockton CA 95210- 5317

14. Compliance with Law. Contractor agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws, 
expressly including, but not limited to, Title 17 and Title 22 of the California Code of
Regulations governing vendorization, residential services, clients' rights, behavior

modification, rate -setting, service provider accountability, special incident reporting, service
contracts, etc. The terms of this Contract shall not be construed to excuse compliance with

existing statutes or regulations. 

15. Compliance with Center Policy. Contractor agrees to comply with all reasonable policies and
procedures of Center as they pertain to Contractor' s provision of services to Center' s
consumers, the administration of grant monies and contracts, and financial matters and

Page 110 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No. SVD009, HV0503, S29378

Page: 5 of 14

records. All such policies and procedures are available for review by Contractor at Center' s

16. Indemnification. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Center, the
State of California, its officers, agents and employees, from any and all claims and issues
accruing or resulting to Contractor and any of its employees, agents, attorneys successors, 

assigns, subcontractors, materialmen, laborers or any other person, firm or corporation that

may be injured or damaged by Contractor in the performance of this Contract. Contractor

shall name Center as an additional insured to its comprehensive and professional liability
policies. 

lJ. No Agency Relationship. Nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create any type of

agency relationship between Center and Contractor. Contractor, its employees, agents, 

attorneys, successors, assigns, subcontractors, etc. shall act in an independent capacity and
not as officers, employees or agents of the Center or the State of California. 

18. Termination of Contract. 

A. Center' s Right toTerminate. Center may terminate this Contract should Center orthe

State of California determine that Contractor has failed to comply with any provision of
this Contract and/ or any applicable federal, state or local law or regulation governing the
provision of services to persons with developmental d|mabl| 1des' Should Center or the
State pfCalifornia determine that termination ofthis Contract isappropriate, Center shall provide Contractor

with a notice of termination describing the reason for termination Notice of
Termination"). This Contract shall he deemed terminated thirty (30) days following delivery
of the Notice of Termination (" Termination Date"). A Notice of Termination shall

be deemed delivered on the date that it iseither mailed or personally delivered to Contractor' 
Upon receipt of Notice of Termination, Contractor shall not conduct any further

activities under this Contract. B. Paymento[

Grant Funds Following Delivery nfNotice ofTermination. Center' s obligation toprovide Grant Funds pursuant

tothis Contract shall cease immediately upon delivery of the Noticeof Termination to
Center regardless of the amount of remaining Grant Funds. Thus, any expenses incurred by
Contractor following delivery of the Notice of Termination will not be reimbursed pursuant

to this Contract If Contractor incurred expenses prior to the Termination Date

that are reimbursable pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor shall deliver a
final KAmnthh/ Accounting Report and corresponding receipts for the expenditures within

ten (10) business days of delivery of the Notice of Termination. [ enter shall
reimburse Contractor for those expenses that were legitimately incurred prior tothe Termination

Date. C. Center' s Right toContinue Purpose of

Contract. Should this Contract baterminated prior to completionof Contractor' s development of the Home
and Community - Based Services Grant Project, Center, inits sole discretion, may proceed tocomplete

development ofthe Community Placement Program Project, as it deems necessary and appropriate under
the circumstances. The cost incurred by Center to complete development of the

Home and Cmnnnmun| tV-Based Services Grant Project shall be reimbursed from remaining
Grant Funds, to the extent that the reimbursement does not conflict with
Contractor' s obligations described inSection 8 hereof. 

Page 111 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: 5V0009, HVO503, 529378

Page: 6 of 14

19. Publicity. Contractor agrees to acknowledge Center in media and publicity as a source of the
Grant Funds for services made possible as a result of this Contract. 

20. Truth of Recitals and Representations. The Parties affirm that the Recitals of this Contract

are true and correct to the best of their knowledge. Contractor further affirms that all fiscal

and other documentation submitted to Center in conjunction with the negotiation and

preparation of this Contract is complete and accurate to the best of Contractor' s knowledge, 
supported by records and source documents, prepared in accordance with Sections 5, 7 and
8 above, and subject to review pursuant to any audit by Center and/ or the State of California. 

21. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in relation to each and every provision of this
Contract. 

22. Integration. This Contract contains the entire agreement between the Parties, and replaces

any prior representations, agreements or understandings, oral or written, that may have
existed between the Parties. The Parties agree that any modification or supplementation of
this Contract shall be in writing, signed by the Parties' respective representatives, and must
refer specifically to this Contract and the provision(s) modified or supplemented. No other
modifications or supplements will be valid. The execution of any modification or

supplementation of this Contract shall comply with the requirements of all applicable statutes
and regulations. 

23. Governing Law and Mutual Drafting This Contract, and any other documents to which it
refers shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed by the laws of the State of
California and the United States of America. This Contract shall be construed as a whole

according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any of the Parties. The Parties
acknowledge that this Contract documents a negotiated agreement and it shall not be

construed or interpreted in favor of either Party, due to the fact that one of the Party' s
attorneys drafted this Contract. 

24, Severability. If any provision of this Contract is deemed invalid or unenforceable, the

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Contract and the

remaining provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

25. Paragraph Headings. Paragraph headings used in this Contract are for convenience only, are
not part of the Contract, and shall not affect any of the terms hereof. 

26. Attornev' s Fees and Costs. In the event that either Party must bring an action in law or equity, 
or otherwise incur attorney' s fees to enforce the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party

thereto may recover reasonable attorney' s fees and costs incurred in connection therewith, 
including, but not limited to, fees and costs incurred in connection with any appeal to and/ or
hearing before the Office of Administrative Hearings. 

27. Exclusive Benefit. This Contract, and each and every provision hereof, is for the exclusive
benefit of the Parties hereof and not for the benefit of any third party. 

28. Counterparts. This Contract may be executed in duplicate counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

29. Delivery by Facsimile or Electronic Mail. Duly executed signatures to this Contract may be
delivered by facsimile or electronic mail, and signature pages delivered by such method shall
be deemed equivalent to and of the same force and effect as original signature pages. 

30. Successors and Assigns. This Contract is binding on the successors and assigns of the Parties. 

Page 112 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 7 of 14

31 Execution of • reement. By signing this Contract, the Parties confirm that they have read
this Contract, understand its contents, agree to its terms, have consulted with their respective

attorneys, and are voluntarily entering into this Contract. 

Accepted and agreed to: 

Dated: 

Dated: I) I LP a0

Valley Mountain Regional Center

By: Anthony ( Tony) Anderson
Its: Executive Director

Contractor

Central Valley Training, Inc. 

Its: Director of Operations

Page 113 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 8 of 14

Exhibit A

Purpose of Contract

A. In January 2014, the federal Centers for Medicate & Medicaid Services issued final regulations, 

rules, for Home and Community Based Services ( HCBS), The rules require that HCBS programs
funded through Medicaid ( called Medi- Cal in California) provides people with intellectual and

developmental disabilities full access to the benefits of community living and offers services and
supports in settings that are integrated into the community, This could include opportunities to

seek employment in competitive and integrated settings, control personal resources, and
engage in the community to the same degree as individuals' who do not receive regional center
services. The HCBS rules focus on the nature and quality of individuals' experiences and not just
the buildings where the services are delivered. 

The purpose of this Contract is to aid Contractor in its development of the Home and
Community -Based Services Grant Project by providing Contractor funding. The Home and
Community -Based Services Grant Project to be developed by Contractor is as follows: 

1. Contractor will utilize the HCBS Grant funding $339.084.00 to bring their program into
further compliance with HCBS/ Federal Requirements # 1-55

2. Contractor agrees to include consumer input in the project implementation and

ongoing monitoring of the project. 
3. Contractor will follow the Provider Concept ( Attachment A) and Project Millestones

Attachment B) as specified within the contract. 

4„ Funding shall be used for a staff position to help to support greater individualized
services in the community and opportunities to seek employment for consumers served. 

5. Provider may utilize funds to purchase a vehicle to increase opportunities for
participants in need of accessible transportation. 

6. Provider may use HCBS grant funds for the acquisition of a certified " train the trainer" in
person —centered planning. 

Page 114 of 147



Contractor: Centrai Valiey Training Center
Vendor No: SVO0C9, HV0503, 529378

Page: 9 of 14

Exhibit B

Terms of Distribution

A. Center will disburse grant funds to Contractor, based on Contractor' s Budget ( Attachment A) on

a monthly basis for expenditures incurred in the prior month upon Center' s receipt and approval
of Contractor' s monthly accounting report of expenditures. 

B. Contractor must submit original receipts to document each expenditure with its monthly
accounting report of expenditures in order for disbursements from grant funds to be approved. 

C. Payment under this Contract is dependent upon availability of State funding being available in
fiscal year 2019- 2020 and 2020- 2021. 

D. Contractor attests that all fiscal and program related documentation is complete; accurate to

the best of Contractor' s knowledge; supported by records and source documentation; prepared
in accordance with the instructions provided by Center; and subject to audit. 

F Contractor shall maintain all accounting records pertinent to this Contract as a separate cost
center from Contractor' s other services to allow for the identification of costs specifically
associated with this Contract. 

F, Contractor agrees and shall certify under penalty of perjury that all claims for payment of Grant
Funds are for legitimate expenses incurred in the development of the Home and Community - 
Based Services Grant Project described in Provider Concept ( Attachment A) and Project

Milestones (Attachment B) and contractor Budget (Attachment C). 

G. Contractor understands that payment of these claims will be from federal and/ or state funds, 

and any falsification or concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted under federal and/ or
state laws. 

H. Contractor shall comply with the Service Providers Accountability Regulations ( Title 17 California
Code of Regulations, Section 50601 through 50612). 

Contractor shall utilize to the fullest extent feasible those public resources which are available
without additional cost to the Contractor and which will enhance the quality of services
provided to those consumers who can benefit from the use of such resources. 

J. Contractor' s use of grant funds and progress toward completing grant project will be monitored
as follows: 

1. Once the HCBS Grant contract is signed and copy received, an internal file is set up with
due dates from the contract, the tracking form for incoming reports, and an Excel file is
created to track incoming invoices, receipts, etc. 

2. An initial appointment is scheduled with the vendor to discuss the contract

requirements including the monthly accounting reports and quarterly progress reports; 
and what they should contain. The expenditure budget, and what it needs to reflect; the
step- by- step list of activities, and the identified milestones. 

3. When the expenditure budget is received it is reviewed internally. If it appears

appropriate, an OPS Check Requisition form is completed, and a copy of the expenditure
budget and the requisition form is sent to Fiscal. 

Page 115 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 10 of 14

The monthly accounting reports are logged in and all invoices and receipts are reviewed. 
Each expenditure is reviewed to be sure the item was initially budgeted and to be sure it
does not fall into the list of " non -allowed" expenditures as per the contract. 

Each expenditure is then logged on the Excel spreadsheet to track the dollars applied

toward the contract. 

1) If there are any questions regarding an expenditure or an expense does not

have a description of service, a letter is mailed out requesting clarification. 

The monthly project status reports are logged in and reviewed to be sure they are in line
with the vendor' s original step-by-step listing of project activities. 

If either of the monthly reports (the monthly accounting report or the quarterly project
status report) are not received by the 3rd of the month a reminder letter and / or e mail
is sent out. 

Page 116 of 147



Home and Co

Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 11 of 14

Exhibit C

un - Based Services Provider Compliance Funding Guidelines
Fiscal Year 2019- 20) 

Attached) 

Page 117 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: 5V0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 12 of 14

Attachment A

See Provider Concept Form pgs. 1- 13

Page 118 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: SV0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 13 of 14

A achment B

Project ilestones

V RC HCBS Co pliance Funding 2019- 20 Ti eline

Proposal pages 16- 17
eporting Te plate

Page 119 of 147



Contractor: Central Valley Training Center
Vendor No: 5V0009, HV0503, 529378

Page: 14 of 14

Attachment C

Contractor Budget

Pgs. 14- 15

Page 120 of 147



I 11111 1 1111111111111111111 11

Home and Community - Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

The Home and Community -Based Services (HCBS) rules ensure that people with
disabilities have full access to, and enjoy the benefits of, community living through long- 
term services and supports in the most integrated settings of their choosing. In order to

assist in determining eligibility for compliance funding, providers must complete this
evaluation. Both " Yes" and " No" answers require an explanation. A " No" response could
mean a service setting is out of compliance with the HCBS rules and is potentially eligible
for funding to make necessary adjustments. Once this evaluation is completed, it should
act as a guide for filling out the provider compliance funding concept, which is required for
any provider to be eligible for compliance funding. Completion of this evaluation is for
the sole purpose of applying for compliance funding and does not take the place of
future provider assessments that the Department may require to determine
provider compliance with the HCBS settings rules. Only providers requesting
compliance funding need to complete this evaluation. 

Federal Requirements # 1- 5 apply to providers of all services, including residential and non- 
residential settings. Federal Requirements # 6- 10 are additional requirements that apply
only to provider -owned or controlled residential settings. 

The column labeled " Guidance" contains a series of questions intended to help identify
compliance or non- compliance with each requirement as it relates to the HCBS rules. 
While responses to these questions can help in the determination of whether or not a
particular requirement is met, these responses may not be the sole factor in this
determination. 

Attachment C

More information on the HCBS rules and this form can be found at www.dds. ca. gov/ HCBS. 

Questions may be directed to HCBSregs aC dds. ca. gov. 

Date( s) of Evaluation: Fiscal Year 2019-20 Completed by: Alicia Alva

Vendor Name, Address, Contact: Vendor Name: Central Valley Training Center, Inc. 
Corporate Address: 7475 N. Murray Drive Ste. 21, Stockton, CA 95210 Contact: CVTC
Director of Operations, Alicia Alva

Vendor Number: SV0009, S29378, HV0503

Service Type and Code: Behavioral Management Program- 515

Page 121 of 147



1 1111 11111111111 IIIIIII= la

Home and Community -Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

Federal Requirement # 1: 

The setting is integrated in, and supports
full access of individuals receiving
Medicaid HCBS to the greater community, 
including opportunities to seek employment
and work in competitive integrated settings, 
engage in community life, control personal
resources, and receive services in the

community, to the same degree of access
as individuals not receiving Medicaid
HCBS. 

Guidance: 

Do individuals receive services in the
community based on their needs, 
preferences and abilities? 

Does the individual participate in
outings and activities in the community
as part of his or her plan for services? 
If an individual wants to seek paid
employment, does the home staff refer
the individual to the appropriate

community agency/ resource? 
Do individuals have the option to
control their personal resources, as
appropriate? 

Does the service and/or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes ® No

Please explain: Individuals receive services in the community based on their needs, 
preferences and abilities however, non -ambulatory and highly behavioral individuals
have limited opportunities to access the community due to limited resources available to
provide enriched staffing along with limited staff vehicles that can support an individual
that requires a mobility device. If an individual wants to seek paid employment, the
individual is referred by the Regional Center. Individuals who want to work have limited
opportunities to seek competitive integrated employment due to a lack of resources and
dedicated time allowance by program staff to facilitate integrated employment
opportunities, smaller groups, and extra staffing support. Individuals have the option to
control their personal resources, as appropriate. 

Federal Requirement #2: 

The setting is selected by the individual
from among setting options, including non - 
disability -specific settings and an option for
a private unit in a residential setting. The
setting options are identified and
documented in the person -centered
service plan and are based on the
individual' s needs, preferences, and, for
residential settings, resources available for
room and board. 

Guidance: 

Does the provider have a current
regional center Individual Program
Plan ( IPP) on file for all individuals? 

Does each individuals' IPP document
the different setting options that were
considered prior to selecting this
setting? 

Does the service and/or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes CO No

Please explain: Current Individual Program Plans are on file for all individuals however, it
is not documented in all IPP' s the different setting options that were considered prior to
selecting CVTC. 

Page 122 of 147



Home and Community -Based Services (HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

Federal Requirement # 3: 

Ensures an individual's rights of privacy, 
dignity and respect, and freedom from
coercion and restraint. 

Guidance: 

Does the provider inform individuals, 
in a manner they can understand, of
their rights to privacy, dignity, respect, 
and freedom from coercion and
restraint? 

Does the provider communicate, both
verbally and in writing, in a manner
that ensures privacy and
confidentiality? 

Do staff communicate with individuals
based on their needs and

preferences, including alternative
methods of communication where

needed ( e. g., assistive technology, 
Braille, large font print, sign language, 
participants' language, etc.)? 

Does the service and/ or program meet this requirement?  Yes I I No

Please explain: Upon intake, CVTC informs individuals of their rights to privacy, dignity
respect, and freedom from coercion and restraint. CVTC communicates both verbally
and in writing, in a manner that ensures privacy and confidentiality. Staff communicate
with individuals through verbal, gestural, and picture exchange. For individuals who have
difficulty using the aforementioned communication, CVTC has limited resources to
assistive technology tools, Braille, sign language, the participant' s language, adaptive
equipment, etc. making it difficult to ensure the individual understands the content that is
being reviewed. 

Federal Requirement # 4: 

Optimizes but does not regiment individual

initiative, autonomy, and independence in
making life choices, including, but not
limited to, daily activities, physical
environment, and with whom to interact. 

Guidance: 

Does the provider offer daily activities
that are based on the individuals' 

needs and preferences? 
Does the provider structure their
support so that the individual is able to

interact with individuals they choose to
interact with, both at home and in

community settings? 

Does the provider structure their
support so that the individual is able to
participate in activities that interest
them and correspond with their IPP

goals? 

Does the service and/ or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes ® No

Please explain: Individuals are offered daily activities based on their needs and
preferences however, non -ambulatory and highly behavioral individuals have limited

Page 123 of 147



U 11111111111111 1b1111

Attachment C
Home and Community -Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

opportunities to access the community due to limited resources available to provide
enriched staffing along with limited staff vehicles that can support an individual that
requires a mobility device. individuals are provided limited options to meet their
employment needs and preferences due to a lack of resources within the program. 
Individuals indicate their preferred setting upon intake and are grouped with individuals of
their preference both onsite and in the community. The individual is provided with
support to participate in activities that interest them and correspond with their IPP goals. 
Individually planned activities and instructions that increase the individual' s ability to
engage in conversation, exchange information, and communicate on a social basis are
provided daily. 

Federal Requirement #5: 

Facilitates individual choice regarding
services and supports, and who provides
them. 

Guidance: 

Does the provider support individuals
in choosing which staff provide their
care to the extent that alternative staff
are available? 

Do individuals have opportunities to

modify their services and/ or voice their
concerns outside of the scheduled

review of services? 

Does the service and/or program meet this requirement? kJ Yes  No

Please explain: Individuals are supported in choosing the staff that provide their care as
well as alternative staff support. Choices are supported in a manner that leaves the
individual feeling empowered to make decisions throughout their day at the program. 
Individuals have continuous opportunities to modify their services and express their
concerns or ask questions regarding the services they receive during IPP meetings, 
through the self -advocacy group, and other opportunities both within and outside of the
program. 

Page 124 of 147



I I I il llil9 llil9 l' 

Attachment C
Home and Community - Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Only providers of services in provider -owned or controlled residential settings need to
complete the remainder of this evaluation. In provider -owned or controlled residential
settings, in addition to the above requirements, the following requirements must also be
met: 

Federal Requirement # 6: 

The unit or dwelling is a specific physical
place that can be owned, rented or
occupied under a legally enforceable
agreement by the individual receiving
services, and the individual has, at a
minimum, the same responsibilities and

protections from eviction that tenants have
under the landlord/ tenant law of the State, 

county, city or other designated entity. For
settings in which landlord/ tenant laws do

not apply, the State must ensure that a
lease, residency agreement or other form
of written agreement will be in place for
each participant and that the document
provides protections that address eviction
processes and appeals comparable to
those provided under the jurisdiction' s
landlord tenant law. 

Guidance: 

As applicable, does each individual

have a lease, residency agreement, 
admission agreement, or other form of

written residency agreement? 
Are individuals informed about how to

relocate and request new housing? 

Does the service and/ or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes 0 No

Please explain: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Federal Requirement # 7: 

Each individual has privacy in his/her
sleeping or living unit: 

Units have entrance doors lockable by the
individual, with only appropriate staff
having keys to doors as needed. 
Individuals sharing units have a choice of
roommates in that setting. 
Individuals have the freedom to furnish and

decorate their sleeping or living units within
the lease or other agreement. 

Guidance: 

Do individuals have a choice

regarding roommates or private
accommodations? 

Do individuals have the option of

furnishing and decorating their
sleeping or living units with their own
personal items, in a manner that is
based on their preferences? 
Do individuals have the ability to lock
their bedroom doors when they
choose? 

Does the service and/or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes 0 No

Please explain: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Page 125 of 147



Attachment C
Home and Community -Based Services (HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Federal Requirement #8: 

Individuals have the freedom and support
to control their own schedules and

activities, and have access to food at any
time. 

Guidance: 

Do individuals have access to food at
any time? 
Does the home allow individuals to set
their own daily schedules? 
Do individuals have full access to
typical facilities in a home such as a

kitchen, dining area, laundry, and
comfortable seating in shared areas? 

Does the service and/or program meet this requirement?  Yes 0 No

Please explain: Click ortap'here to enter text. 

Federal Requirement #9: 

Individuals are able to have visitors of their

choosing at any time. 

Guidance: 

Are visitors welcome to visit the home
at any time? 
Can individuals go with visitors
outside the home; such as for a meal

or shopping, or for a longer visit
outside the home, such as for holidays
or weekends? 

Does the service and/ or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes 0 No

Please explain: Click or tap here to enter text. 

Federal Requirement # 1 0: 

The setting is physically accessible to the
individual. 

Guidance: 

Do individuals have the freedom to
move about inside and outside the

home or are they primarily restricted
to one room or area? 

Are grab bars, seats in bathrooms, 
ramps for wheelchairs, etc., available
so that individuals who need those

supports can move about the setting
as they choose? 
Are appliances and furniture

accessible to every individual? 

Does the service and/ or program meet this requirement? 0 Yes 0 No

p ,_ Please ex lain: Click or to here to enter text. 

iup yr d . Page 126 of 147



1111111111113111111111111 111111111111111

Home and Community - Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Name: Alicia Alva

Attachment C

Contact Phone Number: 559- 292- 1392

Email Address: aalva@cvtcinc. com

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

By checking the box below, I acknowledge that completion of this evaluation is for the
sole purpose of applying for compliance funding and does not take the place of future
provider assessments that the Department may require to determine provider compliance
with the HCBS settings rules. 

II I AGREE

Page 127 of 147



2991911111

Home and Community -Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

Existing regional center vendors may receive funding to make changes to service settings
and/ or programs to help them come into compliance with the HCBS rules. To be

considered for funding, vendors must complete and submit this form and the provider
compliance evaluation form as one packet to the regional center with which it has primary
vendorization. 

Instructions: 

The concept form on the next page must be used, may not exceed four pages plus
the budget worksheet and any cost back up, and must be kept in Arial 12- point font. 
Submit the form in Microsoft Word or PDF format. An extra half page is permitted to
answer questions about prior funding, but the rest of the concept must be within the
standard page requirements. 

There has been a significant change in the form and process compared to prior
years. In order to receive funding, this 2019- 20 form must be used. 
For providers that operate programs with several vendor numbers involved in one
concept, one evaluation and concept form should be submitted and should list all
vendor numbers for related/ included programs. If multiple programs owned by the
same parent company have different compliance evaluations or concepts, additional
applications can be submitted but should be attached in the same document as the
other owned programs so they can be reviewed together. 

The results of the evaluation should be clearly laid out in the section referring to
identification of federal requirements that are currently out of compliance, which the
concept will address. 

The concept form includes detailed information that describes the funding requests
and supports how the requests will assist the provider to come into compliance. 
There should be a clear link between what is being requested and the federal
requirement currently out of compliance. 

Concepts should demonstrate how the requested change in service delivery will
impact individuals in offering more choices or opportunities in the community. 

Strengths of previously funded concepts: 
Identified the need as well as proposed a plan to provide outreach and information
regarding the HCBS rules to individuals served and members of their support teams. 

Discussed the need for additional funds in order to effectively support individuals
served on a more individualized basis in overcoming barriers to community
integration and employment, as appropriate. 

Prioritized the preferences of individuals served and utilized their feedback in the
development of the concept. 

Implemented train -the -trainer certification for person -centered planning/ thinking and
training regarding the HCBS rules. 

Enabled residents to age in place and exercise more choice and independence. 
More information on the HCBS rules and this form can be found at www. dds. ca. gov/ HCBS. 

Page 128 of 147



y 3iihtiuiMntiry13 111»3213233

Home and Community - Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

Vendor name Central Valley Training Center, Inc. 
Vendor number(s) SV0009, S29378, HV0503

Primary regional center Valley Mountain Regional Center

Service type( s) Behavior Management Program

Service code( s) 515

Number of individuals

currently served
141, 118, 112

Current staff to
individual ratio

1: 3

1. Please provide a brief description of the service/ setting that includes what a typical day
consists of and how services are currently provided. This response must include the
baseline/ current levels for any aspects of the program for which the concept proposes funding. 
CVTC provides services to individuals in need of support with challenging and/ or
socially inappropriate behavior. CVTC believes that providing community integration to
individuals promotes the ability to live, work and participate independently within the
community setting. Currently, employment opportunities are based on the job market
limiting the opportunities available for individuals based on their needs and preferences. 
Individuals are provided access to the community in a group setting as there are limited
resources to support individualized community integration. This can be challenging to
provide consistently for highly behavioral individuals as well as individuals with limited
mobility. 

Project Narrative Description: 

2. Please provide a brief summary narrative of the concept for which you are requesting
funding, including justification for the funding. 

Program Coordinator: Lead the community/ employment team in enhancing access to
developing and securing competitive integrated employment. 
the Job Procurement Specialists and Job Coaches. 

Full- time Job Procurement Specialists within the

the greater community and
This position will supervise
2 Job Procurement Specialists: 

programs will facilitate opportunities
around the individuals' interests, 
1: 1 Job Coaches: 1: 1 Job

for competitive integrated employment centered
preferences, and abilities. 

Coaches in addition to the current 1: 3 ratio in the program will
placements in the community. The number of 1: 1

on the needs of the individual and job placements. 
the Program Coordinator and Job Procurement

to ensure community access and competitive integrated
actively sought. The estimated vehicle usage will be 80% of

to areas within the community, visiting multiple businesses
meetings and interviews, transporting individuals to

to sustain placement, etc. 

help to stabilize individual employment
Job Coaches will vary depending
3 Company Vehicles: Provide
Specialists' with transportation
employment opportunities are

the available hours traveling
daily regarding opportunities, 
interviews, providing check -ins

Page 129 of 147



IIV VTNItIiNttUM 111 lll lll

Home and Community -Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

1: 1 Instructors: Utilizing 1: 1 Instructors in addition to the current 1: 3 Instructors in the
program will provide additional support to individuals requiring a greater need of support
while in the community. The number of 1: 1 Instructors will vary depending on the needs of
the individuals' in the community. 
3 Wheelchair Accessible Vans: The utilization of wheelchair accessible vans for each
facility will allow for increased integration into the greater community and the ability to
provide employment opportunities to individuals limited to onsite training because of their
non -ambulatory status. 
Training & Supports: In order to fully implement person -centered services and planning, 
CVTC is requesting the following training & supports to ensure that CVTC is implementing
person -centered services according to the HCBS Rules consistently throughout the
organization: I: Training Coordinator Position: The Training Coordinator will be
responsible for ensuring all CVTC employees are trained annually on person -centered
services and that person -centered services are implemented consistently throughout the
organization. II. Train -the -Trainer: The Training Coordinator and select CVTC
management members will receive the "Trainer -the -Trainer" certification on Person - 
Centered Planning/ Thinking to conduct training throughout the organization. III. Training: 
Provide training opportunities both internally and externally related to competitive
integrated employment that can include trainings such as the ACRE -Approved Basic
Employment Certification that will cover Introduction to Customized Employment and
Discovery and other job development tools. 
Technology/ Software & Training: I: Expand communication with all individuals needing
alternative methods of communication with supports such as assistive technology, sign
language, the participants' primary language, etc. Staff would be provided training and
education on the software and/ or participants' language. II: Positions such as the
Program Coordinator, Job Procurement Specialists, 1: 1 Job Coaches, and 1: 1 Instructors
will require technological devices such as smart phones, tablets and laptops as their
primary assignments will be community based. III: Provide a Career Readiness Program
through an accredited school whereby individuals can earn certifications and career
diplomas. An active learning environment including technological devices such as tablets, 
smart boards, computers, etc. will support collaborative learning in the classroom related
to resume building, submitting online applications, and the completion of the career
readiness program. 

Therap Employment Module: Purchase Therap Services Employment Module to track
placements and progress on the individuals in competitive integrated employment
settings. 

Lease Office with Training Room: Lease office with a large training room neighboring
the Stockton West facility to provide ongoing staff training on person -centered services, 
competitive integrated employment, accessing the community, alternative methods of
communication, new technology and software, etc. This office will also house the Program
Coordinator, Training Coordinator, and Job Procurement Specialists. 
Access to Desired Activities: Support individuals' requesting to participate in activities
outside of normal business hours for activities such as professional sports games, 
concerts, amusement parks, etc. 

Branding/ Public Relations: Infuse person -centered planning/ thinking into the culture
and branding of CVTC and provide outreach and printed materials regarding the HCBS
rules to individuals served, members of their support team, and the community at large. 

Page 130 of 147



0tltlMtti IM1>iMlll4 1111 11111111111 1111 1111111411111 1111111 111 Home and

Community - Based Services (HCBS) Rules CONCEPT FORM
Attachment C

3. Identify

which HCBS federal requirements this concept addresses that are currently out of compliance. Could
be all or a subset of those identified as out of compliance on the evaluation. 1 _X_ 

2_ X_ 3_ X_ 4_ X_ 5 6 7 8 9_ 10 4. For

each HCBS out -of -compliance federal requirement that isbeing addressed by this concept, describe
the barriers to compliance and why this concept is necessary. If this information is
in the evaluation section, please copy it here. Federal Requirement #
1: Non -ambulatory and highly behavioral individuals have limited opportunities
to access the community due to limited resources for enriched staffing support
while in the community and staff vehicles that can transport mobility devices. Individuals
are provided limited options to meet their employment needs and preferences due
to lack of resources within the program. Federal Requirement #2: Current Individual
Program Plans are on file for all individuals however, it is not documented in
all IPP' s the different setting options that were considered prior to selecting CVTC. 
Federal Requirement # 3: CVTC has limited resources to assistive technology tools, 
sign language, the participant' s language, adaptive equipment, etc. making it
difficult to ensure the individual understands the content that is being reviewed. Federal Requirement #
4: See response to Federal Requirement #1 listed above. 5. For

each out -of -compliance federal requirement that is addressed in this concept, please explain how
the concept will bring the vendor into compliance. Federal Requirement #

1: Funding for the requested positions, training, and other resources will
further enhance person -centered services throughout the organization. CVTC will
be able to provide individuals withagreater access to the community and competitive integrated
employment opportunities based on their needs and preferences. Federal
Requirement #2: CVTC will request addendums tobe attached to Individual
Program Plans that do not contain IPP's documenting the different setting options considered
prior to selecting CVTC. Federal Requirement #3: By providing alternative methods
of communication, individuals can communicate their needs and preferences in
amanner that can be understood. Federal Requirement #4: See response to
Federal Requirement #1 listed above. 6. What

are the proposed outcomes and objectives of the concept, and what are the methods of achieving and
tracking them? The proposed

outcome of this concept is that CVTC will support all individuals in the greater community
based on their needs and preferences, develop and sustain competitive integrated
employment, increase communication with individuals using alternative communication
methods and enhance training and development in providing person - centered
services consistently throughout the organization. Tracking will be maintained through
Therap Services Electronic Documentation ina variety of modules and monitored
daily. 7. Please

describe how and/or what was done to include input from the individuals served indeveloping this
concept? Discuss not only the development of the concept, but also what steps were taken
to identify the interests and desires of the individuals and who was involved in that process. 

Page 131 of 147



0161181112

Home and Community -Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

CVTC conducts ongoing client council meetings whereby CVTC receives feedback from
the individuals served expressing their interests and desires. Additionally, CVTC
provides satisfaction surveys requesting feedback from the individuals, care
homes/ families, stakeholders, etc. CVTC leadership completed person -centered
planning training in 2019 and has adopted the " Personal Profile" to be completed with
all individuals served based on their needs and preferences. 

8. Please describe how the concept you propose will enable you to provide more person - 
centered services to your clients. 

This concept promotes person -centered services and will enhance the delivery of
services in a manner reflecting the individuals' personal needs and preferences while
also ensuring the individual has opportunities to access the greater community, seek
employment and work in competitive integrated settings to the same degree of access as
individuals not receiving Medicaid HCBS. 

9. Please address your plan for maintaining the benefits, value, and success of your project at
the conclusion of 2019- 20 HCBS Funding. 

CVTC has requested funding for positions, training, and other resources that will further
enhance person -centered services throughout the organization. The positions and
resources requested will serve multiple purposes and will be maintained through the
submission of a Program Design for Service Code: 055- Community Integration Training
Program. Through this Program Design, CVTC will ensure the individuals served
maintain access to the greater community and are provided work in competitive
integrated settings based on their needs and preferences. 

10. Write a brief narrative below explaining each major cost category and timeline. Complete the
budget template at the end of the concept sheet. An excel version with formulas is available. 
When applicable, budgets should include personnel/ benefits, operating costs such as
consultants or training, administrative expenses/ indirect costs, and capital costs ( assets lasting
more than 2 years). If project spans 2 years or occurs in phases, budget should be separated by
phase/ year. 

Administrative costs, if any, must comply with DDS' vendor requirements, including a cap of
15% of the sum of personnel/ benefits, consulting, and operating costs (must exclude capital
costs). 

http:// Ieginfo. legislature. ca. gov/ faces/ codes displavSection. xhtml? sectionNum= 4629, 7& IawCod
e= WIC

See attached budget and timeline. 

11. Please address sustainability of funding sources for all programs or concepts requiring any
funding past the time frame of the requested grant, especially those that involve staff or other
long- term costs. Please mark " not applicable" if costs will all be incurred during the program
time frame. 

Not applicable. 

12. Have you or the
organization you work
with been a past recipient
of DDS funding? If yes, 
what fiscal year( s)? 

HCBS Funding No X_ Yes. If Yes, FY( s)_ 2016/ 2017_ 
Disparity Funding _ No _ Yes. If Yes, FY( s) 

CPP Funding _ No _ Yes. If Yes FY( s) 

If yes to any question be sure to answer questions 13 and 14. 

Page 132 of 147



it

Home and Community - Based Services ( HCBS) Rules
CONCEPT FORM

Attachment C

For providers who have received prior HCBS, Disparity or CPP Funding from DDS
13. If your organization has received prior funding from any of the above sources, please
provide an update on the prior funding project. You may copy and paste from progress
update( s) previously provided to regional centers or DDS. 

CVTC received HCBS funding in 2017 to be used in the Fresno, Merced, and Visalia
programs. Since the grant funds were received, CVTC has trained and developed new
positions such as Job Procurements Specialists and Job Coaches among other
positions on how to develop and secure paid internships and competitive integrated
employment. In 2019, the programs secured 36 paid internships/ competitive integrated
employment opportunities. 

14. If your organization received prior funding, please explain how the current funding request is
not redundant with any prior funding received and/ or builds on the prior funding but was not partof the original funding. 

CVTC received HCBS funding in 2017 to be used in the Fresno, Merced, and Visalia
programs. HCBS funding has not been received in the Modesto and Stockton areas. 
With much success developing and maintaining paid internships and competitive
integrated employment opportunities through the Job Procurement Specialists and Job
Coaches in the Central Valley, CVTC is requesting the same model for the Modesto and
Stockton region. Additionally, CVTC is requesting additional positions and resources to
build on the prior funding received in the Fresno, Merced, and Visalia to ensure long- 
term sustainability. 

Page 133 of 147



0V1 IYMMR 111111111111 Capital

expenses 3

Wheelchair Accessable Vehicles HCBS;

CONCEPT BUDGET endor

Name endor

Nurtiber(s Central
Valley Training Center SV0009, 

S29378, HV0503 Personnel (

salary + benefits) Year

1 Budget Year 20Budge Total Salaryand

Benefits FTE
nnual Cost FTE1 Annual Cos' Cost Job Procurement

Specialist 500292. 00 ob Coach

39177 4. 50 Training Coordinator

703450. 50 P ogram

Coordinator InstructorlI Position

Description

Position Description

Position Description

Position Description

Personnel Subtotal

0N

erating e • enses Train the

TrainerTrainin Trainings Branding/

Public

Relations/ Printing Phone Mileage
Lease

Utilities

Therap

Employment

Module Train the

Trainer Training travel Desired Activities
Operating Subtota100

lAdAd

ministrativeExpenses `- ,, 0 110100lA' 0
100 no 0 00000 0110000 0r, 0; il00 0l Administrative Expenses

@ 12% of Salaries Iil

uPtlu Administrative Subtotal ,,kVl u , l ,,, ulus, , ulIIu 2 Vehicles

for Job Procurement Specialists3 Computers

for staff 2 Smart

Boards for Trainings 9 Laptops

for Job Coaches 6 Computers

for Consumers Vehicle for

the Training Coordinator Assistive Technology & 

Software Career Readiness
Program Capital Subtotal

Total Concept

Costc.mCliil pG! i0 See Attachment

F for budget details and restrictions ilP;il;

la 70820 1.

00 39468 1.

00 000 IIV

U

V0n

14m

100,

058

176, 297

35, 173

70, 820

39,468

421, 815

3,000

100, 058

176, 297

35,173

70, 820

39, 468

421, 815

37,220

30, 400

77, 000

6,300

4, 350

12, 000

3,000

600 111111

600 3, 164

P 2,000
w) 176, 034

165,000

40,000

2,250

4, 000

6, 300

4,500

20, 000

10,000

8,000

260, 050

908,517

Ill 3,

164

2, 000

176, 034

50,618

50, 618

I a

110 4

165,

000 40,000

2,250

4, 000

6, 300

4, 500

20, 000

10, 000

8,000

260, 050

908, 517

Page 134 of 147



11 111yN` 11 11 11 111V1l1l111111111 11111111111111111111 1 1111111 11 11 lllllllllly11 11111 It

HCBS CONCEPT BUDGET

Vendor (Virile- ;°: 

Vendor Niimber( s) 

Personnel ( salary+"benefits) 
ob Procurement Specialist

ob Coach

raining Coordinator

Program Coordinato

Instructor II

Position Description

Position Description

Position Descrlotion

Position Description

Personnel Subtotal

O. eratin expenses" 

Central Valley Training Center
SV0009, S29378, HV0503

Year 1 Budget Year 2 Budget Total

Salary and " 
Benefits. FTE ; AnnualrCost " FTE Annual Cos Cos

50029 2. 00 $ 100,058 $ - $ 100, 058

39177 4, 50 $ 176, 297 $ - $ 176, 297
70345 0. 50 $ 35, 173 $ - $ 35, 173
70820 1. 00 $ 70,820 ! $ - $ 70, 820

39468 1. 00 $ 39, 468 $ - $ 39,468

iu illl, I ( v, u ry Yvul 1u Po I' III Y vll ml

l iu IIIIIi 1iM416flIIINl tlYIIYY WIVIU ll Ubilv i1! IINIII'flry IY4 Yi'R' ud

Train the Trainer Training
Trainings

Branding/ Public Relations/ Printing
Phone

Mileage

Lease

Utilities

Therap Employment Module

Train the Trainer Training travel
Desired Activities

Operating Subtotal

Expenses

NI' mmllll

11" u1 u III IiJiNI y IwalriM! 10V„ 11IIY 11,' il' I

dministrative Expenses @ 12% of Salaries

Administrative Subtotal

Ca" • italex'. enses'" 

iV1v„ lN„ i1i 0111IIII1 Ip Vllm' nA,,11 
u

IJIIIW ry Ilwlll1 ' II.',,„
1,„

I
Ili'r .1limii "

l
I

3 Wheelchair Accessable Vehicles

2 Vehicles for Job Procurement Specialists

3 Computers for staff

2 Smart Boards for Trainings

9 LaptopsforJob Coaches

6 Computers for Consumers

Vehicle for the Training Coordinator

Assistive Technology & Software
Career Readiness Program

Capital Subtotal

otal Concept Cost

See Attachment F for budget details and restrictions

37,220

30,400

77, 000

6,300

4, 350

12, 000

3, 000

600

3, 164

2,000

176, 034

50, 618

50, 618

165, 000

40,000

4, 000

6, 300

4,500

20, 000

10,000

8, 000

260,050

908,517

111IIII11 $ - $ 

fVl

421, 815

37, 220

30, 400

77, 000

6, 300

4, 350

12, 000

3, 000

600

3, 164

2, 000

176, 034

50,618

I$ 

50,618

165, 000

40,000

2, 250

4,000

6, 300

4,500

20, 000

10, 000

8, 000

260, 050

908,517

Page 135 of 147



IA EBB

Budget Narrative and Timeline

Personnel

Program Coordinator ( 1 FTE): The Program Coordinator will provide direct
supervision to Job Procurement Specialists and Job Coaches for the
community/ employment team. 

Job Procurement Specialist ( 2 FTE): Positions will be filled at the start of the grant
and run for the entire length of the grant ( 1 year). The Job Procurement Specialists will
be tasked with going out in the community to find employment opportunities. 
Job Coaches ( 4. 5 FTE): Positions will be filled starting with 3 Job Coaches after the
first 3 months of the grant. 3 more will be filled at the 6- month mark of the grant. The
final 3 will be filled at the 9- month mark of the grant for a total of 4.5 FTE's. The Job
Coaches will be tasked with supporting individuals in their employment placements. 
Instructor II ( 1 FTE): The Instructor II position will support individuals with a greater
need of support while in the community. The position will consist of several staff used
over the period of the grant but will average 1 FTE during the grant life. 
Training Coordinator (. 5 FTE): The Training Coordinator is a . 5- time position that will
be certified to train staff in person -centered services and ensure certifications and
training remain current. 

Operating Expenses

Train -the -Trainer Certification ( 4 Staff): CVTC will send the Training Coordinator and
Management to be certified in Person -Centered Planning/ Thinking. The Training
Coordinator and Management will provide training throughout the organization. 
Trainings & Materials: This cost is to cover customized employment trainings and
materials needed to implement the training throughout the organization. 

Branding/ Public Relations/ Printing: Infuse person -centered planning/ thinking into the
culture and branding of CVTC and provide outreach and information regarding the
HCBS rules to the community and potential employers. Informational materials will be
printed to provide information within the organization, the community, and potential
employers. 

Phone: Provide phones for the Training Coordinator, Job Procurement Specialists and
Job Coaches. 

Mileage: Approximately 7,500 miles for Job Coaches to work with individuals in job
placements. 

Page 136 of 147



Lease: Cost to lease office space for trainings; workspace for Job Procurement
Specialists, Job Coaches and the Training Coordinator. 

Utilities: Cost for electricity and water for the leased office space. 

Therap Employment Module: Used to track placements and progress on the
individuals in competitive employment settings. 

Train -the -Trainer training travel: Cost to send 4 staff to the Train -the -Trainer training
including hotel, travel (airfare, shuttle, mileage) and per diem. 
Desired Activities: Support individuals requesting to participate in activities outside of
normal business hours for activities such as professional sports games, concerts, 
amusement parks, etc. 

Administrative Expenses

Administrative Expenses: Based on 12% of salaries. 

Capital Expenses

Vehicles: 3 Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles, and 3 vehicles for the Training
Coordinator and Job Procurement Specialists. 

Technological Devices: 3 computers for staff, 2 smart boards for collaborative learning
and career readiness training, 9 laptops for Job Coaches and 6 computers for CVTC
participants. 

Assistive Technology & Software: Cost to purchase alternative methods of
communication and software to support individuals with limited communication skills. 

Career Readiness Program: Career readiness program to prove certifications and
career diplomas. 

Page 137 of 147



1 Blue Mountain Transit Inc  $       1,404,000 

2 Camello Supported Living  $           720,000 

3 Giggles Early Intervention  $           875,522 

4 JBallelos CIP  $           536,880 

5 Lifeworks-ACS, Inc.  $           342,506 

6 Linden Grove, LLC  $           981,792 

7 PEDS - Professional Evaluations  & Developmental Services, LLC  $       3,100,000 

8 Psychiatric Centers at San Diego, Inc. Medical Group  $           900,000 

9 Sierra Environmental & Social Services, Inc.  $       1,560,000 

10 Teamwork Speech Therapy  $           380,156 

11 California Mentor Family Home Agency  $       2,008,104 

12 Community Compass SLS  $           599,301 

13 Community Compass BMP  $       1,440,000 

14 Futures Explored  $           436,522 

15 Hana Hou Alliance, LLC  $           555,777 

16 Jar-Mill's Place  $           470,063 

17 Keyholders 360, Inc.  $           816,000 

18 Storer Transportation - Stockton  $       6,120,000 

19 Storer Transportation - Modesto  $       3,696,056 

20 Vocational Coaching & Development Institute, Inc. (VCDI) CITP  $       1,046,240 

21 Vocational Coaching & Development Institute, Inc. (VCDI) BMP  $           291,491 

22 AMVA Corporation - Apique Behavioral Services  $       1,439,671 

23 Central Valley Training Center - HCBS Grant FY 19-20  $           339,084 

        

Lynda Mendoza, Board Secretary Date

Certification by Secretary:   I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of VMRC: (2) the foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the 

Resolution duly adopted by VMRC's Board of Directors; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or changed in any way.  

Contract Summary and Board Resolution
Valley Mountain Regional Center's Board of Directors reviewed the contracts below on August 17, 2020 and passed the following resolution: 

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with VMRC's BOD Contract Policy, the contracts listed below between VMRC and stated vendors were reviewed 

and approved by the VMRC BOD on August 17, 2020  and Board hereby authorized any Officer of the corporation  to execute the Agreement 

without material changes but otherwise on such terms deemed satisfactory to such Officer.  

VMRC Board of Directors hereby authorizes and designates any office of VMRC to finalize, execute and deliver the Contract on behalf of VMRC, in 

such form as VMRC's counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve.  The final terms of the Contract 

shall be conclusively evidence by the execution of the Contract by such Officer.  For purposes of this authorization, and "Officer" means VMRC's 

Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and no one else.  

Page 138 of 147



Page 139 of 147



Page 140 of 147



Page 141 of 147



Valley Mountain Regional Center

Cash Flow Projection

Actual 5/31/2020 Balance 24,521,440.86$    

Pojected June Cash Receipts 11,500,000.00       

Projected June Expenditures (24,300,000.00)     

Projected June Balance 11,721,440.86$    

7/3/2020 SSI/SSA (42,000.00)             11,679,440.86$   

7/5/2020 OPS check run (345,000.00)           11,334,440.86     

7/10/2020 POS General (15,000,000.00)     (3,665,559.14)      

7/12/2020 Payroll (800,000.00)           (4,465,559.14)      

7/12/2020 OPS check run. (80,000.00)             (4,545,559.14)      

7/15/2020 POS General (8,000,000.00)        (12,545,559.14)    

7/17/2020 OPS check run (215,000.00)           (12,760,559.14)    

Page 142 of 147



Enter Number of Months Claimed (4 for Dec 10 report) 10 (once 12 months are claimed, keep at 12)

Date of POS Payments Cut-Off: April 30, 2020 REPORT DATE:   June 10, 2019

Actual Expenditures through April 2020

CURRENT MONTH Enter Prior Month CHANGES

High Estimate High Estimate High Estimate

NON-CPP EXPENDITURES

Estimated Cost of Current Services $241,820,988 $240,538,337 1,282,650

Estimated Growth $0 $0 0

Enter Other Items as necessary, which may include but are not limited to:

1.   Deduct allocation for HCBSW Compliance N/A

2. Deduct estimated receipts from ICFs for SPA services. -2,000,000 -2,000,000 0

3.  One time adjustment of base N/A

4. Adjustment for SSI CCF Rate N/A

5. SSI/SSP Restoration (Not Yet Paid) N/A

6. Supplemental Rate Increase (effective Jan 2020) N/A

7. Adjust for current projection -10,000,000 -9,000,000 (1,000,000)

8. 0

9. 0

10. 0

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES $229,820,988 $229,538,337 282,650

VALLEY MOUNTAIN REGIONAL CENTER

POS EXPENDITURE PROJECTION (PEP) SUMMARY

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Projection Summary pg1
Page 143 of 147



REGIONAL CENTER: VALLEY MOUNTAIN REGIONAL CENTER Number of remaining Months 2

FISCAL YEAR: Fiscal Year 2019-2020

NO. OF MONTHS CLAIMED: 10

NON-CPP EXPENDITURES

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6 Column 7 Column 8 Column 9 Column 10

Enter YTD 

Expenditures
Late Bills

# of Mos/Days 

to End Of Year 

(EOY)

Rate

Projected Costs 

for Current 

Consumers

Estimated Cost 

of Current 

Services

Estimated 

Growth

Jul-Apr May-Jun HIGH

OUT-OF-HOME CARE

Community Care Facilities $59,560,542 $6,519,147 1,372 2 $4,816 $13,215,938 $79,295,626 0.0 0.0% $0

ICF/SNF Facilities $93,634 $8,916 2 2 $5,768 $20,510 $123,061 0.0% $0

    Total Out-of-Home Care $59,654,176 $6,528,063 $13,236,448 $79,418,687 $0

DAY PROGRAMS

Day Care $1,032,373 $120,312 116 2 $998 $230,537 $1,383,222 0.0% $0

Day Training $31,348,014 $3,624,607 2,399 2 $1,458 $6,994,524 $41,967,144 0.0% $0

Supported Employment  

    950-SEP Group $1,002,936 $113,317 73 2 $1,521 $223,251 $1,339,503 0.0% $0

    952-SEP Placement $461,415 $54,501 105 2 $489 $103,183 $619,098 0.0% $0

Work Activity Program   

    954-WAP $439,223 $52,931 72 2 $679 $98,431 $590,585 0.0% $0

    Total Day Programs $34,283,961 $3,965,667 $7,649,925 $45,899,553 0.0 0.0% $0

OTHER SERVICES

Non-Medical: Professional $450,150 $44,840 123 2 $403 $98,998 $593,988 0.0% $0

Non-Medical: Programs $21,901,504 2,147,251 1,200 2 2,004 4,809,751 28,858,506 0.0% 0

Home Care: Programs $985,350 120,025 25 2 4,352 221,075 1,326,450 0.0% 0

Transportation $2,272,389 270,559 1,615 2 158 508,590 3,051,538 0.0% 0

Transportation Contracts $13,806,074 1,389,358 1,715 2 886 3,039,086 18,234,518 0.0% 0

Prevention $12,547,847 1,442,427 1,876 2 746 2,798,055 16,788,329 0.0% 0

Other-Comm. Activity Services 063 $183,691 15,542 12 2 1,633 39,847 239,080 0.0% 0

Other-SSI/SSP Restoration 065 $446,075 63,008 746 2 68 101,817 610,900 0.0% 0

Other-SLS 896 $13,158,896 1,358,495 673 2 2,157 2,903,478 17,420,868 0.0% 0

Other Authorized Services $4,508,850 512,200 2,672 2 188 1,004,210 6,025,261 0.0% 0

Personal and Incidentals $33,369 3,928 31 2 120 7,460 44,757 0.0% 0

Hospital Care $381,250 44,943 1 2 42,619 85,239 511,432 0.0% 0

Medical Equipment $205,226 32,754 12 2 1,951 47,596 285,576 0.0% 0

Medical Service: Professional $3,409,108 375,697 691 2 548 756,961 4,541,767 0.0% 0

Medical Service: Programs $32,062 1,906 19 2 178 6,794 40,762 0.0% 0

Respite: In Own Home $13,193,765 1,321,582 2,478 2 586 2,903,069 17,418,416 0.0% 0

Respite: Out of Home $383,407 0 23 2 1,667 76,681 460,089 0.0% 0

Camps $30,504 11,589 4 2 1,169 8,419 50,512 0.0% 0

    Total Other Services $87,929,518 $9,156,105 $19,417,125 $116,502,748 0.0 0.0% $0

TOTAL POS $181,867,655 $19,649,835 $40,303,498 $241,820,988 0.0 0.0% $0

.

Enter 

Consumer 

Growth/Mo.

Enter 

Growth 

Variance, 

Enter % of

Regional Centers may opt to use a 

different reasonable methodology to 

calculate Estimated Growth 

Enter Avg # of

 Consumers 

per Month 

(Status 1 & 2 )

Non-CPP pg2
Page 144 of 147



Enter Estimated Late Bills 

Jul-Apr

Enter the estimated late bills either on this worksheet or directly on the Non-CPP and CPP worksheets.  

The data entered on the Late Bills worksheet automatically posts on the Non-CPP and CPP worksheets.

NON-CPP

OUT-OF-HOME CARE

Community Care Facilities 6,519,147

ICF/SNF Facilities 8,916

    Total Out-of-Home Care $6,528,063

DAY PROGRAMS

Day Care 120,312

Day Training 3,624,607

Supported Employment

    950-SEP Group 113,317

    952-SEP Placement 54,501

Work Activity Program

    954-WAP 52,931

    Total Day Programs $3,965,667

OTHER SERVICES

Non-Medical: Professional 44,840

Non-Medical: Programs 2,147,251

Home Care: Programs 120,025

Transportation 270,559

Transportation Contracts 1,389,358

Prevention 1,442,427

Other-Comm. Activity Services 063 15,542

Other-SSI/SSP Restoration 065 63,008

Other-SLS 896 1,358,495

Other Services 512,200

Personal and Incidentals 3,928

Hospital Care 44,943

Medical Equipment 32,754

Medical Service: Professional 375,697

Medical Service: Programs 1,906

Respite: In Own Home 1,321,582

Respite: Out of Home 0

Camps 11,589

    Total Other Services $9,156,105

TOTAL LATE BILLS $19,649,835

C:\ProgramData\activePDF\Temp\DocConverter\Folders\Default\Input\[3162082_5001756.xlsx]Late Bills pg3

6/24/20 3:54 PM

VALLEY MOUNTAIN REGIONAL CENTER

Late Bills pg3
Page 145 of 147



VALLEY MOUNTAIN REGIONAL CENTER

Projection Summary: Explanation

Actual Expenditures through April 2020

Enter Additional Information / Other Items: Non CPP

Provide a detailed explanation of any of the items listed on the Projected Summary worksheet, Other Items section, and 

the reason for a significant (more than 2%) change from the prior month.

Explanation,Comments pg 4
Page 146 of 147



October Popplewell Fund Donations

Date Donor Amount

06/18/20 YourCause 10.00             

06/18/20 Charities Aid Foundtation 58.65             

Current Fund Balance 15,961.69$   

 

Page 147 of 147


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	A. Review and Approval of Meeting Agenda
	B. Review and Approval of Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 06/03/20
	Fin Com Minutes 06 03 20.pdf

	C. Pubic Comment
	D. Approval of Contracts Over $250,000
	Contract Board Approval Report 2020-09-30.pdf
	Contract Board Approval Report 2020-10-31.pdf
	JBallelos CIP 20-21 5yr Contract Renewal.pdf
	Linden Grove 20-21 5yr Contract Renewal.pdf
	Jar-Mill's Place 20-21 5yr Contract Renewal.pdf
	AMVA Corp 19-20 Amend Add Program.pdf
	CVTC HCBS Grant 19-20.pdf
	Contract Summary & Board Resolution 2020-08.pdf

	E. Fiscal Department Update
	1. Acceptance of Contract Status Report (CSR)
	Contract Status Report July 2020.pdf

	2. Review of Purchase of Service (POS) and Operations (OPS) Expenditures 
	POS and OPS Reports July 2020.pdf

	3. Cash Flow Projection Report
	Cash Projection thru end of FY.xlsx

	4. VMRC Monthly POS Expenditure (PEP) Summary
	2019 20 NEW FORMAT PEP due 10 Jun 20.xlsx

	5. Acceptance of Restricted Donations
	Copy of Poppelwell Fund July Report.pdf


	F. Next Meeting - Wednesday, August 5, 2020, 5:30 PM via Zoom Video Conference

